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PART I

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains statements that involve exgiguts, plans or intentions (such as those relatméuture business or financial results, new
features or services, or management strategie®sd statements are forwelooking and are subject to risks and uncertaintis actual results
may vary materially. You can identify these forwbroking statements by words such as “may,” “will;8hould,” “expect,” “anticipate,”

“believe,” “estimate,” “intend,” “plan” and other similar expressions. You should consider our forwkmoking statements in light of the risks
discussed under the heading “Risk Factors That M#gct Results of Operations and Financial Conditimm Item 7, as well as our consolidated
financial statements, related notes, and the ofimancial information appearing elsewhere in théport and our other filings with the Securit

and Exchange Commission. We assume no obligatiopdate any forward-looking statements.

ITEM 1: BUSINESS

eBay Inc. was formed as a sole proprietorshipeptember 1995 and was incorporated in CaidiamMay 1996. In April 1998, we
reincorporated in Delaware and in September 1998amepleted the initial public offering of our commstock. Our principal executive offices
are located at 2145 Hamilton Avenue, San Josefdbailh, 95125, and our telephone number is (408)B%00. When we refer to “we,” “our” or
“eBay” in this Annual Report on Form I0-we mean the current Delaware corporation (eBay)land its California predecessor, as well asf:
our consolidated subsidiaries. When we refer taa{eBom,” we mean the online marketplace locatedvat.ebay.comhen we refer to
“PayPal.com,” we mean the online payments platflmcated atvww.paypal.com.

Our Purpose and Our Mission
Our purpose is to pioneer new communitiesiadahe world built on commerce, sustained by traistl inspired by opportunity.

We currently have two major businesses: BayeMarketplace and PayPal. GaBay Marketplace Missiais to create the world’s online
marketplace. OulPayPal Missioris to create the new global standard for onlinenpeyts.

eBay Marketplace

Our marketplace exists as an online tradiafigom that enables a global community of buyerd sellers to interact and trade with one
another. Our role is to create, maintain, and edgha functionality, safety, ease-of-use, and bdiig of our trading platform while, at the same
time, supporting the growth and success of our canity of users.

Trading Platform

Our trading platform is a fully automatedpitzally arranged, intuitive and easy-to-use onfpevice that seeks to provide availability 24 hours
a day, seven days a week, enabling sellers titdists for sale in either auction or fixed-pricerf@ts, buyers to bid for and purchase items of
interest, and all eBay users to browse throughdiiems from any place in the world at any timlee Platform includes software tools and
services, available either for no charge or foee that allow buyers and sellers to trade withamether more easily. Our software tools and
services are designed to make our trading proassreand more efficient. These tools and seniitdade: Turbo Lister, Seller's Assistant,
Selling Manager and Selling Manager Pro, which laeifpmate the selling process; Picture Serviceghmmnables sellers to include pictures in
their listings; the Shipping Calculator, which makteeasier for buyers and sellers to calculatp@hg costs; Shipping Labels, which allows
sellers to print U.S. Postal Service postage an8 laBels; Shipment Tracking, which enables settetsack their shipped packages; the eBay
Toolbar, which helps eBay users stay connected @Bty wherever they are on the Internet; eBay Ségmrts and eBay Sales Reports Plus,
which provide sales and fee information to sellarsj PayPal, which facilitates the online exchaofgfends.
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Whether provided by us or our commercial partnggsyices such as our global payments platformt émid safety programs, user verification,
buyer protection and assurance programs, postabethar shipping services, vehicle inspectionsi@gcauthentication and appraisal services
all intended to create a faster, easier and safdinig environment.

Community

Our community of users is the largest andafrtbe most loyal online trading communities oa thternet. We have aggregated a significant
number of buyers, sellers, and items listed foe,s&hich, in turn, has resulted in an extremelyatilh trading environment. Our sellers enjoy
generally high conversion rates and buyers enjogxa@nsive selection of broadly priced goods amdises. Key components of our community
philosophy are maintaining an honest and open nldae and treating individual users with resp@ét. seek to maintain the satisfaction and
loyalty of our frequent buyers and sellers by dffgra variety of community and support featureshsas announcement and bulletin boards,
customer support boards and personal pages, asasvether topical or category-specific informatexthanges. By applying a consistent set of
policies and fees to our community, we have creati/el playing field that lets individuals andsimesses of all types and sizes access broad
markets and compete equally.

Our success has been largely dependent hposutcess of our community of confirmed registeissts, which has grown from approxima
two million at the end of 1998 to more than 94 millat the end of 2003 and to more than 135 milibDecember 31, 2004. In addition, at
December 31, 2004, we had approximately 56 miliotive users, compared to approximately 41 milibthe end of 2003. We define an active
user as any user who bid on, bought, or listedean during the prior 12-month period.

We attract buyers and sellers to our commumytoffering:

Buyer: Sellers

* Selection * Access to broad marke

* Value « Efficient marketing and distribution cos
» Convenienc * Ability to maximize prices

* Entertainmen » Opportunity to increase sal

We focus on three fundamental building bloitkgrow the gross merchandise volume and net t@&derived from the eBay Marketplace.
These building blocks are:

* Acquisition— increasing the number of new registered users oeBay Marketplac
* Activation — increasing the number of registered users thatrhearxtive bidders, buyers or sellers on our eBagk®tplace
* Activity — increasing the volume and value of transactionsar@conducted by each active user on our eBakéfiglace
The specific areas of focus in each of odinertrading marketplaces depend on the stagecaf lmarket development and other
considerations.
eBay Marketplace Value Proposition
We believe our online marketplace makes icieffit markets more efficient.
Traditional offline marketplaces can be im@ént because:

» They are fragmented and regional, making it diffiend expensive for buyers and sellers to meethaxge information and complete
transactions

* They offer a limited variety and breadth of goc

* They often have high transaction costs due tonmegliaries; an
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 They are information inefficient, as buyers andessllack a reliable and convenient means of sgfiiices.
We make these inefficient marketplaces méfieient because:
* Our global community of users can easily and inegpely communicate, exchange information and cetepiransaction:
» Our marketplace includes tens of millions of itetnsating a wide variety and selection of goc
» We bring buyers and sellers together for much Idi@es than traditional intermediaries; ¢
» Our marketplace provides for efficient informatiexchange
In particular, large markets with broad buged seller bases, wide product ranges, and medshgiping costs have been successful on our
eBay Marketplace. Our marketplace is most effectighative to available alternatives, at addressiragkets of new and scarce goods, end-of-life
products and used and vintage items.
eBay Marketplace Strategy
We intend to achieve our mission of creatimgworld’s online marketplace by improving and &xg@ing across three main areas: categories,
formats, and geographies.
Categories

Category growth both in number and size withie eBay Marketplace is a key element in creadifagster, easier and safer online trading
experience.

As of December 31, 2004, listings on eBay.eoene organized under the following major categorie

* Antiques * DVDs & Movies * Sports Memorabilia, Cards

 Art  Entertainment Memorabilia and FanShop

» Books « Everything Else e Stamps

* Business & Industrial * Gift Certificates * Tickets

» Camera & Photo  Health & Beauty » Toys & Hobbies

* Cell Phones * Home & Garden * Travel

* Clothing, Shoes & « Jewelry & Watches « Video Games

Accessories * Music » eBay Motors

* Coins * Musical Instruments * Boats

* Collectibles * Pottery & Glass » Motorcycles

» Computers & Networking « Real Estate « Parts & Accessories

» Consumer Electronics « Specialty Services » Passenger Vehicles

* Crafts * Sporting Goods » Powersports

* Dolls & Bears * Other Vehicles
Formats

We are continually seeking to improve andagxpthe formats in which members of our commuréty interact with one another. At the core
of our marketplace are our traditional auction fatiistings, where a seller will select a minimurice for opening bids, with the option to set a
reserve price for the item, which is the minimuric@rat which the seller is willing to sell the iten addition, a seller with appropriate feedback
ratings can also choose to use the Buy-It-Now fesati the time of the listing, which allows sellesname a price at which they would be willing
to sell the item to any buyer. The Buy-It-Now featwas introduced in 2000 and is now used on & latgnber of our listings. Another format in
which a seller with appropriate feedback ratings ®ell is a “Dutch Auction” format, which allowsseller to sell multiple identical items to the
highest bidders. eBay Stores also represents arfottmeat through which sellers can offer their ge@ohd
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services. eBay Stores enables sellers to show #ilko listings and to describe their respectiusihesses through customized pages.

In addition to our more established eBay M#place formats, we are continually looking for way better enable members of our community
to interact and transact with one another onlimge ®@ew format that we are exploring with our acigjoiss in 2004 of mobile.de in Germany and
Marktplaats.nl in the Netherlands, as well as auestment in craigslist, is the classifieds fornTdtese transactions will allow us to increase our
knowledge of classifieds-style trading. In additiare recently acquired Rent.com, which will alloe/to expand into the online housing and
apartment rental market.

Geographie:

A key element of our growth strategy is tatioually expand the eBay Marketplace to new comitresaround the world. Providing access to
broad markets and reducing the barriers of glalbalet creates value for both buyers and sellergegatly increases the vibrancy of our
marketplace. As of December 31, 2004, eBay ancbitsolidated subsidiaries had marketplace webditested toward the following markets:

. Australia . India . South Koret
. Austria . Ireland . Spain
. Belgium . Italy . Sweder
. Canade . Malaysia . Switzerland
. China . the Netherland . Taiwan
. France . New Zealanc . United Kingdom
. Germany . the Philippines . United State:
. Hong Kong . Singapore
In addition, through our equity investmenMercadoLibre, our geographic reach as of Decer@bhgP004, included the following markets:
. Argentina . Columbia . Peru
. Brazil . Ecuadot . Uruguay
. Chile . Mexico . Venezuele

Marketplace Service
Trust and Safety Progran

We have developed a number of programs orBay Marketplace, including our Feedback Forunfiel3arbor™ Program and eBay Stand.
Purchase Protection Program, to make eBay users coonfortable dealing with unknown trading partreard completing commerce transactions
on the Internet.

Feedback ForumeBay’s Feedback Forum encourages each user taderogeimments on other eBay users with whom he otratles and lets
every user view other users’ profiles, which in@duddedback ratings and comments by other usersy Eegistered eBay user has a feedback
profile that may contain compliments, criticismslather comments by users who have conducted kasswi¢h such person. The Feedback
Forum requires feedback to be related to specditsactions and provides an easy tool for usersateh specific transactions with the user names
of their trading partners. This information is red®d in a profile that includes a feedback ratimgthe person with feedback sorted according to
whether it was given over the past month, six mgnti twelve months. Users who develop positivaitaons have color-coded star symbols
displayed next to their user name to indicate thmlmer of positive feedback ratings they have rezkiBefore bidding on items listed for sale,
eBay users are encouraged to review a seller’otesdprofile to check his or her reputation witthie eBay community.

The terms of eBay’s user agreement prohiiibas that would undermine the integrity of theeleack Forum, such as a user leaving positive
feedback about himself or herself through multgteounts or leaving multiple negative feedbackotbiers through multiple accounts. The
Feedback Forum has several automated
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features designed to detect and prevent some fofmisuse. Users who receive a sufficiently negatisefeedback rating have their registrations
suspended and are unable to bid on or list itemsdie. We believe our Feedback Forum is extrem®#ful in overcoming initial user hesitancy
when trading over the Internet, as it reduces ttmgamity and uncertainty of dealing with an unknatnading partner.

SafeHarbor Programtn addition to the Feedback Forum, we offer theeBafrbor program, which provides guidelines forimgdprovides
information to resolve user disputes and respomdsports of misuse of the eBay service. eBay'&Bafbor staff investigates users’ complaints
of possible misuse of the eBay service and takpsogpiate action, including issuing warnings torssending and removing listings, or
suspending users from bidding on or listing iteomrssale. Some of the complaints the SafeHarbof istaéstigates include various forms of bid
manipulation, malicious posting of negative feedbard posting of illegal items for sale. The Safddda group is organized into three areas:
Investigations, Fraud Prevention and Community Waide Investigations team investigates reporiading infractions and misuse of the eBay
service. The Fraud Prevention team provides inftiondo assist users with disputes over the qualitthe goods sold or potentially fraudulent
transactions. When we receive an officially filedijtten claim of fraud from a user, we will gendyaduspend the offending user from the eBay
service or take other appropriate action. The ComitypWatch team investigates the listing of illegafringing or inappropriate items on the
eBay Marketplace sites and violations of certaiowf policies. When we receive a valid written netof claimed infringement of intellectual
property rights by the owner of intellectual pragewe remove the offending listing. Users who rpdly infringe intellectual property rights are
suspended. In addition, we have increased the nuaflpeople reviewing potentially illegal items ahdve developed software programs that
new listings for keywords that may indicate illegafringing, or inappropriate items. Our trust egafety initiatives, including user identity
verification, buyer protection, integrated escrewthentication, and other proactive anti-fraud éfare key elements of our effort to make the
eBay Marketplace a safer place to trade.

eBay Standard Purchase Protection Progrddisputes over items not received, or items recelugtidvhere significantly not as described in
the listing, can usually be resolved by direct camination between buyers and sellers. To help &etien partners reach a resolution, eBay o
an online process through which buyers and setlenscommunicate with each other. If, upon comptetibthis process, the buyer still has not
resolved the issue, the buyer has the opportuaispibmit a claim. Upon submission of a claim, whghn online process, eBay's Trust and
Safety team is alerted about the transaction.eltahyer closes the dispute with this option andrdwesaction is eligible, then the buyer may file a
claim under eBay’s Standard Purchase ProtectiogrBno, through which the buyer may be reimbursetbu 200 (minus a $25 processing cost).
Additionally, if the eBay Trust and Safety teamibeés further action is warranted, the seller’soaict may be restricted or suspended. The buyer
can close the dispute at any time if the buyertsceons are resolved. The buyer can escalate a ifl8Bndays have passed since the transaction
date and either the seller has responded at leasta has not responded within 10 days of theutiispeing opened. A dispute can only be open
for 90 days after the transaction date. If the bings not closed the dispute within 90 days, it el automatically closed. When a dispute is
automatically closed, the seller is not reportedBay’s Trust and Safety team and the buyer i®hgible to submit a claim under eBay’s
Standard Purchase Protection Program.

In addition to these eBay Marketplace trust safety programs, PayPal also offers a Buyeretioh Program that makes buying on the eBay
Marketplace more secure. With PayPal Buyer Pratactjualified purchases are eligible for up to $0,8overage.
Customer Suppo

We devote significant resources to providiegsonalized, accurate and timely support sert@wesir community of users. Buyers and sellers
can contact us through a variety of means, inclyéimail, online text chat and, in certain circumsts, telephone. We are focusing our resources
on increasing our accessibility and capacity, edpanour category-specific support, extending auime self-help features, and improving our
systems and processes to allow us to provide that efficient and effective support possible.
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Value-Added Tools and Servic

eBay users have access to a variety of ‘fa@et and “post-trade” tools and services to enbaheir user experience and to make trading
faster, easier and safer for them. “Pre-trade”st@old services are intended to simplify the lispngcess and include photo hosting, authentication
services and seller productivity software. “Poad#” tools and services, which make transactiosgeeand more convenient to complete, include
payment processing, insurance, vehicle inspectestow, shipping and postage. We currently prothése services directly or through
contractual arrangements with third parties.

My eBay

We offer My eBay, which permits users to reee report of their recent eBay activity, inclngibidding, selling, account balances, favorite
categories and recent feedback. Users with theirweb pages also may post links from their pageBty and list the items they are selling on
eBay. We also offer About Me, which provides usbesopportunity to create their own personal homgepfree of charge on eBay using step-by-
step instructions. The About Me home page can dehersonal information, items listed for sale, yReedback ratings, images and links to o
favorite sites.

PayPal
Global Payments Platform

Our global payments platform, PayPal, enahtgsindividual or business with an email addressetcurely, easily and quickly send and rec
payments online. Our global payments platform atsdes online trading more efficient compared tditianal payment methods such as checks,
money orders, and credit cards via merchant acsotihese traditional payment methods present vabstacles to the online trading
experience, including lengthy processing time, m@anience, and high costs. PayPal delivers a ptadeit suited for small businesses, online
merchants and individuals by allowing them to send receive online payments securely, convenieamity cost-effectively. The PayPal network
builds on the existing financial infrastructureb@ink accounts and credit cards to create a glodsdttime payment solution.

PayPal’'s account-based system is availablséos in 45 countries, including the United Stafesof December 31, 2004, PayPal had
approximately 64 million total accounts, comprisaggproximately 13 million business accounts andnilion personal accounts.

PayPal Service:
Joining the Networ

PayPal offers three types of accounts: Pals@usiness, and Premier. A new user typicallynspen account to send money for an eBay
purchase or a purchase on another website, a payaneservices rendered, or for a payment to aividdal in lieu of cash. Allowing new users
join the network when they make or receive paymentourages PayFs natural, user-driven growth. PayPal’s accoughsip process asks ea
new user to provide PayPal his or her name, saddtess, phone number, and email address. Thes eseéil address serves as the unique ac
identifier. PayPal also offers customers who seltheir own websites the ability to accept creditdcpayments from buyers without requiring the
buyer to open a PayPal account.

Senders make payments at the PayPal weblt#a,item listing on eBay or another online busener platform where the seller has integrated
PayPal’s Instant Purchase Feature, or at thedfite®rchants that have integrated PayPal’'s WePsifenents feature. To make a payment at
PayPal's website, a sender logs in to his or heowatt and enters the recipient’s email addresgtemdmount of the payment. To make a payment
through Instant Purchase or Website Payments,desaelects an item for purchase, confirms the payrimformation and enters his or her email
address and password to authorize the paymentalPdgBits the money from the sender’s PayPal balasredit card, or bank account and
instantly credits it to the recipient’s PayPal lnala. In the case of an eCheck payment, the traosadstheld until the funds have cleared the
sender’s bank, which typically takes three to fiwsiness days. In turn, the recipient can make
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payments to others or withdraw his or her fundamgttime via check (in the U.S.), electronic futdssfer, or via a PayPal-branded debit card
(which is only available to U.S. users).

PayPal earns revenue in five ways. FirstPRhgarns transaction fees when a Business or &racgount receives a payment. Second, PayPa
earns a foreign exchange fee when a user convbeekace from one currency to another. Third, PhyRs earn fees when a user withdraws
money to a notd.S. bank account, depending on the amount of ttfedvawal. Fourth, PayPal earns a return on cetagtomer balances. Final
PayPal may earn ancillary revenues from a suifeahcial products, including the PayPal-brandebitdeard, the PayPal-branded credit card and
the PayPal Buyer Credit offering.

We incur funding costs on payments at vary@vgls based on the source of the payment, wébditcard and debit card funding costs being
significantly higher than bank account or balangedied payments. U.S. users who choose to mainggiRd balances in U.S. dollars have the
ability to sweep balances into the PayPal MoneyKeaFund. This Money Market Fund, which is invested portfolio managed by Barclays
Global Fund Advisors, bore a current compound ahyied of 2.03% as of December 31, 2004.

Verification of PayP¢'s Account Holder

To fund payments from their bank accountthéUnited States, the United Kingdom and Canasledexrs must first become verified PayPal
users. The primary method for verification is o@midom Deposit technique. Under this technique, BlayRkes two deposits ranging from 1 to
99 cents to the user’s bank account. To verify aglmip of the account, the user then enters theatwounts as a four-digit code at the PayPal
website. In addition to allowing funding throughniiaaccounts, verification also removes some spenilitinits on users’ accounts and gives them
reputational advantages when transacting with atr@mbers of the PayPal community.

Withdrawing Mone)

Each account holder in the U.S. and, as akber 31, 2004, in 23 other countries, may witiwdreoney from their PayPal account through
an electronic fund transfer to his or her bank aater, in the U.S., by a mailed check from PayRatomated Clearing House, or ACH,
withdrawals may take three to five business dayatioe in the account holder’s bank account, ddpenon the bank. Mailed checks may take
one to two weeks to arrive, and PayPal charge0%deb check. Qualifying PayPal business usersanitls. can receive a PayPal ATM/debit ¢
which provides instant liquidity to their PayPatauant balances. ATM/debit cardholders can withdcash, for a $1.00 fee per transaction, from
any ATM connected to the Cirrus or Maestro netwakd can make purchases at any merchant acceptistgeMard.

PayPal Value Propositiot

Providing more efficient and effective payrmarethods is essential to creating a faster, easigisafer online trading experience. Traditional
payment methods such as checks, money orders adid cards processed through merchant accounisiesént various obstacles to the online
trading experience, including lengthy processintgtiinconvenience and high costs. Our PayPal oplyenents solution allows our community
of eBay users, as well as users of other onlingnbases, to pay for their transactions securekilyeand quickly.

PayPal enables buyers to store their seerditiancial information online, and to pay merclsantthout sharing this information with them, or
entering their information onto a website each tthey make a purchase. To make payments, sendedsmelisclose only their email addresse
recipients. Similarly, to receive payments, reaiseneed to disclose only their email addressesnders. Many buyers and sellers wary of
disclosing financial information online find thiggh level of personal privacy attractive.

PayPal offers online merchants an all-in-pagment processing solution that is cheaper thast merchant accounts, offers industry-leading
fraud prevention, and enables merchants to acpgssxmately 64 million customers in 45 countries.
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A merchant can open a PayPal account anahlaegepting credit card payments within a few meésuMerchants are approved instantly for a
PayPal account, and do not need to provide a pargomranty, acquire any specialized hardware,ggeegn application, contact a payment
gateway or encrypt customer data. Furthermore, &laarges lower transaction fees than most met@wmounts, and charges no setup fees and
no recurring monthly fees.

The account-based nature of PayPal’s netWelxs us to detect and prevent fraud when funds ¢éié PayPal network, as funds move within
the network, and when they leave. Sellers canraldoce the risk of transaction losses due to uoaizdd credit card use and fraudulent
chargebacks entirely, if they comply with PayP&iler Protection Policy.

PayPal Strateg)

We seek to extend our leading position armbire the online payment network of choice aroureditbrld. To establish PayPal as the global
payment standard in online payments, we will foeasamong other things, increased adoption of FHayfPthe eBay Marketplace and expansion
of PayPal's merchant services, which are servicemirchants who sell through their own websites.

Increase PayP{s adoption on the eBay Marketple

eBay.comin 2004, the U.S. Marketplace segment of eBay gegadrmore than $18 billion in gross merchandisemel, which is a measure
the total value of all successfully closed listitiggween users on our marketplace. We intend ¢éngthen PayPal’s penetration into the payments
area on the eBay Marketplace in the United Stagemohtinuing to integrate with eBay listings anélseg to add product features important to the
eBay community. During 2004, we added features siscRayPal Buyer Credit and payment for postageshipinent insurance through PayPal,
we expanded the free coverage afforded to buyeterithe PayPal Buyer Protection Program from $60R1t000 per transaction (from £250 to
£500 for British pound-denominated transactionsyl we added PayPal Buyer Protection coverage fpedsurom qualified U.K., Canadian and
German sellers.

International sitesPrior to 2004, PayPal was offered in a local lagguand currency in only three countries — the Wh&¢ates, Canada and
the United Kingdom. As of December 31, 2004, Payle available in a local language and currendivenadditional countries. PayPal plans to
continue its expansion into new countries, whileoivating on the product and adding new featurésaease adoption by the eBay international
community.

As of December 31, 2004, PayPal was offemeal Ibcal language and currency in eight markets:

. Austria . France . United State!
. Belgium . Germany . United Kingdom
. Canade . Switzerland

As of December 31, 2004, PayPal allowedutt@mers with credit cards to send payments fromdalitional 36 markets outside of the U.S.,
and to receive payments in 35 of those market$5lof these markets, customers can withdraw fundiscal bank accounts.

Our international expansion into an increasaber of markets and currencies makes cross-btredesactions easier and more efficient,
which benefits both the eBay Marketplace and PayPal

Expand PayP¢s merchant services business in the |

We intend to continue to develop featurestantdarket our global payments solution to spurgromwth as a payment solution for sole
proprietors and small and medium-sized busine&asng the past year, we added features that ath@rchants to customize PayPal’'s payment
flows to their own websites, and to integrate PaylRae seamlessly into their checkouts. We alsopietaly redesigned the PayPal home page to
make it more user friendly for businesses, anadotlut a “PayPal For Business” campaign.
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We intend to continue to market the PayPatipct to small and medium-sized businesses and laggchants, and enable them to add PayPal
as a “payment mark” on their websites. These mertshaill offer PayPal, alongside other payment rod) such as credit cards, checks and
money orders.

Finally, we will continue to identify trang&ns and markets not served adequately by exigt@ygnent systems and seek to develop product
features that improve upon those legacy systenmrseample, during the past year, we integrated Rlayih Apple iTunes and Napster.

Trust and Safety Programs

We have developed a number of PayPal trussafety programs, including PayPal’s Seller Ptagad?olicy, Buyer Protection Policy and
PayPal’'s Money Back Guarantee. These programsgemértain additional protection to eBay users wép, or receive payment, for their
transactions through PayPal. In addition, our Friawestigation Team focuses on identifying and preing fraud before it occurs, detecting fraud
in process, mitigating loss if fraud does occur dalivering information to law enforcement arouhé tvorld to better combat online fraud.

Seller Protection PolicyPayPal's Seller Protection Policy covers selleraffoto $5,000 on certain fraudulent transactiomsrder to be
eligible for 100% protection, PayPal sellers muBtexe to certain steps which include: having afieetiBusiness or Premier account; shipping
goods, in a timely manner, to an eligible addrestsining proof of shipping which is trackable aliand, for items with a value of over $250,
requiring a signature receipt; accepting entirenpayt in a single transaction; and, respondingltBaPal inquiries in a timely manner.

Buyer Protection PolicyWith PayPal Buyer Protection, qualified purchasesedigible for up to $1,000 (or for up to £500 fritish pound-
denominated transactions) coverage at no cost.prbgram covers qualified purchases that the bhgerpaid for, and either has never received,
or has received but where significantly differdrdn described in the listing. When a buyer filesaam through PayPal Buyer Protection, we w
with both the buyer and seller to gather the detfilthe transaction. We investigate the facthefdase and make an effort to come to a fair
conclusion. For a purchase to be eligible for tugerage, the PayPal Buyer Protection icon mustigfdayed in the Seller Information box on the
eBay listing, the item purchased must be a physteal, PayPal must be used to pay for the item,theduyer must use the seller’'snail addres
associated with the listing. Claims must be fildthim 45 days of PayPal payment, and buyers arigddrio three PayPal Buyer Protection refunds
per year.

Money Back Guarante&V/hen a payment is made on the PayPal website, asedften given the option to buy a Money Back i@ntee to
protect the purchase of physical goods. If a MoBagk Guarantee is purchased, buyers will have pieroto return the merchandise to us in
exchange for a reimbursement (not including theantae fee), provided that they file a completenkrirsement request within 45 days of
payment. This program is only offered for transawsiinvolving tangible goods of less than $1,00thwie-qualified sellers. In addition, we may
take additional criteria into account in decidingether to offer the Money Back Guarantee on aq@adr transaction.

Technology
eBay Platform

The eBay platform is composed of a scalatlesiaction processing system, consumer user ingeréend externally accessible Application
Programming Interface, or API, for third-party igtations. The scalable system is primarily basethtarnally developed proprietary software,
but also includes selected vendor components. Bag platform supports the full selling and buyinggesses, including initial registration for
service, placing bids and managing outbids, listiems for sale, and auction close. The eBay platfalso manages various notifications for
sellers and buyers, including daily status upddtigsand outbid notices, registration confirmatiomscount change notices, billing notices, and
end-of-auction notices. The platform maintains usgistration information, billing accounts, curtéem listings and historical listings. All
information is regularly archived for record-keepiand analysis purposes. The platform regularhatgxia
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comprehensive search engine with the titles andrgé®ns of items, as well as pricing and biddupglates for active items. The platform also
updates the seller’s billing account every timdtam is listed, a feature is selected, or an anatioses with a bid in excess of the seller-spedifi
minimum bid. The platform sends electronic invoitesll sellers at least monthly. In addition tedk features, the eBay service supports a
community bulletin board and chat areas where wussilseBay customer support personnel can intebaerall system volume on the eBay
platform is significant, with peak usage in 2004approximately 890 million page views per day ardigigabits of outbound data traffic per
second.

Our eBay platform is designed around industandard architectures to reduce downtime in leateof outages or catastrophic occurrences.
eBay seeks to provide availability 24 hours a dayen days a week. Substantially all of our sydtardware is hosted at Cable & Wireless and
Qwest facilities in San Jose, California, an eBayred data center in Denver, Colorado, and a S@amimunications facility in Sacramento,
California. Each of these facilities provides redant communications lines and emergency power lpadkithough our systems have been
designed around industry-standard architecturedaae downtime in the event of outages or catdsizagcurrences, they remain vulnerable to
damage or interruption, and we do not maintairyfréldundant systems. For more information regarthiege risks, see the information in Item 7
under “Risk Factors That May Affect Results of Cggems and Financial Condition — System failureslddiarm our business.”

Our eBay platform consists of Sun databasees® running Oracle relational database manageapmpitcations with a mix of Sun and Hitachi
storage devices, along with a suite of Pentium-théisernet servers running the Windows NT and Lioperating systems. We use F5 Networks’
load balancing systems and our own redundant sealeng with select software from Veritas to previdr fault tolerance, and we use IBM’s
WebSphere application server for certain platfoumctions. In 2004 we completed the implementatioa wew billing and collections system
from CSG Systems. We must continually improve gistesms to accommodate the increasing levels obtiear websites. In addition, we may
need to develop or license additional technologgrifer to add new features and functionality to semices. If we are unable to upgrade or
effectively integrate our technology, transactioagessing systems, security infrastructure, or ngtwnfrastructure to accommodate increased
traffic or transaction volume our business couldhbemed. For more information regarding these riske the information in Item 7 under “Risk
Factors That May Affect Results of Operations aimhficial Condition — Our failure to manage growtluld harm our business.”

Our competitive space is characterized bydtgghanging technology, evolving industry stardiarfrequent new service and product
announcements, introductions and enhancementshamgjing customer demands. Accordingly, our futuiecess will depend on our ability to
adapt to rapidly changing technologies, to adapseuwices to evolving industry standards and torowe the performance, features and reliability
of our services in response to competitive servacesproduct offerings and evolving demands ofithernet. Also, due to the potential growth in
our customer base and number of listings, we gatieithat expansion will be required. If we faibmbapt to any of these changes and to our
anticipated growth, our business would be harmedddition, the widespread adoption of new Internetworking or telecommunications
technologies or other technological changes caddire substantial expenditures to modify or adaptservices or infrastructure. In 2004, we
completed our migration to a new software architexintended to facilitate continued stability, mped scalability, and enhanced efficiency on
the eBay Marketplace. The new architecture nowesenearly 100% of the site traffic of the eBay Mspitace.

PayPal Platform

Our PayPal technology is designed to asssee access to the PayPal website. We focus muehyd?al's development efforts on creating
specialized software that enhances its Internetdaastomer functionality. One of PayPal’s key ldmjes remains building and maintaining a
scalable and reliable system, capable of handiafi¢ and transactions for a growing customer bagast major components of our PayPal
network reside at our facilities in San Jose, ©atfifa, at an eBay-owned data center in Denver, 1@dtp at an Equinix data center in San Jose,
California, and at our PayPal operations and custaupport facility in Omaha, Nebraska.
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Due to the financial nature of the PayPabpat, we seek to offer a high level of data segunitorder to build customer confidence and to
protect our customers’ private information. We hdesigned our PayPal security infrastructure tagmtadata from unauthorized access, both
physically and over the Internet. PayPal’'s mossime data and hardware reside at the Denver auihi data centers. These data centers have
redundant connections to the Internet, as welhak-folerant power and fire suppression systenue © PayPas special security needs, we hc
our PayPal equipment in physically secure areasnantightly control physical access to our systeRes/Pal’'s systems and operations are
vulnerable to damage or interruption from earth@sakloods, fires, power loss, telecommunicatidlufas and similar events. They are also
subject to break-ins, sabotage and intentional@&ctandalism, and to potential disruption if thgeecators of these facilities have financial
difficulties. For more information regarding thesgks, see the information in Item 7 under “Riskteas That May Affect Results of Operations
and Financial Condition — System failures couldnhaur business.”

Multiple layers of network security and netwintrusion detection devices further enhancestngurity of our PayPal systems. We segment
various components of the system logically and iajly from each other on our PayPal networks. Congmts of the system communicate with
each other via Secure Sockets Layer, or SSL, arstngstandard communications security protocol, andirequutual authentication. Finally, \
store all customer data we deem private or seesithly in encrypted form in our PayPal databasgPBbdecrypts data only on an as-needed
basis, using a specially designated componentoPayPal system that requires authentication bétdfiling a decryption request.

Competition

We encounter vigorous competition in our hass from numerous sources. Our users can find,sellyand pay for similar items through a
variety of competing channels. These include betat limited to, online and offline retailers, tdisutors, liquidators, import and export
companies, auctioneers, catalog and mail-order eoiep, classifieds, directories, search enginesiyats of search engines, virtually all online
and offline commerce participants (consumer-to-oamer, business-to-consumer and business-to-bu}iaedonline and offline shopping
channels and networks. As our product offeringginoe to broaden into new categories of items awl tnading formats, we expect our
competition to continue to broaden to include ottrdime and offline channels for those new offesing/e also compete on the basis of price,
product selection, and services. For our PayPalcgrour users may choose to pay through a vaok@jternative means, including other online
payment services, offline payment methods suclasis,check or money order, and traditional onlineffline credit card merchant accounts. To
compete effectively, we may need to expend sigmificesources in technology and marketing. Thefseteimay be expensive and could reduce
our margins and have a material adverse effecuomasiness, financial position, operating resulésh flows and reduce the value of our stock.
We believe that we will be able to maintain prdditiy by preserving and expanding the abundanakdiversity of our users’ online community
and enhancing our user experience, but there cao basurance that we will be able to continue anage our operating expenses to mitigate a
decline in consolidated net income. For more infation regarding these risks, see the informatiodieim 7 under “Risk Factors That May Affect
Results of Operations and Financial Condition — @dustry is intensely competitive.”

Seasonality

Our results of operations historically haeei seasonal because many of our users reducadtigities on our websites with the onset of
good weather during the summer months, and on anahd national holidays. We have historically exgeced our strongest quarters of online
sequential growth in our first and fourth fiscabgiers. PayPal has shown similar seasonality, @dpyein the fourth fiscal quarter. We expect
these patterns of seasonality to continue as obsites gain acceptance by a broader base of meanstusers. In addition, as our business
matures, transaction activity patterns on our wiebshncreasingly mirror general consumer buyingepas, both online and offline.
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Intellectual Property

We regard the protection of our trademarkgycights, patents, domain names, trade dressradd secrets as critical to our success. We have
entered into confidentiality and invention assigniregreements with our employees and contractasnandisclosure agreements with parties
with whom we conduct business in order to limitegxto and disclosure of our proprietary informatio

We aggressively protect our intellectual gy rights by relying on a combination of tradekyaopyright, patent, trade dress and trade secre
laws and by using the domain name dispute resolstjgtem. As a result, we actively pursue the tegdien of our trademarks, copyrights, pate
and domain names in the U.S. and other major ciesniWe must also protect our trademarks, paterdglamain names in an increasing number
of jurisdictions, a process that is expensive, megire litigation, and may not be successful iargMocation. We have registered or applied for
our “eBay” trademark in the U.S. and over 50 no&-Yurisdictions and have in place an active progta continue securing the “eBay” and
“PayPal” domain names in major non-U.S. jurisdicioWe have filed to protect our rights to the “gBand “PayPal’ nhames in certain new top-
level domains such as “.biz”, “.info” and “.ufiat have become operational more recently. Ounilibato secure our trademarks or domain na
could adversely affect us in any jurisdiction inigthwe are not able to register.

Third parties have from time to time claimadd others may claim in the future, that we haeniged their intellectual property rights. We
currently are involved in several such legal proiegs. Please see the information in “ltem 3: Lé@yalceedings” and in Item 7 under “Risk
Factors That May Affect Results of Operations aimhficial Condition — We are subject to intellectpedperty and other litigation” and “— We
may be unable to protect or enforce our own intéllal property rights adequately.”

Employees

As of December 31, 2004, eBay Inc. and itssotidated subsidiaries employed approximately @ d€ople (excluding approximately 600
temporary employees), of whom approximately 5,9@@enocated in the United States (excluding appnaxely 500 temporary employees). Our
future success is substantially dependent on tHerpgance of our executive and senior managemeahkan technical personnel, and on our
continuing ability to find and retain highly quadifl technical and managerial personnel.

Segments

Reporting segments are based upon our idterganizational structure, the manner in which operations are managed, the criteria used by
our chief operating decision-maker to evaluate segmerformance, the availability of separate faiahinformation and overall materiality
considerations.

The U.S. Marketplace segment includes U.8nemarketplace trading platforms other than cayRal subsidiary. The International
Marketplace segment includes our internationalneninarketplace trading platforms other than ouPRagubsidiary. The Payments segment
includes our global payments platform consistingwf PayPal subsidiary. The Payments amounts tefledistorical operations of our former
Billpoint subsidiary and PayPal’'s operations fag ffost-acquisition period from October 4, 2002 tigto December 31, 2004. We completed our
planned wind-down of Billpoint in the first half @003.

The financial information used by our chipkgating decision-maker is focused on revenuedardt costs of the particular segment. Direct
contribution consists of net revenues less direstsc Direct costs include specific costs of neeéneies, sales and marketing expenses, and gener
and administrative expenses over which segment gesisdnave direct discretionary control, such aggibing and marketing programs, custol
support expenses, bank charges, provisions fortlldw@#zcounts, authorized credits and transactiesés. Expenses over which segment man
do not currently have discretionary control, suslsiée operations costs, product development exseasd certain other general and
administrative costs, are monitored by managenteatigh shared cost centers and are not evaluatbe imeasurement of segment performance.
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For an analysis of financial information abgaographic areas as well as our segments, see Ne- Segments” of the notes to our
consolidated financial statements incorporatedihere

Available Information

Our Internet addressvwsvw.ebay.comOur investor relations website is locatedhtp://investor.ebay.comWe make available free of charge
on our investor relations website under “SEC F#thgur Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reépon Form 10-Q, Current Reports on
Form 8-K and amendments to those reports as somaasnably practicable after we electronically it furnish such materials to the
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission. Furtheops of this annual report on Form 10-K is locaa¢the SEC’s Public Reference Room at
450 Fifth Street, NW, Washington, D.C. 20549. Infation on the operation of the Public ReferencerRoan be obtained by calling the SEC at
1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC maintains an internetlséecontains reports, proxy and information statets and other information regarding our
filings at www.sec.gov.

ITEM 2: PROPERTIES

We own and lease various properties in thieddrStates and in 17 other countries around thédw@/e use the properties for corporate,
administrative, customer support and other germrsiness needs. Our corporate headquarters ateddoaSan Jose, California. As of
December 31, 2004, our owned and leased prope@rieéded us with aggregate square footage of apmately 730,000 and 1.4 million,
respectively, and the total square footage occupyeour U.S. Marketplace, International Marketplacel Payments segments totaled
approximately 800,000, 650,000 and 450,000, respdgt As of December 31, 2004, the remaining tetplare footage of our owned and leased
properties were either sublet or were being madk&iesublet.

From time to time we consider various altéiues related to our longerm facilities needs. While we believe our exigtfacilities are adequa
to meet our immediate needs, it may become negessase or acquire additional or alternativecepa accommodate any future growth.

For a discussion of the accounting treatroéour leased corporate headquarters that we witthpase on March 1, 2005, see “Note 8 — Long-
Term Obligations” of the notes to our consoliddiedncial statements, included elsewhere in thissal Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 3: LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In April 2001, two of our European subsidigrieBay GmbH and eBay International AG, were $yebllontres Rolex S.A. and certain of its
affiliates in the regional court of Cologne, Germafhe suit subsequently was transferred to thsned court in Disseldorf, Germany. Rolex
alleged that our subsidiaries were infringing R@drademarks as a result of users selling cougitdRolex watches through our German website.
The suit also alleged unfair competition. Rolexgitiian order enjoining the sale of Rolex-brandetthes on the website as well as damages. In
December 2002, a trial was held in the matter Aeccourt ruled in favor of eBay on all causes dioac Rolex appealed the ruling to the Higher
Regional Court of Dusseldorf, and the appeal waschim October 2003. In February 2004, the coyected Rolex’s appeal and ruled in our
favor. Rolex has appealed the ruling to the GerFedteral Supreme Court. In March 2004, the Germalefa¢é Supreme Court ruled in favor of
Rolex in a case involving an unrelated companwrdo.de AG, but somewhat comparable legal theoFies.court issued its written decision in
that case in September 2004. Although it is notcledr what effect the reasoning of the German FE@@&upreme Court’s ricardo.de decision
would have when applied to eBay, we believe ther@odecision will likely not require any signifiaachange in our business practices.

In September 2001, a complaint was filed yréExchange LLC against us, our Half.com subsidieny ReturnBuy, Inc. in the U.S. District
Court for the Eastern District of Virginia (No. 2:@CV-736) alleging infringement of three patentddting to online auction technology, multiple
database searching and electronic consignmentsgstnd seeking a permanent injunction and dam@ysading treble damages for willful
infringement). In October 2002, the court grantegart our summary judgment motion, effectively
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invalidating the patent related to online auctiechinology and rendering it unenforceable. Thiswguleft only two patents in the case. Trial of the
matter began in April 2003. In May 2003, the juegurned a verdict finding that eBay had willfuliyfiinged one and Half.com had willfully
infringed both of the patents in the suit, awardh3%.0 million in compensatory damages. Both psffiled post-trial motions, and in August
2003, the court entered judgment for MercExchangbeé amount of $29.5 million, plus pre-judgmereérest and post-judgment interest in an
amount to be determined, while denying MercExchanguest for an injunction and attorneys’ fee® &ppealed the verdict and judgment in
favor of MercExchange and MercExchange filed aiaspeal of the granting in part of our summargjudnt motion and the denial of its
request for an injunction and attorneys’ fees. @rguments for the appeals were heard on Octol#8!. The U.S. Patent and Trademark Office
recently granted our request that it reexamindhhee patents at suit, and on January 26, 200Rdtent and Trademark Office issued a ruling
rejecting all of MercExchange’s claims under théepathat related to online auctions. We contirubdlieve that the verdict against us in the trial
was incorrect and intend to continue to pursueageal and defend ourselves vigorously. Howevem évsuccessful, our appeal of and defense
against this action will continue to be costly aledition, as a precautionary measure, we have ieddiertain functionality of our websites and
business practices in a manner which we believeemttiem not infringe the two patents that we weuwmd to have infringed. Nonetheless, if we
are not successful in appealing the court’s rulimg,might be forced to pay significant additionahthges and licensing fees or modify our
business practices in an adverse manner. We ratardeperating charge in the amount of $30.0 miJlreflecting the $29.5 million judgment,
together with our estimate for pjedgment interest of $0.5 million. The charge amel telated estimated tax benefit of $12.1 millicerevreflecte

in our consolidated statement of income as patiégdtion expense in the year ended December 313.20

In August 2002, Charles E. Hill & Associats;. filed a lawsuit in the U.S. District Courtrfthe Eastern District of Texas (No. 2:02-CV-186)
alleging that we and 17 other companies, primaaitge retailers, infringed three patents owned bBlygénerally relating to electronic catalog
systems and methods for transmitting and updatitg dt a remote computer. The suit seeks an infmagainst continuing infringement,
unspecified damages, including treble damages iitfulninfringement, and interest, costs, expensas] fees. In January 2003, the case was
transferred to the U.S. District Court for the Swurh District of Indiana. After pending in Indiafaa almost a year, the case was transferred back
to the U.S. District Court for the Eastern Distia¢tTexas in December 2003. A scheduling conferavere held in November 2004 and a
preliminary trial date has been set for Februaly&@ he case is currently in fact discovery anihtleonstruction discovery. We believe that we
have meritorious defenses and intend to defencebuas vigorously.

In February 2002, PayPal was sued in Califostate court (No. CV-805433) in a purported ckstton alleging that its restriction of customer
accounts and failure to promptly unrestrict legatmaccounts violates California state consumeeption laws and is an unfair business practice
and a breach of PayPal's User Agreement. This magtis re-filed with a different named plaintiffdnne 2002 (No. CV-808441), and a similar
action was also filed in the U.S. District Court fhe Northern District of California in June 20080. C-02-2777). In March 2002, PayPal was
sued in the U.S. District Court for the NortherrstBict of California (No. C-02-1227) in a purporteldss action alleging that its restrictions of
customer accounts and failure to promptly unresteigitimate accounts violates federal and statesamer protection and unfair business practice
laws. The two federal court actions were consaodidanto a single case, and the state court actamstayed pending developments in the federal
case. In June 2004, the parties announced thahtmbyeached a proposed settlement. The settlemwived approval from the federal court on
November 2, 2004, but the cc’s approval could be appealed. In the settlemeayPRl does not acknowledge that any of the allegstin the
case are true. Under the terms of the settlemertgin PayPal account holders will be eligibledoaive payment from a settlement fund of
$9.25 million, less administrative costs and theant awarded to plaintiffs’ counsel by the couttal sum will be distributed to class members
who have submitted timely claims in accordance withsettlement’s plan of allocation, which stilish be approved by the court. The parties
expect that a plan of allocation will be submittedhe court in the first quarter of 2005. The amtoef the settlement was fully accrued in our
consolidated statement of income for the year efdimbmber 31, 2003.
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In July 2004, a purported class action latvaais filed by two eBay users in Superior Courthaf State of California, County of Santa Clara
(No. 104CV022708) alleging that eBay engaged inroppr billing practices as the result of problenithwhe rollout of a new billing software
system in the second and third quarters of 2004.lalwsuit sought damages and injunctive reliefafmended complaint was filed in January
2005, dropping one plaintiff, changing the capaoityhe other plaintiff to that of representativaiptiff, and adding seven additional eBay users
as plaintiffs. The amended complaint expandedaiscto include numerous alleged improper billimggtices from September 2003 until the
present. In February 2005, eBay filed a motiontti&es and a demurrer seeking to dismiss the compl&Ve believe that we have meritorious
defenses and intend to defend ourselves vigorously.

In February 2005, eBay was sued in SuperaurCof the State of California, County of Santar@l(No. 105CV035930) in a purported class
action alleging that certain bidding features of site constitute “shill bidding” for the purposéattificially inflating bids placed by buyers ohet
site. The complaint alleges violations of Calif@’si Auction Act, California’s Consumer Remedies ,Aatd unfair competition. The complaint
seeks injunctive relief, damages, and a constredtivst. The plaintiffs have not yet served eBathulie complaint. We believe that we have
meritorious defenses and intend to defend oursefigesously.

Other third parties have from time to timaieled, and others may claim in the future, thataee infringed their intellectual property rights.
We have been notified of several potential pat&pwdes, and expect that we will increasingly bigjestt to patent infringement claims as our
services expand in scope and complexity. In pdeicwe expect to face additional patent infringetngaims involving services we provide,
including various aspects of our Payments busindsshave in the past been forced to litigate sl&ims. We may also become more vulnerable
to third-party claims as laws such as the Digitédléinium Copyright Act, the Lanham Act and the Gumications Decency Act are interpreted
by the courts and as we expand geographicallyjimtsdictions where the underlying laws with regpecthe potential liability of online
intermediaries like ourselves are either uncledess favorable. These claims, whether meritorausot, could be time consuming and costly to
resolve, cause service upgrade delays, requireneikgechanges in our methods of doing businesspuid require us to enter into costly royalty
or licensing agreements.

From time to time, we are involved in oth&pdites that arise in the ordinary course of bissin€he number and significance of these dispute:
is increasing as our business expands and our eomgraws larger. Any claims against us, whetheritoeous or not, could be time consuming,
result in costly litigation, require significant asmts of management time, and result in the digarsf significant operational resources.

ITEM 4: SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDER

There were no submissions of matters to a @bsecurity holders during the quarter ended Bsez 31, 2004.
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PART II

ITEM 5: MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND$SUER PURCHASES
OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Price Range of Common Stock

Our common stock has been traded on The MgeStteck Market" under the symbol “EBAY” since September 24, 1998 Tollowing table
sets forth the intra-day high and low per sharephices of our common stock (after giving retroaetéffect to all previous stock splits, including
the recent two-for-one stock split effective Feloyub6, 2005) for the periods indicated, as repobed he Nasdaq Stock Market.

High Low

Year Ended December 31, 2C

First Quartel $ 2261 $ 16.8¢

Second Quarte 26.4¢ 21.3¢

Third Quartel 29.43 24.9¢

Fourth Quarte 32.4( 25.3:
Year Ended December 31, 20

First Quartel 36.0z2 31.3(

Second Quarte 47.07% 34.5:

Third Quartel 47.9¢ 35.7:

Fourth Quarte 59.21 45.2;

As of February 18, 2005, there were approsaye2,800 holders of record of our common stodthaaugh we believe that there is a
significantly larger number of beneficial ownersonfr common stock.
Dividend Policy

We have never paid cash dividends on ouksaad currently anticipate that we will continuerédain any future earnings to finance the
growth of our business.
Equity Compensation Plans

For information on securities authorizedifmuance under our equity compensation plans, tef&quity Compensation Plan Information”
under Item 12, which is included elsewhere in fnsiual Report on Form 10-K.
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

We did not repurchase any of our equity sdesrduring the quarter ended December 31, 2004.
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ITEM 6: SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected consolidated finaneiatl supplemental operating data should be readrjunction with the consolidated financial
statements and notes thereto and “Management’sif88m and Analysis of Financial Condition and Rssaf Operations” appearing elsewhere
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The consolidasgatement of income and the consolidated balgiheet data for the years ended, and as of,
December 31, 2000, 2001, 2002, 2003 and 2004 aireedefrom our audited consolidated financial sta¢ats. All share and per share amounts
included in the following consolidated financiatadave been retroactively adjusted to reflecpwdliious stock splits, including our recent two-
for-one stock split, effective February 16, 2005.

Year Ended December 31
2000 2001 20021 2003 2004
(In thousands, except per share amountt

Consolidated Statement of Income Data:

Net revenue $ 431,42 $ 748,82: $ 1,214,101 $ 2,165,091 $ 3,271,300
Cost of net revenue 95,45 134,81¢ 213,87¢ 416,05¢ 614,41!
Gross profit 335,97: 614,00! 1,000,22. 1,749,03i 2,656,89.
Operating expense
Sales and marketir 166,76° 253,47: 349,65( 567,56! 857,87«
Product developmel 55,86: 75,28¢ 104,63¢ 159,31! 240,64°
General and administratiy 73,027 105,78 171,78¢ 302,70: 415,72!
Patent litigation expens — — — 29,96t —
Payroll tax on employee stock optic 2,337 2,442 4,01¢ 9,59( 17,47¢
Amortization of acquired intangible ass 1,43¢ 36,59: 15,94 50,65¢ 65,927
Merger related cos 1,55( — — — —
Total operating expens 300,97 473,57¢ 646,02° 1,119,79 1,597,65:
Income from operation 34,99« 140,42¢ 354,19 629,24 1,059,24;
Interest and other income, r 46,337 41,61: 49,20¢ 37,80: 77,867
Interest expens (3,379 (2,85)) (1,497) (4,319 (8,879
Impairment of certain equity investmel — (16,24%) (3,78)) (1,230) —
Income before cumulative effect of accounting cleargcome taxe
and minority interest 77,957 162,94: 398,13! 661,50( 1,128,23I
Provision for income taxe (32,72 (80,009 (145,94¢) (206,739 (343,88
Minority interests 3,062 7,51¢ (2,296) (7,57¢) (6,127)
Income before cumulative effect of accounting ctee 48,29 90,44¢ 249,89: 447,18 778,22
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of — — — (5,417 —
Net income $ 48,29/ $  90,44¢ $ 249,89: $ 441,77 $ 778,22:
Net income per basic shai
Income before cumulative effect of accounting clee $ 0.0t $ 0.0¢ $ 0.2Z $ 0.3t $ 0.5¢
Cumulative effect of accounting chan — — — (0.00) —
Net income per basic she $ 0.0t $ 0.0¢ $ 0.2Z $ 0.3t $ 0.5¢
Net income per diluted shat
Income before cumulative effect of accounting cle $ 0.04 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.21 $ 0.34 $ 0.57
Cumulative effect of accounting chan — — — (0.00) —
Net income per diluted sha $ 0.04 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.21 $ 0.34 $ 0.57
Weighted average share
Basic 1,007,10. 1,075,88. 1,149,98. 1,276,57! 1,319,45!

Diluted 1,121,38: 1,122,38I 1,171,28I 1,313,31: 1,367,72
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December 31
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
(In thousands)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Date

Cash and cash equivalel $ 201,87 $ 523,96 $ 1,109,311 $ 1,381,51. $ 1,330,04!
Shor-term investment 354,16¢ 199,45( 89,69( 340,57¢ 682,00¢
Long-term investment 218,19° 286,99¢ 470,22° 934,17 1,266,28!
Working capital 538,02: 703,66t 1,082,23. 1,498,60! 1,826,27!
Total asset 1,182,40. 1,678,52! 4,040,22i 5,820,13. 7,991,05.
Shor-term obligations 15,27: 16,11 2,97( 2,84( 124,272
Long-term obligations 11,40« 12,00¢ 13,79¢ 124,472 75
Total stockholder equity 1,013,76! 1,429,13 3,556,47. 4,896,24. 6,728,34.

(1) Includes the results of PayPal subsequent to ayisiton on October 3, 200

(2) Includes a lease obligation totaling $122.5 milltbat was reclassified as st-term in 2004 as the lease will expire on March@QZ, at which time we will purchase the facili
See“Note 8— Long-Term Obligation” in the notes to the consolidated financial statemencluded elsewhere in this Annual Report omiraf-K.

ITEM7: MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains statements that involve exgigots, plans or intentions (such as those relatméuture business or financial results, new
features or services, or management strategie®sd statements are forwelooking and are subject to risks and uncertaintis actual results
may vary materially. You can identify these forwhroking statements by words such as “may,” “will;8hould,” “expect,” “anticipate,”

“believe,” “estimate,” “intend,” “plan” and other similar expressions. You should consider our forwkmoking statements in light of the risks
discussed under the heading “Risk Factors That Wtgct Results of Operations and Financial Conditibelow, as well as our consolidated
financial statements, related notes, and the ofimancial information appearing elsewhere in théport and our other filings with the Securit

and Exchange Commission. We assume no obligatiopdate any forward-looking statements.

You should read the following Management'sddission and Analysis of Financial Condition anduRs of Operations in conjunction with
the consolidated financial statements and theaglabtes that appear elsewhere in this document.
Overview

About eBay

We pioneered online trading by developindraarnet-based marketplace in which a communityuwgfers and sellers are brought together in
an entertaining, intuitive, easy-to-use environmertirowse, buy and sell an enormous variety ofig#geThrough our PayPal service, we enable
any business or consumer with email to send arelwveelectronic payments securely, conveniently @sd-effectively.

Executive Operating and Financial Summal

Our focus is on understanding our key operating financial metrics

Members of our senior management team relguleview key operating metrics such as new usstye users, listings and gross merchar
volume as well as new user accounts and total paywrdume processed by our wholly owned PayPalididry. Members of our senior
management also regularly review key financial infation including net revenues, operating incomeging, earnings per share, cash flows fi
operations and free cash flows, which we definemesating cash flows less purchases of propertyegnipment, net. These operating and
financial measures allow us to monitor the heatith @brancy of our
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marketplace and our global payments platform, &edotofitability of our business and to evaluate ¢ffectiveness of investments that we have
made and continue to make in the areas of intermaltiexpansion, customer support, product developmearketing and site operations. We
believe that an understanding of these key opeyaitinl financial measures and how they change oweris important to investors, analysts and
other parties analyzing our business results atoldumarket opportunities.

Our expectations for growt

We expect that our growth in net revenuesndu2005 will result primarily from increased nednisaction revenues across our U.S.
Marketplace, International Marketplace and Paymeatgnents. We continue to make investments in @sinbss and infrastructure to help us
achieve our long-term growth objectives. We expeontinue our investments in the areas of intégmnal expansion for both our eBay
Marketplace and our PayPal businesses, custompoguypite operations, marketing and various cafminfrastructure areas. We believe these
investments are necessary to support the long-dermmands of our growing business as well as to lnddnfrastructure necessary to support long-
term growth. In addition, to the extent that th&lHdollar strengthens against foreign currencied, e particular, the Euro and the British pound,
the remeasurement of these foreign currency deraigdrtransactions into U.S. dollars will negativiehpact our consolidated net revenues and,
to the extent that they are not hedged, our nenirec

The detailed discussion of our consolidatedrfcial results contained herein is intended tvigle information to assist investors, analysts and
other parties reading this report in understanttiegkey operating and financial measures summadbege as well as the changes in our
consolidated results of operations from year ta,y@ad the primary factors that accounted for thadsnges.

Seasonality

The following table sets forth, for the pelsgpresented, our total net revenues and the stgjugurarterly growth of these net revenues.

March 31 June 30 September 3C December 31
(In thousands, except percentage:

2002

Net revenue $ 245,10t $ 266,280 $ 288,77¢ $ 413,928

Current quarter vs prior quart 12% 9% 8% 43%
2003

Net revenue: $ 476,49: $ 509,26¢ $ 530,94. $ 648,39:

Current quarter vs prior quart 15% 7% 1% 22%
2004

Net revenue $ 756,23¢ $ 77341 3 805,87¢ $ 935,78:

Current quarter vs prior quart 17% 2% 4% 16%

* Includes net revenues from PayPal subsequent taamisition on October 3, 20C

As our business matures, transaction actpatyerns on our websites increasingly mirror gahesnsumer buying patterns, both online and
offline. We have historically experienced our sggest quarters of sequential growth in the first fmdth fiscal quarters. We expect this pattern of
seasonality to continue.

Business Combination

Through both domestic and international asitjons, we have continued to expand eBay’s globsihe marketplace. The financial results of
entities acquired in purchase transactions areatftl in our consolidated results from the effectiates of each acquisition. The aggregate
purchase price for completed acquisitions totale® $illion in 2004, $246 million in 2003, and $hlion in 2002. We accounted for each
acquisition as a purchase transaction and, acalygieach purchase price has been allocated ttatiggble and intangible assets acquired and
liabilities assumed on the basis of their respectistimated fair values on
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the acquisition date. Acquired intangible assdtted to these purchases totaled $131 million 42829 million in 2003, and $286 million in
2002. See “Note 1 — The Company and Summary ofifgignt Accounting Policies” and “Note 3 — BusingSembinations, Goodwill and
Intangible Assets” to our consolidated financialteiments, included elsewhere in this Annual Repofform 10-K.

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth, for the periodsgasted, certain data from our consolidated statdré&mcome as a percentage of net
revenues. This information should be read in codiiom with “Critical Accounting Policies, Judgmerdasd Estimates” as well as our
consolidated financial statements and notes theretimded elsewhere in this Annual Report on Fofi¥Kl

Year Ended December 31

2002 2003 2004
Net revenue 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of net revenue 17.€ 19.2 18.¢
Gross profit 82.4 80.¢& 81.z
Operating expense
Sales and marketir 28.¢ 26.2 26.2
Product developmel 8.€ 7.4 7.4
General and administrati\ 14.1 14.C 12.7
Patent litigation expens — 1.4 —
Payroll tax on employee stock optic 0.3 04 0.5
Amortization of acquired intangible ass 1.3 2.3 2.C
Total operating expens: 53.1 51.7 48.¢
Income from operation 29.: 29.1 324
Interest and other income, r 4.1 1.7 2.4
Interest expens (0.2 (0.2 (0.3
Impairment of certain equity investmel (0.3 (0.7) —
Income before cumulative effect of accounting ctearigcome taxes and minority intere 32.¢ 30.€ 34.5
Provision for income taxe (12.0 (9.5 (10.5)
Minority interests (0.2) (0.4) (0.2)
Income before cumulative effect of accounting che 20.€ 20.7 23.¢
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of — (0.9) —
Net income 20.6% 20.4% 23.&%

Our net revenues are derived primarily fréstig, feature and final value fees paid by sellem our eBay Marketplace and fees from payment
processing services on our PayPal platform. Ourawatnues have continued to grow each year, priyrasia result of increased auction and
fixed-price transaction activity, reflected in thewth in the number of our confirmed registeredrasuser activity, listings, user gross
merchandise volume on our eBay Marketplace platsoanmd payment transactions processed by PayPabelwe these increases are largely the
result of our promotional efforts and our emphasinhancing the online trading experience of @er community, both domestically and
internationally, through the introduction of nevesieatures and functionality and expanded trudtsafety programs.
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Net Revenues Summary

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31 Percent December 31 Percent December 31
2002 Change 2003 Change 2004

(In thousands, except percent change
Net Revenues by Type
Net transaction revenu

U.S. Marketplact $ 718,23¢ 43% $1,024,91! 31% $1,338,71!
International Marketplac 297,48! 121% 657,87+ 76% 1,157,47.
Payment: 93,30:¢ 36(% 429,45 59% 680,81
Total net transaction revenu 1,109,02 90% 2,112,24; 50% 3,177,001
Advertising and other non- transaction net
revenues 105,07: (50)% 52,85¢ 78% 94,30¢
Total net revenue $1,214,101 78% $2,165,09! 51% $3,271,30!
Net Revenues by Segmen
U.S. Marketplact $ 816,59¢ 30% $1,062,83. 32% $1,399,84!
International Marketplac 302,13t 12(% 664,64( 77% 1,173,75!
Payments 95,36¢ 35¢% 437,62 59% 697,70:
Total net revenue $1,214,101 78% $2,165,09! 51% $3,271,30!
Net Revenues by Geography
uU.S. $ 897,70: 57% $1,406,51; 34% $1,889,93I
International 316,39 14(% 758,58:¢ 82% 1,381,37:
Total net revenue $1,214,10! 78% $2,165,09! 51% $3,271,30!

Net revenues are attributed to U.S. and tatiional geographies based upon the country iniwttie seller, payment recipient, advertiser or
service provider is located. Our Payments segmetntavenues include amounts earned internationally.

Year Ended December 31

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
(In millions)

Supplemental Operating Data:

U.S. and International Marketplace Segmei(1)
Confirmed registered users( 22.t 42.4 61.7 94.¢ 135.t
Active users(3 — 17.¢ 27.1 41.2 56.1
Number of no-stores listings(4 264.% 419.1 629.% 955.( 1,339.¢
Number of stores listings(: — 4.C 8.6 16.C 72.1
Gross merchandise volume| $ 542: $ 9,31¢ $ 14,86¢ $ 23,77¢ $ 34,16¢

Payments Segmer
Total accounts(6 — — 23.Z 40.2 63.¢
Active accounts(7 — — 7.9 13.2 20.2
Total number of payments( — — 39.2 229.¢ 339.¢
Total payment volume(¢ — — $ 2,13¢ $ 12,22¢ $ 18,91¢

(1) Marktplaats.nl in the Netherlands and mobile.d&@many are not included in these metr
(2) Cumulative total of all users who have completesirgrgistration process on one of e’s trading platforms
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(3) Allusers, excluding users of Baazee.com, Half.cmernet Auction, Marktplaats.nl and mobile.de,ondid on, bought, or listed an item within the poes 1:-month period
Includes users of eBay EachNet in China since figeation to the eBay platform in September 2004tiv&cuser information not available for periodsoprio 2001

(4) Alllistings on eBa’s trading platforms during the year, regardlesstuéther the listing subsequently closed succegs!

(5) Total value of all successfully closed lissngetween users on eBay'’s trading platforms dutiegyear, regardless of whether the buyer andrseteally consummated the
transaction

(6) Cumulative total of all personal, premier, or besis accounts opened, excluding accounts that rereddosed or locke:
(7) All accounts that sent or received at least oner@ay through the PayPal system within the previbtes-month period

(8) Total number of payments initiated through the RAyystem during the year, regardless of whetfeeptyment was actually sent successfully, or waarsed, rejected,
pending at the end of the ye

(9) Total dollar volume of payments initiated througle PayPal system during the year, regardless ofhehéhe payment was actually sent successfullyas reversed, rejecte
or was pending at the end of the ye¢

The U.S. Marketplace segment includes our th&ketplace trading platforms, other than our RagBbsidiary. The International Marketpl
segment includes our international marketplacenpgdlatforms excluding our PayPal subsidiary. Payments segment includes our global
payments platform consisting of our PayPal subsjdihe Payments segment reflects the historicatatons of our former Billpoint subsidiary
and of PayPal’s operations for the periods subsgdgoeour acquisition of PayPal on October 3, 2002.completed our planned wind-down of
Billpoint in the first half of 2003.

Our net revenues result from fees associattdour transaction, advertising and other sewiceour U.S. Marketplace, International
Marketplace and Payments segments. Net transaet@mues are derived primarily from listing, featand final value fees paid by sellers and
fees from payment processing services. Net reveinoesadvertising are derived principally from thele of banner and sponsorship
advertisements for cash and through barter arraagesmOther non-transaction net revenues are dkpriacipally from contractual arrangements
with third parties that provide transaction sergite eBay and PayPal users and also from offlindces provided by our former Butterfields and
Kruse subsidiaries, which were divested in the sddwlf of 2002.

The successive year-over-year growth in @e¢mues from 2002 through 2004 was primarily tiselteof increased auction and fixed-price
transaction activity, reflected in the growth ir thumber of our confirmed registered users, uderityg listings, gross merchandise volume and
payment transactions processed by PayPal. Ouemehue growth during the year ended December 313 a3o reflects a full year of payment
transactions processed by PayPal, which we acqunr@dtober 2002.

eBay Marketplace Net Transaction Rever

Total net transaction revenues from the Erf8l International Marketplace segments in aggregateased 48% in 2004, 66% in 2003, and
73% in 2002, compared to the respective prior yEae. growth in both U.S. Marketplace and InternasidVarketplace segment net transaction
revenues was primarily the result of increasediandtansaction activity, reflected in the growthtlee number of registered users, active users,
listings and gross merchandise volume. Gross madiba volume from the U.S. and International Mapleate segments together increased 44%
in 2004 and 60% in both 2003 and 2002, compar¢ldet@espective prior year. U.S. and Internationaliétplace segment net transaction
revenues as a percentage of user gross merchandlisee was 7.3% for 2004, 7.1% for 2003, and 6.8%@2002. The increases in 2004 and 2003
reflected increased feature adoption and the impiagtir fee increases implemented in those yearaddition, there was gross merchandise
volume growth across all major categories, withrtfaors, clothing & accessories, consumer eleatsgrfiome & garden, books/movies/music,
sports, and computer categories having the mosifisignt dollar impact.

The number of active users on the eBay platfimcreased 36% during 2004 to 56.1 million at &aber 31, 2004. Active users increased 49%
during 2003 to 41.2 million at December 31, 2008nT 27.7 million at December 31, 2002. We belichat increases in user activity are largely
the result of our promotional efforts and our engihan helping our user community be successfoligin the introduction of new site features
and functionality and expanded trust and safetggams, in addition to our international expansion.
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The number of items listed on eBay'’s traditegforms increased 45% to 1.4 billion in 2004 nfr@71.0 million in 2003, and increased 52% in
2003 from 638.3 million in 2002. This percentagevgh in listings was experienced across our U.8, arore significantly, our international
platforms.

U.S. Marketplace Segme

U.S. Marketplace segment net transactionmese increased 31% in 2004, 43% in 2003, and 512002, compared to the respective prior
year. Gross merchandise volume from the U.S. Mpthe¢ segment increased 27% in 2004, and 41% i 206 2002, respectively. The
U.S. Marketplace is our largest and most develdpesihess. Net transaction revenues derived fronutBe Marketplace segment represented
42% of the total net transaction revenues in 200d.expect net transaction revenues from our U.Sk&tplace segment to increase in 2005, but
to decrease as a percentage of total eBay Marketplat transaction revenues as the Internationgkéfislace segment grows in significance. In
addition, even as the U.S. Marketplace segmenirogeg to grow in absolute terms, we expect its gnawte in 2005 to be lower than that of
2004.

International Marketplace Segme

International Marketplace segment net trati@acevenues increased 76% in 2004, 121% in 2808,168% in 2002, compared to the
respective prior year. International Marketplacgnsent net transaction revenues as a percentagéabhet transaction revenues was 36% in z
31% in 2003 and 27% in 2002. Gross merchandisenw®liiom the International Marketplace segment iaseel 70% in 2004, 102% in 2003, and
126% in 2002, compared to the respective prior.yiear 2004, the growth in our International Markatie segment net transaction revenues, both
in absolute terms and as a percentage of totataretaction revenues, was primarily the resultrfrgy performances in the United Kingdom and
South Korea and a solid performance in Germany.rélaive strength of foreign currencies againstthS. dollar resulted in increased net
revenues of approximately $117.0 million during 20@hen compared to the results if the weightedaye foreign currency exchange rates used
in the preparation of our 2003 consolidated finahstatements were used. Changes in foreign cyrmates will impact our operating results and,
to the extent that the U.S. dollar strengthens fagign currency denominated net revenues withégatively impacted. We expect that the grc
rates of our International Marketplace segmentstaation net revenues will continue to decline i020lthough we expect such revenues to grow
in significance relative to our total eBay Marketpt as we continue to develop and deploy our glohiate trading platform during 2005.

Payments Segment Net Transaction Reve

Payments segment net transaction revenuesaised 59% in 2004, 360% in 2003 and 452% in 28@Rpared to the respective prior year.
Payments segment net transaction revenues asenfage of total net transaction revenues was 212004, 20% in 2003, and 8% in 2002. The
growth in our Payments segment net transactiomrea® both in absolute terms and as a percentagéabhet transaction revenues is primarily
the result of increases in PayPal transaction veldniven primarily by the growth in the eBay Magate and, for 2003 and 2002, our acquisi
of PayPal in October 2002.

During 2004, over $18.9 billion in total pagnt volume was transacted on the PayPal platforaoaxpared to $12.2 billion during 2003. As
December 31, 2004, PayPal had 63.8 million accoentapared to 40.3 million accounts at Decembe803. Our Payments segment net
transaction revenues as a percentage of total patywokime was 3.6% in 2004 and 3.5% in 2003. Thsvgr in Payments net transaction
revenues was positively affected by PayPal’s coetihpenetration of eBay Marketplace transactioradlicountries, particularly in the United
States and the United Kingdom. Further, Paymerttgamesaction revenues have grown in connectioh thi¢ increase in our eBay Marketplace
gross merchandise volume during 2003 and 2004 rdlative strength of foreign currencies, primatig Euro, against the U.S. dollar and the
British pound, resulted in increased net revendiepproximately $12.9 million during 2004 when caamgd to the results if the weighted-average
foreign currency exchange rates used in the préparaf our 2003 consolidated financial statemewdse used.
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Net transaction revenues from the Paymempneat earned internationally totaled $207.6 millior2004 and $93.9 million in 2003,
representing 30.5% and 21.9% of total Payments sagmet transaction revenue, respectively. Chaimgiseign currency rates will impact our
operating results and, to the extent that the do8ar strengthens, our foreign currency denomuhaiet revenues will be negatively impacted. We
expect the Payments segment net transaction rege¢auecrease in total during 2005 and for netdeation revenues earned internationally to
increase in total and as a percentage of Paymehtsamsaction revenues. We also expect that thm&ats segment net transaction revenues will
increase as a percentage of total net transaaiamues in 2005.

Advertising and Other N¢-Transaction Net Revenu

Advertising and other non-transaction neeraes increased in total and as a percentageabfigttrevenues in 2004 as compared to 2003.
Advertising and other net revenues totaled $94IBamiin 2004, $52.9 million in 2003 and $105.1 leih in 2002. These amounts as a percentage
of total net revenues represented 3% in 2004, 22008 and 9% in 2002. We continue to view our bessnas primarily transaction driven and we
expect advertising and other net revenues to coatio represent a relatively small proportion ¢&koet revenues during 2005.

Cost of Net Revenues

Percent Percent
2002 Change 2003 Change 2004
(In thousands, except percentage:
Cost of net revenue $ 213,87¢ 95% $ 416,05¢ 48% $ 614,41!
As a percentage of net revent 17.€% 19.2% 18.8%

Cost of net revenues consists primarily agfts@ssociated with payment processing, site apasatand certain types of customer support.
Significant cost components include bank charges]iccard interchange, other payment processistscemployee compensation and facilities
costs for our customer support and site operatidgsreciation of equipment and amortization of nexflicapitalization of major site and product
development costs.

The increase in cost of net revenues durl@2vas primarily due to an increase in the volaigansactions on the PayPal and eBay
websites and continued development and expansioorafustomer support and site operations infragire. The decrease in cost of net revenues
as a percentage of net revenues was primarilyaleBay’s Marketplace’s site operations costs grgvéina slower rate than net revenues.
Payment processing costs increased to $305.1 miti@004 from $215.7 million in 2003, due to therease in PayPal’s total payment volume
and increased payment processing costs relatée tgrowth of our eBay Marketplace activity. Aggregaustomer support and site operations
costs increased $105.3 million during 2004, comghémethe prior year, and resulted primarily fromiacrease in headcount and related employee
costs and consultant costs of approximately $37lliomand increased facilities costs of approxietat$16.2 million. In addition, aggregate
depreciation of site equipment and amortizationayfitalized software development costs increaséd$8illion as compared to 2003. Costs of
net revenues are expected to increase in totalcadecrease slightly as a percentage of net regethugng 2005.

Cost of net revenues increased in total &éigttk/ as a percentage of net revenues in 200awpared to 2002. The increase in absolute
dollars was due to a full year of payment processivsts resulting from our acquisition of PayPaDictober 2002, an increase in the volume of
transactions on the eBay websites, and continueelg@ment and expansion of our customer suppors#aadperations infrastructure. The
increase in cost of net revenues as a percentaget ofvenues was primarily due to the impact gfFRdis higher structural costs relating to
payment processing offset, in part, by eBay’s @jterations costs growing at a slower rate thamevemnues. Payment processing costs, which
consist of credit card interchange fees, bank @samd other processing charges increased by apataty $94.9 million in 2003, reflecting the
full year of PayPal activity in 2003, the substahincrease in PayPaltotal payment volume and increased payment psoagsosts related to o
eBay fees. Aggregate customer support and siteatipes costs increased
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$80.0 million during 2003, compared to the prioayeand resulted primarily from an increase in lveadt and related employee costs of
approximately $26.5 million. In addition, aggregdtpreciation of site equipment and amortizationagfitalized software development costs
increased $21.5 million as compared to 2002.

Operating Expenses

Sales and Marketin

Percent Percent
2002 Change 2003 Change 2004
(In thousands, except percentage:
Sales and marketir $ 349,65( 62% $ 567,56! 51% $ 857,87:
As a percentage of net revent 28.8% 26.2% 26.2%

Sales and marketing expenses consist priynafrdidvertising, tradeshow and other promotiomeits, employee compensation for our category
development and marketing staff and certain trodtsafety programs.

Sales and marketing expenses increased ih, D00 remained consistent as a percentage ofrietakvenues due to our continued investment
in growing our user base and our development of media campaigns. Growth in advertising and manketiosts as well as employee-related
costs comprised the majority of the increases. Goetbadvertising and marketing costs increased 81®dlion in 2004, compared to the prior
year. This increase was primarily the result of ioternet marketing and domestic and internatioslalvision and radio advertising campaigns as
well as several category-focused print campaign®lByee-related costs increased by $68.4 milliodd@4 as we continued to expand our
domestic and international operations. Sales anteting expenses are expected to increase indothhs a percentage of net revenues during
2005. In addition, our 2005 online marketing exmpanwill likely increase both in total and slightlg a percentage of revenues because of
increases in the volume of online advertising thatexpect to purchase in order to attract new ocuste and increase the activity on our websites
including growth initiatives in sales and marketadivities in our U.S. and International Marketm@a, including China.

Sales and marketing expenses increased B, D00 decreased as a percentage of total netueseatue to cost efficiencies in our business and
the acquisition of PayPal, which has a significatdlver sales and marketing requirement as Pay&tadfiis from eBay customer acquisitions.
Growth in advertising and marketing costs as wekkmployee-related costs comprised the majorith@tollar increases. Combined advertising
and marketing costs increased $155.2 million inX2@3 compared to the prior year. This increasepsiagarily the result of our marketing
programs directed towards our internet marketirgy rsational television advertising campaigns as aglbeveral category-focused print
campaigns. Employee-related costs increased by $8illion in 2003 as we continued to expand ouelinational operations.

Product Developmet

Percent Percent
2002 Change 2003 Change 2004
(In thousands, except percentage:
Product developmel $ 104,63t 52% $ 159,31! 51% $ 240,64
As a percentage of net reveni 8.6% 7.4% 7.4%

Product development expenses consist priynafiemployee compensation, consultant costs,ifi@silcosts and depreciation on equipment
used for development. Product development expeargeset of required capitalization of major sitel ather product development efforts,
including the development of our “V3” platform aitgtture, migration of certain platforms, globalibg, seller tools and payment gateway
projects. These capitalized costs totaled $41.8amiin 2004, $38.5 million in 2003 and $15.5 nahiin 2002, and are reflected as a cost of net
revenues when amortized in future periods. We gatie that we will continue to devote significaesources to product development in the future
as we add new features and functionality to theyeBBal PayPal platforms.
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The increase in product development expeims2804, as compared to the prior year, was prig#re result of increased headcount and
consultant costs. The headcount growth was focarddring new employees for various platform depebent initiatives at eBay and PayPal in
addition to our international expansion of bothtfolans. Our development staff increased approxitya8% from approximately 1,000 at
December 31, 2003 to approximately 1,500 at Dece®be2004. In addition, our consultant costs iasesl by approximately $13.4 million.
Product development expenses are expected to sechedotal and may increase slightly as a pergentd net revenues in 2005, as we develop
new site features and functionality and continuerprove and expand operations across all our setmirecluding the U.S. Marketplace, China,
and PayPal Merchant Services.

The increase in product development expeims2803, as compared to the prior year, was prig#re result of increased headcount and
computer equipment depreciation. These increases paetially offset by the amounts capitalized amigection with major site and other product
development efforts in 2003. The headcount growdk fecused on hiring new employees for varioudqliat development initiatives at eBay a
PayPal. Our product development employees increageximately 59% from approximately 600 at Deceni, 2002 to approximately 1,000
at December 31, 2003.

General and Administrativ

Percent Percent
2002 Change 2003 Change 2004
(In thousands, except percentage:
General and administrati $ 171,78 76% $ 302,70: 3% $ 415,72
As a percentage of net revent 14.1% 14.(% 12.7%

General and administrative expenses consisgpily of employee compensation, provisions famsaction losses associated with our
Payments segment, depreciation of equipment, goowvfsr doubtful accounts, insurance and professifees.

General and administrative expenses increiasedal, but decreased as a percentage of nehums in 2004, as compared to the prior year.
The dollar increase was due primarily to employdated costs, fees for external professional adsjsocluding Sarbanes-Oxley compliance
costs, and payment transaction loss expensesntheases in employee related costs resulted fromtgrin the finance, human resource and
legal departments to meet the demands of our expgbdisiness, including growing international opierss, increased regulatory demands, and
the integration of acquired businesses. We inctkage general and administrative employees front@pmately 1,900 at December 31, 2003 to
approximately 2,700 at December 31, 2004. Thiseiase related primarily to the addition of employieesur eBay trust and safety functions.
Consultant and employee related costs increasegpsoximately $53.8 million during 2004 as compaiethe prior year. PayPal’'s payment
transaction loss increased by approximately $14llilom to $50.5 million at December 31, 2004, exfling the increase in activity in the Paym
segment in addition to the expansion of our Paf®Ragkr Protection Program. PayPal’'s payment traimatss rate, which is the transaction loss
expense as a percentage of PayPal’s total paym&mhe, was 0.27% in 2004 compared to 0.30% in 2088.decrease in this percentage from
2003 to 2004 was offset in part by the increasmirerage for our PayPal Buyer Protection Prograiith \dur continued investment, primarily in
the expansion in our Marketplace and Payments seigmend related corporate functions, we expectgémand administrative expenses to
increase during 2005.

The increase in general and administratiygeages in 2003 was due primarily to employee adititfes related costs, fees for external
professional advisors, payment transaction losgmsgs resulting from our acquisition of PayPal @marges associated with various legal mat
The increases in employee and facilities relatedscesulted from the addition of PayPal employeesrious trust and safety functions as wel
continued headcount growth in the finance, humaouee and legal departments to meet the demarals ekpanding business, including
growing international operations and the integratb acquired businesses. We increased our geaedahdministrative staff from approximately
1,300 at December 31, 2002 to approximately 1,9@eaember 31, 2003. Fees for external professiadwkors increased by $10.4 mil-
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lion. Charges associated with various legal matecerded in general and administrative expensdet$8.6 million. PayPal’'s payment
transaction loss increased $28.6 million in 20@8erting a full year of consolidated operations.

In February 2004, we began migrating eBaysugem our legacy billing system to a newly implemted billing system. As we managed this
migration, we delayed billing cycles to facilitdtee migration process and to allow additional tiorequality assurance reviews. The delay in
billing cycles continued for the remainder of treay and resulted in an increase in the averagealaysustomer account balances were
outstanding. Although we believe this change imacot balance aging is a temporary condition, ostohnical experience indicates an increased
risk of collection for aged accounts receivableabaks. Accordingly, our provision for doubtful aoots during the year ended December 31, .
increased to a total of $85.4 million, or 2.6% ef revenues, compared to $44.3 million, or 2.0%edfrevenues, during the year ended
December 31, 2003. The allowance for doubtful ant®receivable at December 31, 2004 was $67.9amilli

Patent Litigation Expens

Percent Percent
2002 Change 2003 Change 2004
(In thousands, except percentage:
Patent litigation expens $ — N/A $ 29,96¢ N/A $ —
As a percentage of net revent N/A 1.4% N/A

Patent litigation expense during 2003 relédethe accrual of an August 6, 2003 court judgimesulting from the MercExchange patent
infringement lawsuit. See “Note 10 — Commitmentd &ontingencies” to our consolidated financialexta¢nts included elsewhere in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Payroll Tax on Employee Stock Optic

Percent Percent
2002 Change 2003 Change 2004
(In thousands, except percentage:
Payroll tax on employee stock optic $ 4,01¢ 13¢%  $ 9,59( 82% $ 17,47¢
As a percentage of net revent 0.3% 0.4% 0.5%

We are subject to employer payroll taxes mpleyee gains from the exercise of non-qualifiextktoptions. These employer payroll taxes are
recorded as a charge to operations in the periadhioh such options are exercised and sold baseattoal gains realized by employees. The
increases in 2004 and 2003 as compared to theatégperior years were primarily a result of largedividual gains recognized on stock option
exercises by our employees during periods in whiahstock price was high relative to historic lesvéur results of operations and cash flows
could vary significantly depending on the actuaiqethat stock options are exercised by emplogegs consequently, the amount of employer
payroll taxes assessed. In general, we expect bagxes on employee stock option gains to increhséng periods in which our stock price is
high relative to historic levels.

Amortization of Acquired Intangible Ass

Percent Percent
2002 Change 2003 Change 2004
(In thousands, except percentage:
Amortization of acquired intangible ass $ 15,94! 21&%  $ 50,65¢ 3% $ 65,927
As a percentage of net revent 1.3% 2.2% 2.C%

From time to time we have purchased, andxpe to continue purchasing, assets or businéssecelerate category and geographic
expansion, increase the features, functions, amddis available to our users and maintain a leadilegin online trading. These purchase
transactions generally result in the creation gfuéred intangible assets and lead to a correspgridorease in the amortization expense in future
periods.
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Intangible assets include purchased custdisterand user base, trademarks and trade namespgded technologies, and other intangible
assets. We amortize intangible assets, excludingwill, using the straight-line method over estigthtiseful lives ranging from one to eight
years.

Goodwill represents the excess of the pueipgise over the fair value of the net tangible aahtifiable intangible assets acquired in a
business combination. Goodwill is subject to astem annual assessment for impairment, applyfiag-alue based test. We evaluate goodwill,
at a minimum, on an annual basis and whenever wat changes in circumstances suggest that théngpamount may not be recoverable.
Impairment of goodwill is tested at the reportingtuevel by comparing the reporting unit's carrgiamount, including goodwill, to the fair value
of the reporting unit. The fair values of the repag units are estimated using a combination ofitikeme, or discounted cash flows, approach and
the market approach, which utilizes comparable aigs’ data. If the carrying amount of the repgrtimit exceeds its fair value, goodwill is
considered impaired and a second step is perfotmetbasure the amount of impairment loss, if any. @nual impairment test was carried out
as of August 31, 2004 and we determined that tiwaieno impairment. There were no events or circantgts from that date through
December 31, 2004 that would impact this assessment

We expect amortization of acquired intangémsets will increase in 2005 as a result of thengible assets associated with our acquisitions of
mobile.de and Marktplaats.nl, as well as our addél investment in Internet Auction during 2004 and recent acquisition of Rent.com.
Amortization of acquired intangible assets willaiscrease should we make additional acquisitiartee future.

Non-Operating Items

Interest and Other Income, N

Percent Percent
2002 Change 2003 Change 2004
(In thousands, except percentage:
Interest and other income, r $ 49,20¢ 29% $ 37,80: 106% $ 77,867
As a percentage of net revent 4.1% 1.7% 2.4%

Interest and other income, net consists pilynaf interest earned on cash, cash equivalendsimvestments as well as foreign exchange
transaction gains and losses and other non-opgratinsactions.

Our interest and other income, net incre@sédtal and as a percentage of net revenues d@ffg as compared to the prior year, primarily as
a result of gains from the sale of an equity innestt and amendments to certain sublease agreertreatidition, we recorded increased interest
income primarily due to higher investment balanees] increased cash and cash equivalents baldrfuesveighted-average interest rate of our
portfolio increased to 1.7% in 2004 from 1.6% iM30We expect that interest and other income wiéitremain generally comparable in total to
2004 during 2005.

Our interest and other income, net decreastatal and as a percentage of net revenues dafog, primarily as a result of one-time gains
recognized in 2002 from the sale of certain subsié$, real estate properties and an equity inverstthat totaled $20.3 million. This decrease
offset, in part, by increased investment income derger aggregate balance of cash, cash equisaedtinvestments even though the weighted-
average interest rate of our portfolio declined #% in 2003 from 2.8% in 2002.

Interest Expens

Percent Percent
2002 Change 2003 Change 2004
(In thousands, except percentage:
Interest expens $ 1,492 18¢%  $ 4,31« 106% $ 8,87¢
As a percentage of net revent 0.1% 0.2% 0.3%

Interest expense consists of interest chavgesur consolidated lease arrangement relatedrt®an Jose headquarters office facilities, capital
leases, and mortgage notes.
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In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46, “S&idation of Variable Interest Entities.” In acdance with the provisions of this standard, we
have included our San Jose headquarters leas@eamant in our consolidated financial statementscgiffe July 1, 2003. Beginning July 1, 2003,
our consolidated statement of income reflects ¢otassification of lease payments on our San Jeadduarters office facilities from operating
expense to interest expense. The increase in gtexpense during 2003, compared to the prior yeas,primarily the result of the inclusion of
interest payments on our San Jose headquartecs €dfiilities. The increase in interest expensendu2004 is primarily the result of the inclusion
of these interest payments for a full year in 2004. expect our interest expense will decrease inatttal and as a percentage of net revenue
during 2005 due to the acquisition of the San Jesalquarters office facilities at the expiratiorttaf lease arrangement on March 1, 2005.

Impairment of Certain Equity Investmel

Percent Percent
2002 Change 2003 Change 2004
(In thousands, except percentage:
Impairment of certain equity investmel $ 3,781 6®N% $ 1,23( N/A $ —
As a percentage of net reveni 0.2% 0.1% N/A

During 2003 and 2002, we recorded impairnodiarges totaling $1.2 million and $3.8 million, pestively, as a result of the deterioration of
the financial condition of certain of our privatedapublic equity investees. We identified theseaimpent losses as part of our normal process of
assessing the quality of our investment portfdliee impairment loss reflects a decline in fair @afund other market conditions that we believe
other than temporary. We expect that the fair valueur equity investments will fluctuate from tinetime and future impairment assessments
may result in additional charges to our operategguts. We did not record any impairment of ouriggavestments during 2004.

Provision for Income Taxe

Percent Percent
2002 Change 2003 Change 2004
(In thousands, except percentage:
Provision for income taxe $ 145,94¢ 42% $ 206,73¢ 66% $ 343,88
As a percentage of net revent 12.% 9.5% 10.5%
Effective tax rate 37% 32% 30%

The provision for income taxes differs frome tamount computed by applying the statutory UeBeffal rate principally due to non-deductible
expenses related to acquisitions, state taxesidsatyslosses for which we have not provided a fieaed other factors that increase the effective
tax rate. These expenses are partially offset loyedses resulting from foreign income with lowdeetive tax rates, tax credits, and tax-exempt
interest income.

The lower effective tax rates in 2004 and286 compared to the respective prior years retifiecincreasing profit contribution from our
international operations that are subject to lotagrates.

We receive tax deductions from the gainszedlby employees on the exercise of certain naiHipd stock options for which the benefit is
recognized as a component of stockholders’ eqW .have evaluated our deferred tax assets relaitigese stock option deductions along with
our other deferred tax assets and concluded thaltiation allowance is required for that portiortlod total deferred tax assets that is not
considered more likely than not to be realizedutuife periods. To the extent that the deferredatsets with a full valuation allowance become
realizable in future periods, we will have the @pilsubject to carryforward limitations, to use 1p$158.6 million of deferred tax assets to reduce
future income tax liabilities. Should a valuatidloaance no longer be required, the reversal ofvidaation allowance will be reflected as an
increase in additional paid-in capital rather thareduction of the income tax provision.
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Minority Interests

Percent Percent
2002 Change 2003 Change 2004
(In thousands, except percentage:
Minority interests $ (2,29 230% $ (7,579 19% $ (6,127
As a percentage of net revent 0.2% 0.4% 0.2%

Minority interests represents the minorityastors’ percentage share of income or losses $usidiaries in which we hold a majority
ownership interest and consolidate the subsidiamssilts in our financial statements. Third partieeld minority interests in various of our
subsidiaries during 2004, 2003 and 2002.

The change in minority interests in 2004 ue @rimarily to our acquisition of an additional. 3% ownership interest in Internet Auction.

The change in minority interests in 2003 @ity resulted from the minority interesfgortion of the net income generated by Internettionc

Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Princi

In accordance with the provisions of FIN 4Bonsolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” wave included our San Jose headquarters lease
arrangement in our consolidated financial statemeffective July 1, 2003. Our consolidated statedroémcome for the year ended December 31,
2003 reflects the reclassification of lease paymentour San Jose headquarters from operating s@perinterest expense, beginning with the
quarters following our adoption of FIN 46 on July2D03, a $5.4 million after-tax charge for cumatdepreciation for periods from lease
inception through June 30, 2003, and incrementaledgation expense of approximately $400,000, hé&dxq per quarter for periods after June 30,
2003. We have adopted the provisions of FIN 46geogvely from July 1, 2003, and as a result, hasterestated prior periods. The cumulative
effect of the change in accounting principle agsirom the adoption of FIN 46 has been reflectedghincome in 2003.

Impact of Foreign Currency Translatic

During 2004, our international net revendmsed upon the country in which the seller, paymexipient, advertiser or other service provider
is located, accounted for approximately 42% of@ansolidated net revenues, as compared to 35%rafaiuevenues in 2003 and 26% of our net
revenues in 2002. The growth in our internatiorm@rations has increased our exposure to foreigremcy fluctuations. Net revenues and related
expenses generated from international locationslememinated in the functional currencies of ttealaountries, and include Euros, British
pounds, Korean won, Canadian dollars, Taiwanedardphnd Australian dollars. The results of ogerst and certain of our inter-company
balances associated with our international locateme exposed to foreign exchange rate fluctuatibims statements of income of our internatic
operations are translated into U.S. dollars abtrerage exchange rates in each applicable per@mthelextent the U.S. dollar weakens against
foreign currencies, the translation of these faraigrrency denominated transactions results ireas®d consolidated net revenues, operating
expenses and net income. Similarly, our consoltiatg revenues, operating expenses and net incdlirdearease when the U.S. dollar
strengthens against foreign currencies.

During 2004, the U.S. dollar weakened agatmstforeign currencies listed above. Using theghid-average foreign currency exchange rates
from 2003, our net revenues for 2004 would havenbbewer than we reported using the actual exchaatgs for 2004 by approximately
$129.9 million, of which $117.0 million and $12.9llion relate to our International Marketplace @hdyments segments, respectively. In addi
if the weighted-average foreign currency excharmgesrfrom 2003 were applied to our cost of revemesoperating expenses for 2004, these
costs of revenues and operating expenses wouldldearelower in total than we reported using theaatxchange rates for 2004 by
approximately $58.4 million. The majority of thimpact relates to the relative strength of the Egainst the U.S. dollar.
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We expect our international operations walhttnue to grow in significance as we develop aaplaly our global marketplace and global
payments platform. As a result, the impact of fgnecurrency fluctuations in future periods coulddmme more significant and may have a
negative impact on our consolidated net revenudsiahincome. See the information in Item 7A urdkareign Currency Risk” for additional
discussion of the impact of foreign currency tratish and related hedging activities.

Foreign Exchange Hedging Poli

We are a rapidly growing company, with arré@asing proportion of our operations outside théddinStates. Accordingly, our foreign
currency exposures have increased substantiallpendxpected to continue to grow. The objectivewfforeign exchange exposure managel
program is to identify material foreign currencypegures and to manage these exposures to minihezsotential effects of currency fluctuations
on our reported consolidated cash flows, and residloperations.

Our primary foreign currency exposures aaagaction, economic and translation:

Transaction ExposuréAround the world, we have certain assets and ltas| primarily receivables, investments and actspayable
(including inter-company transactions) that areasheimated in currencies other than the relevantyéstiunctional currency. In certain
circumstances, changes in the functional curremdyevof these assets and liabilities create fluinga in our reported consolidated financial
position, results of operations and cash flows.iMé&y enter into foreign exchange forward contractstioer instruments to minimize the short-
term foreign currency fluctuations on such assetsliabilities. The gains and losses on the fora@gohange forward contracts offset the
transaction gains and losses on certain foreigrenay receivables, investments and payables repedtin earnings.

Economic ExposurdlVe also have anticipated and unrecognized futusk flaws, including revenues and expenses, dendedna currencie
other than the relevant entity’s functional curnger@ur primary economic exposures include futugeahy receivables, customer collections, and
vendor payments. Changes in the relevant entityistfonal currency value will cause fluctuationghe cash flows we expect to receive when
these cash flows are realized or settled. We mtgr @mto foreign exchange forward contracts or otlerivatives to hedge the value of a portio
these cash flows. We account for these foreigna@xgé contracts as cash flow hedges. The effectistéop of the derivative’s gain or loss is
initially reported as a component of accumulatdeptomprehensive income (loss) and subsequemdtlyssfied into earnings when the
transaction is settled.

Earnings Translation Exposurés our international operations grow, fluctuatiamshe foreign currencies create volatility in aaported
results of operations because we are requiredrtsatiolate the results of operations of our foraignominated subsidiaries. We may decide to
purchase forward exchange contracts or other imetnts to offset the earnings impact of currencgtélations. Such contracts will be marked-to-
market on a monthly basis and any unrealized galoss recorded in interest and other income, net.

Employee Stock Optiol

We continue to believe that employee stodioop represent an appropriate and essential coempar our overall compensation program.
grant options to substantially all employees arikbe that this broad-based program helps us taciftmotivate, and retain high quality
employees, to the ultimate benefit of our stockbodd Stock options granted during the year endemt@ber 31, 2004 and 2003, net of
cancellations, represented approximately 3% oftatai outstanding common stock at December 31, 20042003, a substantial portion of which
was granted to new employees. We expect that ook siption grants, net of cancellations, for 200 represent approximately 2% of our total
outstanding common stock at December 31, 2005.
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Recent Accounting Pronounceme
Share-Based Paymen

In December 2004, the FASB issued Statemfefitnancial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revise@4), “Share-Based
Payment” (FAS 123R) that addresses the accountinghfare-based payment transactions in which arpige receives employee services in
exchange for either equity instruments of the gmige or liabilities that are based on the faiueabf the enterprise’s equity instruments or that
may be settled by the issuance of such equityunstnts. The statement eliminates the ability tmantfor shardsased compensation transacti
using the intrinsic value method as prescribed bgointing Principles Board, or APB, Opinion No. 2&¢counting for Stock Issued to
Employees,” and generally requires that such traitsss be accounted for using a fair-value-basethateand recognized as expenses in our
consolidated statement of income. The statemeninegicompanies to assess the most appropriatel toockculate the value of the options. We
currently use the Black-Scholes option pricing mdadesalue options and are currently assessing lwhiodel we may use in the future under the
statement and may deem an alternative model tbebmbst appropriate. The use of a different manlghtue options may result in a different fair
value than the use of the Bla8choles option pricing model. In addition, there amumber of other requirements under the nevdatdrthat will
result in differing accounting treatment than cotherequired. These differences include, but arelimited to, the accounting for the tax benefit
on employee stock options and for stock issued wadeemployee stock purchase plan. In additiotihvéoappropriate fair value model to be used
for valuing share-based payments, we will alsodupiired to determine the transition method to lexl g date of adoption. The allowed transition
methods include prospective and retroactive adopifitions. Under the retroactive options, prioligas may be restated either as of the begir
of the year of adoption or for all periods presdnfehe prospective method requires that compensatipense be recorded for all unvested stock
options and restricted stock at the beginning effifst quarter of adoption of FAS 123R, while te&oactive methods would record compense
expense for all unvested stock options and resttistock beginning with the first period restafBge effective date of the new standard for our
consolidated financial statements is our thirddisguarter in 2005.

Upon adoption, this statement will have andigant impact on our consolidated financial stagats as we will be required to expense the fair
value of our stock option grants and stock purchaseler our employee stock purchase plan rathardisalose the impact on our consolidated
net income within our footnotes as is our currelactice (see Note 1 of the notes of the consoliiitencial statements contained herein). The
amounts disclosed within our footnotes are not seaely indicative of the amounts that will be exped upon the adoption of FAS 123R.
Compensation expense calculated under FAS 123Rdiffay from amounts currently disclosed within daotnotes based on changes in the fair
value of our common stock, changes in the numbeptibns granted or the terms of such optionstriegment of tax benefits and changes in
interest rates or other factors. In addition, updoption of FAS 123R we may choose to use a differaluation model to value the compensation
expense associated with employee stock options.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS N8, 1bxchanges of Nonmonetary Assets — An AmendneéitPB Opinion No. 29,
Accounting for Nonmonetary Transactions” (SFAS 158 AS 153 eliminates the exception from fair valueasurement for nonmonetary
exchanges of similar productive assets in paraggdjph) of APB Opinion No. 29, “Accounting for Nonmetary Transactions,” and replaces it
with an exception for exchanges that do not havenaercial substance. SFAS 153 specifies that a nortaoy exchange has commercial
substance if the future cash flows of the entity expected to change significantly as a resubhefetxchange. This standard is effective for fiscal
periods beginning after June 15, 2005. We are otlyrevaluating the effect that the adoption of =263 will have on our consolidated staten
of income and financial condition.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31
2002 2003 2004
(In thousands)

Consolidated Cash Flow Data
Net cash provided by (used il

Operating activitie: $  479,90: $ 874,11¢ $ 1,285,31!
Investing activities (157,759 (1,319,54) (2,013,221
Financing activitie: 252,06° 688,86t 647,66¢
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equis: 11,13: 28,751 28,76¢
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis. $ 585,34 $ 272,20( $ (51,469

We have generated annual cash provided bsatipg activities in amounts greater than net inedm2004, 2003 and 2002. This result was
driven mainly by non-cash charges to earnings. blsh charges to earnings included depreciatioraaradtization on our long-term assets, tax
benefits on the exercise of employee stock optieaslting from our increasing stock price and #lated increases in the personal gains
recognized by our employees, provision for doukdftdounts and authorized credits resulting fromeasing revenues and the provision for
transaction losses resulting from increased taghent volumes processed by our PayPal subsidim®003 and 2002, operating cash flows v
also positively impacted by the net cash amourdsiged by year-over-year changes in working capitslets and liabilities.

The net cash used in investing activitie2004, 2003 and 2002 reflected primarily the movenoécash and cash equivalents between cash
and cash equivalents and investments, the purafgseperty and equipment, and acquisitions. Pugebaf property and equipment, net totaled
$292.8 million in 2004, $365.4 million in 2003, afdi38.7 million in 2002. Purchases of property agdipment in 2004 and 2002 related mainly
to purchases of computer equipment and softwasepport our site operations, customer support atedriational expansion. In 2003, purchases
of property and equipment included the $125.1 millpurchase of additional office space in San Joa#fornia. Purchases of property and
equipment in 2003 also included amounts for impnoests to various facilities in the U.S. and arothrelworld as well as computer equipment
and software to support our site operations, cust@upport and international expansion. Cash exgukfat acquisitions, net of cash acquired,
totaled approximately $1.0 billion in 2004, $216élion in 2003 and $59.4 million in 2002. In 2003yr cash acquisitions included the
acquisition of mobile.de, Baazee.com, and Marktglay as well as an additional ownership inteie$tternet Auction Co. Our cash acquisitions
in 2003 included acquiring the remaining ownershtprest in EachNet and an additional ownershigregt in Internet Auction Co. Our cash
acquisitions in 2002 included acquiring the remagndwnership interest in our Billpoint subsidiandaa 38% interest in EachNet, located in
China. We completed our acquisition of PayPal duéi02 through the exchange of our common stocké&yPal’s then outstanding common
stock.

The net cash flows provided by financing\atiés in 2004, 2003 and 2002 were due primarilpitoceeds from stock option exercises.
Proceeds from stock option exercises totaled $65dl®n in 2004, $700.8 million in 2003, and $232nillion in 2002. Our future cash flows
from stock options are difficult to project as swrhounts are a function of our stock price, the Imenof options outstanding and the decisions by
employees to exercise stock options. In generakxpect proceeds from stock option exercises tease during periods in which our stock price
has increased relative to historical levels.

The positive effect of exchange rates on eashcash equivalents during 2004, 2003, and 2G#2due to the weakening of the U.S. dollar
against other foreign currencies, primarily thedzur

We believe that existing cash, cash equitaland investments, together with any cash gertefade operations, will be sufficient to fund ¢
operating activities, capital expenditures and otimigations for the

34




Table of Contents

foreseeable future. However, if during that peodhereafter we are not successful in generatifficient cash flows from operations or in
raising additional capital when required in suffici amounts and on terms acceptable to us, oundasscould suffer.

We expect capital expenditures to amounetwben $340 million and $400 million during 2005theut taking into account any acquisitions
or the $126 million associated with the purchaseuwfSan Jose headquarters facility. On Februarg@35, we paid $415 million, net of
Rent.com’s cash on hand, to acquire all of thetanting securities of Rent.com. See “Subsequemt&Vevithin this section for further details.

Commitments and Contingencies

We have certain fixed contractual obligatiansl commitments that include future estimated pays Changes in our business needs,
cancellation provisions, changing interest ratas, @her factors may result in actual paymentsdiffy from the estimates. We cannot provide
certainty regarding the timing and amounts of payimeWe have presented below a summary of the sigisificant assumptions used in our
determination of amounts presented in the talbhesrder to assist in the review of this informatieithin the context of our consolidated financial
position, results of operations, and cash flows fdllowing table summarizes our fixed contractlaligations and commitments (in thousands):

Other
Payment Due By Year Ending Capital Operating Purchase
December 31 Leases Leases Obligations Total

2005 $ 128,16« $ 19,987 $ 397,17¢ $ 545,32
2006 75 15,52: 64,50¢ 80,10z
2007 — 11,23¢ 12,35¢ 23,59
2008 — 9,371 2,95¢ 12,32¢
2009 — 7,43¢ — 7,43¢
Thereaftel — 26,634 — 26,634

$ 128,23¢ $ 90,187 $ 476,99. $ 695,41

Capital lease amounts primarily comprisesadsumed purchase of the corporate headquart8emidose, California, in March 2005, when
lease is scheduled to expire, and includes the®8li®n in relation to the non-controlling minoyiinterest. See “Note 8 — Long-Term
Obligations” in the notes to the consolidated fitiahstatements, included elsewhere in this AniReglort on Form 10-K.

Operating lease amounts include minimum tgragments under our non-cancelable operating ¢efaseoffice facilities, as well as limited
computer and office equipment that we utilize uridase arrangements. The amounts presented arieteahsvith contractual terms and are not
expected to differ significantly, unless a substdrhange in our headcount needs requires usitaexffice facility early or expand our occup
space.

Other purchase obligation amounts includeimmiirm purchase commitments for advertising, competgripment, software applications, a
corporate airplane, engineering development ses\aoel other goods and services that were entet@thiough our ordinary course of business.
For those contractual arrangements in which thexeignificant performance requirements, we haweliped estimates to project expected
payment obligations. These estimates have beenapmdbased upon historical trends, when availald,our anticipated future obligations.
Given the significance of such performance requ@ets within our advertising and other arrangemexttial payments could differ significantly
from these estimates.

Other Financial Arrangements

As of December 31, 2004, we had no off-badasiteet arrangements that are reasonably likdige, a future material effect on our
consolidated financial condition, results of opienas, liquidity, capital expenditures or capitadoarces.
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Indemnification Provision

In the ordinary course of business we hackided limited indemnification provisions in certaif our agreements with parties with whom we
have commercial relations, including our standaedketing, promotions and application-programminigiiface license agreements. Under these
contracts, we generally indemnify, hold harmlessl agree to reimburse the indemnified party fosésssuffered or incurred by the indemnified
party in connection with claims by any third pawtith respect to our domain names, trademarks, lagdsother branding elements to the extent
that such marks are applicable to our performamcieuthe subject agreement. In a limited numbegoéements, including agreements under
which we have developed technology for certain cemuial parties, we have provided an indemnity fibveo types of third-party claims,
substantially all of which are indemnities relatecdur copyrights, trademarks, and patents. To, dateignificant costs have been incurred, either
individually or collectively, in connection with oindemnification provisions.

Subsequent Event

On February 23, 2005, we acquired all outditemsecurities of Rent.com for approximately $4dilion plus our acquisition costs, net of
Rent.com’s cash on hand. Rent.com is a leadingrietdisting website in the apartment and rentaidirog industry.

In January 2005, our Board of Directors apptba two-for-one split of our shares of commortlstm be issued in the form of a stock
dividend. As a result of the stock split, our stiecklers received one additional share of our comsatock for each share of common stock held of
record on January 31, 2005. The additional sha@rearoccommon stock were distributed on February2D®5. All share and per share amounts in
this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Fimgr€ondition and Results of Operations have be#mactively adjusted to reflect the stock
split for all periods presented.

Critical Accounting Policies, Judgments and Estimags
General

The preparation of our consolidated finanstatements and related notes requires us to makgenents, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, reeeand expenses, and related disclosure of contirgsets and liabilities. We have based our
estimates on historical experience and on varitlisr@assumptions that are believed to be reasonabler the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis for making judgments about the éagryalues of assets and liabilities that are eatlily apparent from other sources. Our senior
management has discussed the development, selaatibdisclosure of these estimates with the Audin@®ittee of our Board of Directors. Acti
results may differ from these estimates under diffeassumptions or conditions.

An accounting policy is considered to beicaitif it requires an accounting estimate to balsmbased on assumptions about matters that are
highly uncertain at the time the estimate is maae, if different estimates that reasonably coulkhaeen used, or changes in the accounting
estimates that are reasonably likely to occur piécadly, could materially impact the consolidat@sbicial statements. We believe the following
critical accounting policies reflect the more sfg@nt estimates and assumptions used in the m#parof the consolidated financial statements.
The following descriptions of critical accountingligies, judgments and estimates should be readrnjunction with our consolidated financial
statements and other disclosures included in épsrt.
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Provisions for Doubtful Accounts and Authorized Cdtigs

Our U.S. Marketplace and International Mapkeate segments are exposed to losses due to wtiméeaccounts and credits to sellers.
Provisions for these items represent our estimiéetoal losses and credits based on our histogiga¢rience, are monitored monthly, and are
made at the time the related revenue is recognieel provision for doubtful accounts is recorded abarge to operating expense, while the
authorized credits are recorded as a reductioewarues. The following table illustrates the primrisrelated to doubtful accounts and authorized
credits as a percentage of net revenues for 2B, 2nd 2004 (in thousands, except percentages).

Years Ended December 31

2002 2003 2004
Net revenues from the U.S. and International Maleee segment $ 1,118,73 $ 1,727,417 $ 2,573,60
Provision for doubtful accounts and authorized itse $ 25,45t $ 46,04¢ $ 90,94:
Provision for doubtful accounts and authorized itseak a % of net revenues from
the U.S. and International Marketplace segm 2.28% 2.61% 3.52%

Historically, our actual losses and credasdibeen consistent with these provisions. Howeduarre changes in trends could result in a
material impact to future consolidated statemehtsame and cash flows. Based on our resultsHeryear ended December 31, 2004, a 25 basis
point deviation from our estimates would have regliin an increase or decrease in operating inafrapproximately $6.4 million. The followir
analysis demonstrates, for illustrative purposédg,dhe potential effect a 25 basis point deviatimm our estimates would have upon our
consolidated financial statements and is not irédrtd provide a range of exposure or expected tiemiéin thousands, except per share data):

-25 Basis +25 Basis
Points 2004 Points
Income from operating impact related to doubtfidamts and authorized cred $ 84,50¢ $ 90,94 $ 97,37¢
Income from operation 1,065,671 1,059,24. 1,052,80:i
Net income 784,65 778,22: 771,78¢
Diluted earnings per sha $ 0.57 $ 0.57 $ 0.5¢

Provision for Transaction Losse

Our Payments segment is exposed to transdcoiises due to credit card and other payment misisswell as non-performance of sellers who
accept payment through PayPal. We establish alloesafor estimated losses arising from processistpouer transactions, such as charge-backs
for unauthorized credit card use and merchantedlaharge-backs due to non-delivery of goods atices, ACH returns, and debit card
overdrafts. These allowances represent an accuonlaftthe estimated amounts, using an actuariairtigue, necessary to provide for transaction
losses incurred as of the reporting date, includimge of which we have not yet been notified. alh@wvances are monitored monthly and are
updated based on actual claims data reported bglaians processors. The allowances are based omrkfarts and circumstances, internal fac
including our experience with similar cases, hisdrtrends involving loss payment patterns andntive of transaction and loss types. The
provision for transaction loss expense is refleeea@ general and administrative expense in owddiolated statement of income. As of
December 31, 2004, the transaction loss reseratetb$11.0 million and was included in accrued esps and other current liabilities in our
consolidated balance sheet.
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The following table illustrates the provisifor transaction loss expense as a percentageabfpmyment volume from PayPal operations fol
period from October 3, 2002 (date of acquisitiorPaf/Pal) through December 31, 2002 and for thesyeaded December 31, 2003 and 2004 (in
thousands, except percentages).

Period from
October 3, 2002
through Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 200: December 31, 200: December 31, 200
Total payment volum $ 2,138,00! $ 12,226,00 $ 18,915,00
Transaction loss expen $ 7,832 $ 36,40: $ 50,45¢
As a % of total payment volur 0.3% 0.3(% 0.27%

The establishment of appropriate allowanoesransaction losses is an inherently uncertaiegss, and ultimate losses may vary from the
current estimates. We regularly update our allowastimates as new facts become known and everus i@t may impact the settlement or
recovery of losses. The allowances are maintaihadevel we deem appropriate to adequately profadésses incurred at the balance sheet
Based on our results for the year ended Decemhe208Y4, a five basis point deviation from our esties would have resulted in an increase or
decrease in our operating expenses of approxim@&g§/ million. The following analysis demonstratis, illustrative purposes only, the potential
effect a five basis point deviation from our estiesawould have upon our consolidated financiakst&nts for the year ended December 31, 2004
and is not intended to provide a range of exposuexpected deviation (in thousands, except paestiaa):

-5 Basis +5 Basis

Points 2004 Points
Transaction loss expen $ 41,00: $ 50,45¢ $ 59,91¢
Income from operation 1,068,69: 1,059,24. 1,049,78!
Net income 787,67¢ 778,22: 768,76
Diluted earnings per sha $ 0.5¢ $ 0.57 $ 0.5¢

Legal Contingencie:

In connection with certain pending litigatiand other claims, we have estimated the rangeotigble loss and provided for such losses
through charges to our consolidated statementoofnie. These estimates have been based on ourrasséss the facts and circumstances at «
balance sheet date and are subject to change bpsedew information and future events.

From time to time, we are involved in dismuteat arise in the ordinary course of business vemdo not expect this trend to change in the
future. We are currently involved in certain legabceedings as discussed in “ltem 3: Legal Procgsdiand “Note 10 — Commitments and
Contingencies — Litigation and Other Legal Matteis'dour consolidated financial statements, whichineerporate herein. We believe that we
have meritorious defenses to the claims againsingswe will defend ourselves vigorously. Howewsfen if successful, our defense against
certain actions will be costly and could divert augnagement’s time. If the plaintiffs were to piriéea certain claims, we might be forced to pay
significant damages and licensing fees, modifylusginess practices or even be prohibited from catirty a significant part of our business. Any
such results could materially harm our businesscamttd result in a material adverse impact on tharfcial position, results of operations or cash
flows of all or any of our three segments.

Accounting for Income Taxe:

We are required to recognize a provisionificome taxes based upon the taxable income andtanypdifferences for each of the tax
jurisdictions in which we operate. This procesaiags a calculation of taxes payable under curyasibcted tax laws around the world anc
analysis of temporary differences between the lmuaktax bases of our assets and liabilities, inotysarious accruals, allowances, depreciation
and amortization. The tax effect of these tempodiffgrences and the estimated tax benefit fromtaxmet operating losses are reported as
deferred tax assets and liabilities in our constéd balance sheet. We also

38




Table of Contents

assess the likelihood that our net deferred taatasgill be realized from future taxable income.tfe extent we believe that it is more likely than
not that some portion, or all of, the deferredaaget will not be realized, we establish a valmatibowance. To the extent we establish a valuation
allowance or change the allowance in a period,eflect the change with a corresponding increagBeorease in our tax provision in our
consolidated statement of income. Where the chantfe valuation allowance relates to the deductimremployee stock option exercises, the
change is reflected as a credit to additional jpraichpital. As employee stock option exerciseshéghly dependent upon our stock price, it is
extremely difficult to predict the amount of dedoat that will be generated from future option ekses and, therefore, for us to ascertain the
amount of deferred tax assets related to employpek sption exercises that may be realized in ipegriods. At December 31, 2004, we have
maintained an allowance on certain net operatisgde generated from deductions for employee stoiiiroexpenses based on our assessment
that it is more likely than not that the deferrag aissets related to these net operating lossesavibe realized. The deferred tax asset, net of a
valuation allowance of $158.6 million, totaled $b6&illion at December 31, 2004 and was offset Hgided tax liabilities of $183.7 million
resulting in a net deferred tax liability of $12%llion. In addition, due to our significant aripated international expansion, we have not
provided for U.S. federal income and foreign witlitiag taxes on non-U.S. subsidiaries’ undistributednings as of December 31, 2004, because
such earnings are intended to be reinvested intifinin the event that our future internationgpansion plans change and such amounts are not
reinvested indefinitely, we would be subject to Urfome taxes partially offset by foreign tax dgtedThe following table illustrates the effective
tax rates for 2002, 2003, and 2004 (in thousand=@ percentages):

Years Ended December 31
2002 2003 2004
Provision for income taxe $ 145,94¢ $ 206,73t $ 343,88!
Effective tax rate: 37% 32% 30%

Historically, these provisions have adequapebvided for our actual income tax liabilitiesoWever, unexpected or significant future changes
in trends could result in a material impact to fetaonsolidated statements of income and cash flIBased on our results for the year ended
December 31, 2004, a opercentage point change in our provision for incaaxes as a percentage of income before taxes viawiel resulted i
an increase or decrease in the provision of appratély $11.3 million. The following analysis demtrages, for illustrative purposes only, the
potential effect such a one-percentage point dieviathange would have upon our consolidated firerstatements and is not intended to provide
a range of exposure or expected deviation (in thiods, except per share data):

-100 Basis +100 Basis
Points 2004 Points
Provision for income taxe $ 332,60: $ 343,88! $ 355,16°
Income from operation 1,070,52. 1,059,24. 1,047,96!
Net income 789,50! 778,22: 766,94
Diluted earnings per sha $ 0.5¢ $ 0.57 $ 0.5¢

Advertising and Other No-Transaction Revenues

A portion of our net revenues result fromsfessociated with advertising and other non-traisaservices in our U.S. Marketplace,
International Marketplace and Payments segmentsteNenues from advertising are derived principéityn the sale of online banner and
sponsorship advertisements for cash and througbrbarrangements. Other non-transaction net rexseareederived principally from contractual
arrangements with third parties that provide tratisa services to eBay users and from offline smwiprovided by whollypwned subsidiaries tr
were divested in the second half of 2002. Advergsand other non-transaction net revenues, inafpldarter transactions, totaled 9%, 2% and 3%
of our consolidated net revenues for the yearseedember 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectivet/weaere primarily generated by our
U.S. Marketplace segment. Revenue from barter germents totaled $10.1 million in both 2002 and 2@0®I $13.3 million in 2004. Certain
judgments are involved in the determination ofdperopriate
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revenue recognition, including, but not limited tlee assessment and allocation of fair values iliphel element arrangements, the
appropriateness of gross or net revenue recogratiol) for barter transactions, the existence ofgarable cash transactions to establish fair
values. Our advertising and other non-transactetmevenues may be affected by the financial camitf the parties with whom we have these
relationships and by the success of online senacéspromotions in general. Unlike our transactevenues, advertising and other non-
transaction net revenues are derived from a relgtisconcentrated customer base.

Business Combination

In accordance with the provisions of SFAS, A& purchase price of an acquired company isatéal between intangible assets and the net
tangible assets of the acquired business withasiglwal of the purchase price recorded as goodi#ik. determination of the value of the
intangible assets acquired involves certain judgmand estimates. These judgments can includerbutot limited to, the cash flows that an &
is expected to generate in the future and the g@pjatte weighted average cost of capital.

At December 31, 2004 our goodwill totaled7Billion and our identifiable intangible assettated $362.9 million. In accordance with the
provisions of SFAS 142, we assess the impairmegbo@iwill and identifiable intangible assets of oeportable units annually, or more often if
events or changes in circumstances indicate teatdlrying value may not be recoverable. This assest is based upon a discounted cash flow
analysis and analysis of our market capitalizatidre estimate of cash flow is based upon, amongr dkiings, certain assumptions about expectec
future operating performance and an appropriatendist rate determined by our management. Our eitd discounted cash flows may differ
from actual cash flows due to, among other thiegesnomic conditions, changes to its business mmdghanges in operating performance.
Significant differences between these estimatesaatuhl cash flows could materially affect our fetfinancial results. We completed our annual
goodwill impairment test as of August 31, 2004 determined that no adjustment to the carrying vafugoodwill for any of our reportable units
was required. We have determined that no events besurred from that date through December 31, 20@4would require an updated analysis.
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Risk Factors That May Affect Results of Operationsand Financial Condition

The risks and uncertainties described below aretmetonly ones facing us. Other events that wead@urrently anticipate or that we
currently deem immaterial also may impair our besis operations.

Our operating results may fluctuate.

Our operating results have varied on a qdgrbasis during our operating history. Our opergtiesults may fluctuate significantly as a result
of a variety of factors, many of which are outside control. Factors that may affect our operatiggplts include the following:

« our ability to retain an active user base, to attreew users, and to encourage existing usersttitdims for sale, purchase items through our
service, Or use our payment servic

« the volume, size, timing, and completion rate ahiactions on our website

«the amount and timing of operating costs and chgiaenditures relating to the maintenance and rsipa of our businesses, operations,
and infrastructure

« technical difficulties or service interruptions @iving our websites or services provided to oursigy third parties

« the success of our geographic and product expasy

« the actions of our competitors, including the idwotion of new sites, services, and produ

 consumer confidence in the safety and securityasfsactions on our website

« the cost and availability of online and traditiomalvertising, and the success of our brand buildimd) marketing campaigr

* new laws or regulations, or interpretations of g#xglaws or regulations, that harm the Internktceonic commerce, or our business mo
« our ability to comply with the requirements of ¢ies whose services are required for our operatigsunsh as credit card associatic

« our ability to upgrade and develop our systemsasifucture, and customer service capabilitiectomodate growth at a reasonable ¢
« the costs and results of litigation that involves

« our ability to keep our websites operational at@spnable cos

« our ability to develop product enhancements ataarable cost and to develop programs and featueemely manner, including
expanding our fixe-price offerings;

« our ability to successfully integrate and manageamgjuisitions, including, most recently, Rent.ct
« our ability to manage PayF s transaction loss and credit card chargebaclaratgpayment funding mi;

« our ability to expand PayPalproduct offerings outside of the U.S. (includmg ability to obtain any necessary regulatory appls) and tc
increase the acceptance of PayPal by online metslatside of the eBay marketpla

* our ability to attract new personnel in a timelhdasffective manner and to retain key employ:
« the results of regulatory decisions that affect

« the continued financial strength of our technolsgppliers and other parties with whom we have comialerelations
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« increasing consumer acceptance of the Internebtrat online services for commerce in the facenoféasing publicity about fraud,
spoofing, viruses, and other dangers of the Inte

* general economic conditions and those economicitiond specific to the Internet an-commerce industries; at
« geopolitical events such as war, threat of wateoorist actions

Our limited operating history and the incexhsariety of services offered on our websites nia##ficult for us to forecast the level or soerc
of our revenues or earnings accurately. In viewhefrapidly evolving nature of our business andlmited operating history, we believe that
period-to-period comparisons of our operating rissmiay not be meaningful, and you should not relgruthem as an indication of future
performance. We do not have backlog, and substigrailhof our net revenues each quarter come ftansactions involving sales or payments
during that quarter. Due to the inherent difficuiltyforecasting revenues it is also difficult todoast income statement expenses as a percent
net revenues. Quarterly and annual income stateexp@nses as a percentage of net revenues magnificaintly different from historical or
projected rates. Our operating results in one alerficture quarters may fall below the expectatiohsecurities analysts and investors. In that
event, the trading price of our common stock walidost certainly decline.

We may not maintain our level of profitability orates of growth.
We believe that our continued profitabilitydagrowth will depend in large part on our abilitydo the following:
« attract new users and keep existing users activaiowebsites

» manage the costs of our business, including this @ssociated with maintaining and developing oelpsites, customer support, transaction
and chargeback rates, and international and pragpension

» maintain sufficient transaction volume to attragyérs and seller:
* increase the awareness of our brands;
* provide our customers with superior community, costr support, and trading experienc

We invest heavily in marketing and promotionstomer support, and further development of dperanfrastructure for our core and recently
acquired operations. Some of this investment enlaiiig-term contractual commitments. As a resudt,may be unable to adjust our spending
rapidly enough to compensate for any unexpecteeies shortfall, which may harm our profitabilitp. &ddition, we are spending in advance of
anticipated growth, which may also harm our praifiity. Growth rates in our most established maskstich as Germany and the U.S., have
declined over time and may continue to do so agXising base of users and transactions beconger|a he expected future growth of our
PayPal business may also cause downward pressungr gmofit margin because that business has lgn@ss margins than our eBay business.

System failures could harm our busines

We have experienced system failures from tortEme, and any interruption in the availabilitiyour websites will reduce our current revenues
and profits, could harm our future revenues anditsr@nd could subject us to regulatory scruteay’s primary website has been interrupted
periods of up to 22 hours, and our PayPal siteesedf intermittent unavailability over a five-dayrieel in October 2004. Any unscheduled
interruption in our services results in an immeeliand possibly substantial, loss of revenues.Uemgopr persistent interruptions in our services
could cause current or potential users to belibaédur systems are unreliable, leading them técbwid our competitors or to avoid our sites, and
could permanently harm our reputation and brantes& interruptions increase the burden on our eeging staff, which, in turn, could delay ¢
introduction of new features and services on aessBecause PayPal is a regulated financial efitdguent or persistent site interruptions could
lead to regulatory inquiries. These inquiries
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could result in fines, penalties, or mandatory ¢jesnto PayPal’s business practices, and ultimatelyd cause PayPal to lose existing licenses it
needs to operate or prevent it from obtaining it licenses that it needs to expand. Finallgaose our customers may use our products for
critical transactions, any system failures coukliein damage to our customers’ businesses. Thiestemers could seek significant compensation
from us for their losses. Even if unsuccessfuk tiipe of claim likely would be time consuming austly for us to address.

Although our systems have been designed dringustry-standard architectures to reduce dowstmthe event of outages or catastrophic
occurrences, they remain vulnerable to damageterrimption from earthquakes, floods, fires, povessl telecommunication failures, terrorist
attacks, computer viruses, computer denial-of-seraitacks, and similar events. Some of our systemisiding PayPal’s customer support
operations, are not fully redundant, and our desastcovery planning is not sufficient for all eugalities. Our systems are also subject to break-
ins, sabotage, and intentional acts of vandalisespile any precautions we may take, the occurrehaenatural disaster, a decision by any of our
third-party hosting providers to close a facilitg wse without adequate notice for financial or oteasons, or other unanticipated problems at our
hosting facilities could result in lengthy intertigms in our services. In addition, the failuredayr hosting facilities to provide our required data
communications capacity could result in interrupsion our service. We do not carry business infgion insurance sufficient to compensate us
for losses that may result from interruptions im service as a result of system failures.

Our growth will depend on our ability to develop pbrands, and these efforts may be costly.

Our historical growth has been largely atttéble to word of mouth, and to frequent and higibility national and local media coverage. We
believe that continuing to strengthen our brandkhei critical to achieving widespread acceptaniceus services, and will require an increased
focus on active marketing efforts. The demand fat eost of online and traditional advertising h&een increasing, and may continue to incre
Accordingly, we will need to spend increasing amtswf money on, and devote greater resources t@rasing, marketing, and other efforts to
create and maintain brand loyalty among users. @pramotion activities may not yield increased raves, and even if they do, any increased
revenues may not offset the expenses incurrediidibg our brands. If we do attract new users to sgrvices, they may not conduct transactions
over our services on a regular basis. If we faptomote and maintain our brands, or if we incurssantial expenses in an unsuccessful attempt tc
promote and maintain our brands, our business woeildarmed.

We depend on the continued growth of online comnerc

The business of selling goods over the Itgnparticularly through online trading, is dynaraitd relatively new. Growth in the use of the
Internet as a medium for consumer commerce magordtnue. Concerns about fraud, privacy, and giheblems may discourage additional
consumers from adopting the Internet as a mediucowimerce. Market acceptance for recently introdwssgvices and products over the Internet
is highly uncertain, and there are few proven sexwiand products. In countries such as the U.2renbur services and online commerce
generally have been available for some time, aoguimew users for our services may be more diffiand costly than it has been in the past. In
order to expand our user base, we must appeatta@juire consumers who historically have usedttom@l means of commerce to purchase
goods. If these consumers prove to be less adtaue dur earlier users, and we are unable to gégiegfcies in our operating costs, including our
cost of acquiring new customers, our business coelddversely impacted.

We must keep pace with rapid technological changegmain competitive.

Our competitive arena is characterized bydtgghanging technology, evolving industry stardfarfrequent new service and product
introductions and enhancements, and changing cestdemands. These characteristics are causedtibhyptire emerging and changing nature of
the Internet. Our future success therefore willesebon our ability to adapt to rapidly changinghiemlogies and evolving industry standards and
to improve the performance, features, and religbdf our service. Our failure to adapt to suchraes
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would harm our business. Recent changes in seanctidnality, including both paid and natural séamay give buyers easier access to Internet
sellers who do not use our trading platforms ang pravide such sellers with alternative accessugebs. These developments may reduce the
attractiveness of our platform to sellers and ndwessely affect our growth and business. New teldgies, such as the development of a peer-to-
peer personal trading technology, could also aéeedfect us. In addition, the widespread adoptbnew Internet, networking, or
telecommunications technologies or other technakligihanges could require us to make substantg@reditures to modify or adapt our services
or infrastructure.

There are many risks associated with our internatal operations.

Our international expansion has been rapitivesm have only limited experience in many of thartdes in which we now do business. Our
international business, especially in Germanyih€, Canada, and South Korea, has also becomeattiv our revenues and profits. In 2004,
international net transaction revenues represe3iét of our total net transaction revenues. Expanisito international markets requires
management attention and resources. We have liripérience in localizing our service to conformidecal cultures, standards, and policies. The
commercial, Internet, and transportation infraguite in lesser-developed countries may make itadiff for us to replicate our business model. In
many countries, we compete with local companies winterstand the local market better than we doyanthay not benefit from first-to-market
advantages. We may not be successful in expandiogarticular international markets or in genemtievenues from foreign operations. For
example, in 2002 we withdrew from the Japanese etaBven if we are successful, we expect the adatperating new sites to exceed our net
revenues for at least 12 months in most countliesve continue to expand internationally, includthgough the expansion of PayPal, we are
subject to risks of doing business internationafigjuding the following:

« regulatory requirements, including regulation oftaneering, professional selling, distance sellimgnking, and money transmitting, that
may limit or prevent the offering of eBay’s and Pays services in some jurisdictions, prevent erdable agreements between sellers and
buyers, prohibit the listing of certain categorégoods, require special licensure, or limit trensfer of information between eBay and our
affiliates;

« legal uncertainty regarding our liability for thHetings and other content provided by our usexduding uncertainty as a result of less
Interne-friendly legal systems, unique local laws, and latklear precedent or applicable Ie

« difficulties in integrating with local payment priders, including banks, credit and debit card aissions, and electronic fund transfer
systems

« differing levels of retail distribution, shippingnd communications infrastructur

« different employee/employer relationships and tkistence of worker' councils and labor union

« difficulties in staffing and managing foreign op&oas;

* longer payment cycles, different accounting prastj@and greater problems in collecting accountsivable;
» potentially adverse tax consequences, includinglltaxation of our fees or of transactions on oabsites

« higher telecommunications and Internet service idencosts

« strong local competitor:

« different and more stringent consumer protecti@agbrotection and other law

« cultural ambivalence towards, or r-acceptance of, online tradin

» seasonal reductions in business acti\
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* expenses associated with localizing our productduding offering customers the ability to translagsiness in the local currenc
« laws and business practices that favor local coitgpgtor prohibit foreign ownership of certain uessses

« profit repatriation restrictions, foreign currengychange restrictions, and exchange rate fluctos

« volatility in a specific countr's or regior’s political or economic conditions; a

« differing intellectual property law:

Some of these factors may cause our intemalticosts of doing business to exceed our comfgadamestic costs. As we expand our
international operations and have additional pasiof our international revenues denominated iaifpr currencies, we also could become sul
to increased difficulties in collecting accountse®able and risks relating to foreign currencylarge rate fluctuations. The impact of currency
exchange rate fluctuations is discussed in moraildatder “We are exposed to fluctuations in cucseexchange rates,” below.

We are in the process of expanding PayPahdces internationally. Both eBay and PayPal Hawi#ed experience with the payments
business outside of the U.S. In some countriesaesipn of PayPal’s business may require a closermrmial relationship with one or more local
banks. We do not know if these or other factors pr@yent, delay, or limit PayPal's expansion omuelits profitability. Any limitation on our
ability to expand PayPal internationally could haror business.

Our operations in China are subject to risks and certainties relating to the laws and regulations thfe People’s Republic of China.

In July 2003, we completed the acquisitiothaf remaining outstanding capital stock and optimhEachNet. EachNet is a Delaware
corporation and a foreign person under the lawth@People’s Republic of China, or PRC, and isexttiip many of the risks of doing business
internationally described above in “There are masks associated with our international operatibiie PRC currently regulates its Internet
sector through regulations restricting the scop®aign investment and through the enforcememiotent restrictions on the Internet. While
many aspects of these regulations remain unclegy,gurport to limit and require licensing of varsoaspects of the provision of Internet
information services. These regulations have coestibstantial uncertainties regarding the legalitioreign investments in PRC Internet
companies, including EachNet, and the businessatipas of such companies. In order to meet localerghip and regulatory licensing
requirements, the new eBay EachNet website is tggtthrough a foreign-owned enterprise indirectned by eBays European operating enti
which acts in cooperation with a local PRC compawyed by certain local employees. We believe EatkNearrent ownership structure
complies with all existing PRC laws, rules, andulagions. There are, however, substantial unceitsimegarding the interpretation of current
PRC laws and regulations, and it is possible th@tftRC government will ultimately take a view canyrto ours. There are also uncertainties
regarding EachNet's ability to enforce contractedhtionships it has entered into with respect emagement and control of the company’s
business. If EachNet were found to be in violatbany existing or future PRC laws or regulatiahspuld be subject to fines and other financial
penalties, have its business and Internet contenider licenses revoked, or be forced to discariiis business entirely.

We are exposed to fluctuations in currency exchamgées.

Net revenues outside the United States ad¢eddor approximately 42% of our net revenues if®Because we conduct a significant and
growing portion of our business outside the Uniiates but report our results in U.S. dollars, asefexposure to adverse movements in currency
exchange rates. In connection with its multi-cucseservice, PayPal fixes exchange rates twice ggrahd may face financial exposure if it
incorrectly fixes the exchange rate. PayPal alddsh®ome corporate funds in non-U.S. currencidadititate customer withdrawals, and thus its
financial results are affected by the translatibthese non-U.S. currencies into U.S. dollars.dditon, the results of operations of our
internationally focused websites are exposed to
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foreign exchange rate fluctuations as the finaneiallts of the applicable subsidiaries are traedl&rom the local currency into U.S. dollars upon
consolidation. If the U.S. dollar weakens agaiosgign currencies, as it did in 2004, the transtatf these foreign-currency-denominated
transactions will result in increased net revenoperating expenses, and net income. The changeighted average foreign currency exchange
rates in 2004 relative to the comparable rates uspteparation of our consolidated 2003 finanstatements resulted in an increase in net
revenues of approximately $129.9 million and améase in aggregate cost of revenues and operagpenses of approximately $58.4 million.
Similarly, our net revenues, operating expenses n&t income will decrease if the U.S. dollar sgtbens against foreign currencies. As exchange
rates vary, net sales and other operating resuftsn translated, may differ materially from expéotas. In particular, to the extent the U.S. dollar
strengthens against the Euro and British PoundiEouopean revenues and profits will be reducedrasuat of these translation adjustments. In
addition, to the extent the U.S. dollar strengthegainst the Euro and the British Pound, crossdxdrdde related to purchases of dollar-
denominated goods by non-U.S. purchasers may degraad that decrease may not be offset by a poméing increase in cross-border trade
involving purchases by U.S. buyers of goods denateithin other currencies. While we from time todiemter into transactions to hedge portions
of our foreign currency translation exposure, tHesgges are relatively costly and, even with themffect, it is impossible to perfectly predict or
completely eliminate the effects of this exposure.

Our business and users may be subject to salesatak other taxes.

The application of indirect taxes (such desand use tax, value added tax, or VAT, goodssamdces tax, business tax, and gross receip
to e-commerce businesses such as eBay and oursisecomplex and evolving issue. Many of the fundatal statutes and regulations that
impose these taxes were established before thetlyafithe Internet and e-commerce. In many casésnot clear how existing statutes apply to
the Internet or e-commerce. In addition, some glictsons have implemented or may implement lawg#gigally addressing the Internet or some
aspect of e-commerce. The application of existiayy, or future laws could have adverse effectswrbosiness.

Several proposals have been made at thestate.and local level that would impose additiagaaés on the sale of goods and services through
the Internet. These proposals, if adopted, coubdtsuntially impair the growth of e-commerce, andldaliminish our opportunity to derive
financial benefit from our activities. In Decemi2804, the U.S. federal government enacted legisiaktending the moratorium on states and
other local authorities imposing access or disgratory taxes on the Internet through November 208i& moratorium does not prohibit federal,
state, or local authorities from collecting tax@sowr income or from collecting taxes that are dnder existing tax rules.

In conjunction with the Streamlined Sales Pagject, the U.S. Congress continues to considerriaing the Supreme CourtQuill decision,
which limits the ability of state governments tguée sellers outside of their own state to colbend remit sales taxes on goods purchased by in-
state residents. An overturning of fQeill decision would harm our users and our business.

We do not collect taxes on the goods or sesssold by users of our services. One or moresstatforeign countries may seek to impose a tax
collection or reporting, or record-keeping obligation companies such as eBay that engage in ditdteie-commerce. Such an obligation could
be imposed if eBay were ever deemed to be the &ggit of eBay sellers by a jurisdiction in whideag operates. A successful assertion by one
or more states or foreign countries that we shoaltéct taxes on the exchange of merchandise wicgsron our websites would harm our
business.

In July 2003, in compliance with the changesught about by the European Union (EU) VAT direzbn “electronically supplied services,”
eBay began collecting VAT on the fees charged tosEllers on eBay sites catering to EU residentayeitso pays input VAT to suppliers within
the various countries the company operates. In nax#s, eBay is entitled to reclaim input VAT frtm various countries with regard to our own
payments to suppliers or vendors. However, becafisar unique business model, the application eflétws and rules that allow such reclama
is sometimes uncertain. A successful assertiomigyos more countries that eBay is not entitlecetdaim VAT would harm our business.
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We continue to work with the relevant taxharities and legislators to clarify eBayobligations under new and emerging laws and atiguis
Passage of new legislation and the imposition dftamhal tax requirements could harm eBay sellexd aur business. There have been, and will
continue to be, substantial ongoing costs assatiaith complying with the various indirect tax réguments in the numerous markets in which
eBay conducts or will conduct business.

Fraudulent activities on our websites and disputestween users of our services may harm our business
PayPal faces significant risks of loss dufrdad and disputes between senders and recipiaotsding:

» merchant fraud and other disputes over the quafinoods and service

« unauthorized use of credit card and bank accotiotrivation and identity thef

« the need to provide effective customer supportréegss disputes between senders and recip
* potential breaches of system secut

« potential employee fraud; ai

« use of PayP’s system by customers to make or accept paymeiileigal or improper purpose

For the year ended December 31, 2004, PayRalisaction loss expense totaled $50.5 milliepresenting 0.27% of PayPal’s total payment
volume. Failure to deal effectively with frauduldéransactions and customer disputes would increag@al’s loss rate and harm its business.

PayPal’'s highly automated and liquid paynmitice makes PayPal an attractive target for fraudonfiguring its service, PayPal faces an
inherent trade-off between customer conveniencesandrity. Identity thieves and those committirguft using stolen credit card or bank account
numbers can potentially steal large amounts of mdrmen businesses such as PayPal. We believe ¢hata of PayPal’s current and former
competitors in the electronic payments businesg lgane out of business or significantly restridtesir businesses largely due to losses from this
type of fraud. We expect that technically knowlealgle criminals will continue to attempt to circumv®ayPal’s anti-fraud systems. In addition,
PayPal’s service could be subject to employee fauather internal security breaches, and PayPaldvoe required to reimburse customers for
any funds stolen as a result of such breaches.

PayPal incurs substantial losses from meicdhand, including claims from customers that marts have not performed or that their goods or
services do not match the merchant’s descriptiagPRl also incurs losses from claims that the castalid not authorize the purchase, from
erroneous transmissions and from customers who ¢lased bank accounts or have insufficient funddém to satisfy payments. In addition to
the direct costs of such losses, if they are rdl&decredit card transactions and become excestsdyecould result in PayPal losing the right to
accept credit cards for payment. If PayPal werélentn accept credit cards, the velocity of tradeeBay could decrease, in which case our
business would further suffer. PayPal has beersasdesubstantial fines for excess chargeback®ipaht, and excessive chargebacks may ar
the future. PayPal has taken measures to detectdnde the risk of fraud, but these measures raapaeffective. If these measures do not
succeed, our business will suffer.

In October 2003, PayPal launched a buyeleptimin program that refunds to buyers up to $50&main eBay transactions if they do not
receive the goods they purchased or if the godfisr diignificantly from what was described by thetler. In November 2004, PayPal increasec
amount of protection available under its buyer @ctiobn program to $1,000. If PayPal makes sucliuade it seeks to collect reimbursement from
the seller, but may not be able to receive anydunoim the seller. The PayPal buyer protection mroghas increased PayPal’s loss rate and coulc
cause future fluctuations.

eBay faces similar risks to those of PayH#i vespect to fraudulent activities, although eBaisks may to some extent be less significant.
eBay periodically receives complaints from user®wiay not have received the goods that they hachpsed. In some cases individuals have
been arrested and convicted for fraudulent aatigitising our websites. eBay also receives complé&ini sellers who have not received payment
for the goods that a buyer had contracted to psehdon-payment may occur because of miscommuaitaiecause a buyer has changed his or
her mind and decided not to honor the contracurchmse the item, or because the buyer bid ortéhernaliciously, in order to harm either the
seller or eBay. In some European
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jurisdictions, buyers may also have the right tthdiaw from a sale made by a professional sellgriwia specified time perio

While eBay can suspend the accounts of wglosfail to fulfill their payment or delivery oblaions to other users, eBay does not have the
ability to require users to make payment or deliy@ods, or otherwise make users whole other thaugfh our limited buyer protection programs.
Other than through these programs, eBay does mapensate users who believe they have been defrdnydetther users. eBay also periodically
receives complaints from buyers as to the quafithe goods purchased. We expect to continue ®ivecommunications from users requesting
reimbursement or threatening or commencing legidm@gainst us if no reimbursement is made. Gability for these sort of claims is only
beginning to be clarified and may be higher in some-U.S. jurisdictions than it is in the U.S. baition involving liability for third-party actions
could be costly for us, divert management attentiesult in increased costs of doing business, teadlverse judgments, or otherwise harm our
business. In addition, affected users will likebmplain to regulatory agencies that could takeoacsigainst us, including imposing fines or
seeking injunctions.

Negative publicity and user sentiment gereetats a result of fraudulent or deceptive conduatsers of our eBay and PayPal services could
damage our reputation, reduce our ability to attngev users or retain our current users, and dghitlie value of our brand names.

Changes to credit card association fees, rulespoactices or its users’ credit card usage rates ktboegatively affect PayPal’s business.

Because PayPal is not a bank, it cannot lgeloor directly access credit card associationsh &s Visa and MasterCard. As a result, PayPal
must rely on banks or payment processors to pracassactions, and must pay a fee for this serfioem time to time, credit card associations
may increase the interchange fees that they clargeach transaction using one of their cards. Bt&sird has announced an increase in the
standard interchange fee for credit cards in ordmm@merce transactions effective April 2005. Pa\daledit card processors have the right to
any increases in interchange fees on to PayPakhssvincrease their own fees for processing. Sunteased fees increase PayPal’s operating
costs and reduce its profit margins. PayPal is mdgaired by its processors to comply with creditdcassociation operating rules, and PayPal has
agreed to reimburse its processors for any fineg #ne assessed by credit card associations aslagkprocessing payments for PayPal. The
credit card associations and their member bankargkinterpret the credit card rules. Some of thmember banks compete with PayPal. Visa,
MasterCard, American Express, or Discover couldpadew operating rules or re-interpret existingesuthat PayPal or its processors might find
difficult or even impossible to follow. As a resuitayPal could lose its ability to give customéues dption of using credit cards to fund their
payments. If PayPal were unable to accept crediscés business would be seriously damaged. diitiad, the velocity of trade on eBay could
decrease and our business would further suffer.

In 2002, both Visa and MasterCard adopted operating rules for Internet payment services RlagPal. In order to comply with the
associations’ new rules, PayPal and its credit pandessors have implemented changes to existisigdss processes for merchant customers.
Any problems with this implementation could resalfines, the amount of which would be within Visand MasterCard’s discretion. PayPal also
could be subject to fines from MasterCard and Migafails to register and conduct additional mimming with respect to the activities of
merchants that are considered “high risk,” prinyaciértain merchants that sell digital content. RdyRs incurred fines from its credit card
processor in 2003 and 2004 relating to PayPallarfato detect the use of its service by certaighilisk” merchants using the PayPal service.
amount of these fines has not been material, butdditional fines in the future would likely berfarger amounts, could become material, and
could result in a termination of PayPal’s abilityaccept credit cards, which would seriously danfagPal’s business.

PayPal pays significant transaction fees wdarders fund payment transactions using crediscaominal fees when customers fund payr
transactions by electronic transfer of funds franlbaccounts, and no fees when customers fund paymaasactions from an existing PayPal
account balance. Senders funded 53% of PayPalmematyvolume during 2004 using credit cards, andPRéy financial success will
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remain highly sensitive to changes in the ratekdthvits senders fund payments using credit c&8daders may prefer funding using credit cards
rather than bank account transfers for a numbesagons, including the ability to dispute and regarharges if merchandise is not delivered or is
not as described, the ability to earn frequent flides or other incentives offered by credit cattie ability to defer payment, or a reluctance to
provide bank account information to PayPal.

If PayPal were found to be subject to or in violati of any U.S. laws or regulations governing bankinmoney transmission, or electron
funds transfers, it could be subject to liabilitynd forced to change its business practic

We believe that the licensing or approvaliezsments of the U.S. Office of the Comptrollertioé Currency, the Federal Reserve Board, and
other federal or state agencies that regulate hdnakd holding companies, or other types of pronddd e-commerce services do not apply to
PayPal, except for certain money transmitter liesmaentioned below. However, PayPal has in therpasived written communications from
state regulatory authorities expressing the vieat itis service might constitute an unauthorizedkbanbusiness. PayPal has taken steps to ad
these states’ concerns. However, we cannot guaramat the steps PayPal has taken to addressrégagatory concerns will be effective in all
states, and one or more states may conclude tg&alPs engaged in an unauthorized banking busitieBayPal is found to be engaged in an
unauthorized banking business in one or more stidteght be subject to monetary penalties anckasty publicity and might be required to cease
doing business with residents of those states. Hithe steps it has taken to resolve these stategerns are deemed sufficient by the state
regulatory authorities, PayPal could be subjedinies and penalties for its prior activities. Theed to comply with state laws prohibiting
unauthorized banking activities could also limiyyPal’s ability to enhance its services in the fatukny change to PayPalbusiness practices tt
makes the service less attractive to customersabiilts its use by residents of a particular jdigsion could decrease the velocity of trade on
eBay, which would further harm our business.

A number of U.S. states have enacted legisiaegulating money transmitters. To date, Payigalobtained licenses in 32 of these
jurisdictions and interpretations in nine statest titensing is not required under their existitegfgtes. As a licensed money transmitter, PayF
subject to bonding requirements, restrictions srinvestment of customer funds, reporting requimgsieand inspection by state regulatory
agencies. If PayPal's pending applications wereedkeror if it were found to be subject to and inlation of any money services laws or
regulations, PayPal also could be subject to lighflorced to cease doing business with resideht®rtain states, or forced to change its business
practices. Any change to PayPal’s business practicet makes the service less attractive to custoreprohibits its use by residents of a
particular jurisdiction could decrease the velocityrade on eBay, which would further harm ouribass. Even if PayPal is not forced to change
its business practices, it could be required taioldtcenses or regulatory approvals that couldasgpa substantial cost on PayPal.

Although there have been no definitive intetptions to date, PayPal has assumed that it&ce@svsubject to the Electronic Fund Transfer
and Regulation E of the Federal Reserve Board. #es@t, among other things, PayPal must provideace disclosure of changes to its service,
follow specified error resolution procedures andaab losses above $50 from transactions not augiby the consumer. In addition, PayPal is
subject to the financial privacy provisions of tAEmmm-Leach-Bliley Act, state financial privacy levand related regulations. As a result, some
customer financial information that PayPal receigesubject to limitations on reuse and discloskpasting and potential future privacy laws may
limit PayPal’s ability to develop new products asatvices that make use of data gathered througleiitsce. The provisions of these laws and
related regulations are complicated, and PayPa dothave extensive experience in complying wimt. Even technical violations of these [
can result in penalties of up to $1,000 for each-oompliant transaction. PayPal processed an agerbagpproximately 929,000 transactions per
day during 2004, and any violations could exposgPRhto significant liability.
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PayPa’s status under banking or financial services laws other laws in countries outside the U.S. is ugeat.

PayPal currently allows its customers withdit cards to send payments from 44 countries @eitsie U.S., and to receive payments in 43 of
those countries. In 23 of these countries, custerman withdraw funds to local bank accounts, areldght of these countries customers can
withdraw funds by receiving a bank draft in the ImRayPal offers customers the ability to sendeseive payments denominated in U.S. Dollars,
British Pounds, Euros, Canadian Dollars, Yen, &egjnning in January 2005, Australian Dollars. Rayfas applied for an Australian Financial
Services License, and has received an official gtiem from the Banking Act in Australia until Octeb2005. In February 2004, PayPal (Europe)
Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of PayPal, receieditense to operate as an Electronic Money Lrtgiit in the United Kingdom as a vehicle for
providing localized versions of PayPal's servicetistomers in the EU. Fifteen of the 44 countrigiside of the U.S. whose residents can use the
PayPal service are members of the European Unis®ayPal (Europe) develops localized servicesidbmestic market in these countries,
implementing such localized services through areditpd “passport” notification process through th€ regulator to regulators in other EU
member states, pursuant to EU Directives. PayRab(ie) has filed “passport” notices in Austria, g@deim, France, Germany, the Netherlands,
Ireland, Italy, Sweden, Denmark, Finland, LuxemlgpuRortugal, Greece and Spain. The regulatorsesetltountries could notify PayPal (Eura
of local consumer protection laws that will appiyits business, in addition to UK consumer protectaw. Any such responses from these
regulators could increase the cost of, or delayPRbs plans for expanding its business. PayPaldji) is subject to significant fines or other
enforcement action if it violates the disclosuenarting, anti-money laundering, capitalizatiomds management or other requirements imposed
on electronic money institutions.

In many countries outside of the U.S. andBEheopean Union, it is not clear whether PayPal'S.Wased service is subject to local law or, if it
is subject to local law, whether such local lawuiegs a payment processor like PayPal to be ligkasea bank or financial institution or
otherwise. Even if PayPal is not currently requir@dbtain a license in those countries, futurali@aation or targeted marketing of PayPal’s
service in those countries could require licensuma other laws of those countries (such as datagiion laws) may apply. If PayPal were found
to be subject to and in violation of any foreigwsaor regulations, it could be subject to liabilityrced to change its business practices or fora
suspend providing services to customers in oneareroountries. Alternatively, PayPal could be reegiito obtain licenses or regulatory appro
that could impose a substantial cost on it andlirevoonsiderable delay to the provision or develeptrof its product. Delay or failure to receive
such a license would require PayPal to changaugmbss practices or features in ways that wowemsely affect PayPal’s international
expansion plans and could require PayPal to suspeniding services to customers in one or morenties.

We are subject to regulations relating to consunpgivacy.

Several domestic jurisdictions have proposaed, California, Minnesota, Utah, and Vermont heaeently passed, legislation that limits the
uses of personal information gathered online dim&ff In addition to these four states, many ofbeasdictions already have such laws and
continuously consider strengthening them, espgcéhinst online services. eBay and PayPal in iceiriatances are subject to some of these
current laws. PayPal may also be subject to regcenthcted legislation in several states and casimposing greater restrictions on the ability of
financial services companies to share user infaomatith third parties without affirmative user camnt. However, the Fair and Accurate Credit
Transactions Act of 2003, or FACT, included a psoa preempting conflicting state laws on the st@of information between corporate
affiliates, and as a result we believe that PagiRdleBay will not be subject to the laws of eadividual state with respect to matters within the
scope of FACT, but will remain subject to the psions of FACT and the Fair Credit Reporting Actu@s are currently determining the scope of
these preemptive provisions.

Specific statutes intended to protect usigapy have been passed in many non-U.S. jurisdistiomncluding virtually every non-
U.S. jurisdiction in which we currently have a lbzad website. Compliance with these laws, givemttbht integration of our systems across
different countries and the need to move datadiitizte transactions amongst our users (e.g.aioEnt companies, shipping companies, etc.), is
both
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necessary and difficult. Failure to comply coulthjsat us to lawsuits, fines, criminal penaltieststory damages, adverse publicity, and other
losses that could harm our business. Changes $tirexiaws or the passage of new laws intendeddoess these privacy and data protection and
retention issues could directly affect the way webdsiness or could create uncertainty on therietehis could reduce demand for our services,
increase the cost of doing business as a reslitigattion costs or increased service or delivergts, or otherwise harm our business.

New and existing regulations could harm our busirse

We are subject to the same foreign and damlasts as other companies conducting businessidrofi the Internet. Today, there are still
relatively few laws specifically directed towardslioe services. However, due to the increasing iy and use of the Internet and online
services, many laws relating to the Internet aiedpdebated at all levels of government aroundatbdd and it is possible that such laws and
regulations will be adopted. These laws and regratcould cover issues such as user privacy, émaeaf expression, pricing, fraud, content and
quality of products and services, taxation, adsar, intellectual property rights, and informatecurity. It is not clear how existing laws
governing issues such as property ownership, coptgiand other intellectual property issues, taxatibel and defamation, obscenity, and
personal privacy apply to online businesses. Tls¢ wajority of these laws were adopted prior todteent of the Internet and related
technologies and, as a result, do not contemplaaeldress the unique issues of the Internet aatecbtechnologies. Those laws that do reference
the Internet, such as the U.S. Digital Millenniurop@right Act and the European Union’s Directiveistance Selling and Electronic Commerce
have begun to be interpreted by the courts andemehted by the EU Member States, but their applitabnd scope remain somewhat
uncertain. As our activities and the types of gdisted on our website expand, regulatory agenieourts may claim or hold that we or our
users are either subject to licensure or prohilfiteh conducting our business in their jurisdictieither with respect to our services in genenal, o
in order to allow the sale of certain items (exgal estate, event tickets, cultural goods, b@atgmobiles).

Numerous states and foreign jurisdictionsluding the State of California, where our headtgrarare located, have regulations regarding
“auctions” and the handling of property by “pawnkecs.” No final legal determination has been masitoavhether the California regulations
apply to our business and little precedent existhis area. Several states and some foreign jaotigds have attempted, and may attempt in the
future, to impose such regulations upon us or sers) which could harm our business. In August 20@is amended its auction law to provi
for a special regulatory regime for “Internet aantlisting services,” and we have registered almtetnet auction listing service in lllinois.
Although we do not expect this registration to haveegative impact on our business, other regylatod licensure claims could result in costly
litigation or could require us to change the wayarveur users do business in ways that increass ocoseduce revenues or force us to prohibit
listings of certain items for some locations. Waelldaalso be subject to fines or other penaltied, amy of these outcomes could harm our busii

In addition, because our services are aduessiorldwide, and we facilitate sales of goodsisers worldwide, foreign jurisdictions may claim
that we are required to comply with their laws. Erample, the Australian high court has ruled ¢hetS. website in certain circumstances must
comply with Australian laws regarding libel. As wrpand and localize our international activities, iecome obligated to comply with the laws
of the countries in which we operate. Laws regatatnternet companies outside of the U.S. may & fl@vorable than those in the U.S., giving
greater rights to consumers, content owners, aagsu€ompliance may be more costly or may requsr®change our business practices or
restrict our service offerings relative to thosehia U.S. Our failure to comply with foreign lawsutd subject us to penalties ranging from crim
prosecution to bans on our services.

PayPal has limited experience in managing and acating accurately for large amounts of customer fusdPayPd’s failure to manage
these funds properly would harm its business.

PayPal’'s ability to manage and account adelyréor customer funds requires a high level aéinal controls. PayPal has neither an
established operating history nor proven managemgrgrience in maintain-
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ing, over a long term, these internal controls PayPal’s business continues to grow, it must stremits internal controls accordingly. PayPal’s
success requires significant public confidencedrability to handle large and growing transactioiumes and amounts of customer funds. Any
failure to maintain necessary controls or to marsgrirately customer funds could diminish custouserof PayPal’s product severely.

Our business is subject to online commerce securnigks, including security breaches and identityeth.

To succeed, online commerce and communicatiust provide a secure transmission of confideimiarmation over public networks. Our
security measures may not prevent security breatla¢sould harm our business. Currently, a sigaift number of our users authorize us to bill
their credit card accounts directly for all transac fees charged by us. PayRal'sers routinely provide credit card and othearfiial information
We rely on encryption and authentication technolliggnsed from third parties to provide the seguaitd authentication technology to effect
secure transmission of confidential informatiorgluding customer credit card numbers. Advance®mputer capabilities, new discoveries in the
field of cryptography or other developments maywlheis a compromise or breach of the technologydusgus to protect transaction data. In
addition, any party who is able to illicitly obtagnuser’s password could access the user's traosatzta. A number of websites have reported
breaches of their security. Any compromise of @aausity could harm our reputation and, therefore,lusiness. In addition, a party who is able
to circumvent our security measures could misapjtpproprietary information, or cause interrupon our operations, damage our computers
or those of our users, or otherwise damage outtaéipn and business.

Our servers are also vulnerable to computesgs, physical or electronic break-ins, and simdlisruptions, and we have experienced “denial-
of-service” type attacks on our system that havderall or portions of our websites unavailablegderiods of time. We may need to expend
significant resources to protect against securigabhes or to address problems caused by breddiese issues are likely to become more
difficult as we expand the number of places wheeeoperate. Security breaches could damage ouratégputind expose us to a risk of loss or
litigation and possible liability. Our insurancelipes carry low coverage limits, which may notdmequate to reimburse us for losses caused by
security breaches.

Our users, as well as those of other prontilr@arnet companies, have been and will contirueet targeted by parties using fraudulent emails
to misappropriate passwords, credit card numbersther personal information. These emails appeaetlegitimate emails sent by eBay or
PayPal, but direct recipients to fake websites atgerby the sender of the email or request thatettipient send a password or other confidential
information via email. We actively pursue the pestresponsible for these attempts at misappropmiaind encourage our users to divulge
sensitive information only after they have verifibat they are on our legitimate websites, but aenot entirely eliminate these types of activit

Our failure to manage growth could harm our busings

We are currently expanding our headcountlifizs, and infrastructure in the U.S. and intdfomally. We anticipate that further expansion
be required to address potential growth in ourarast base and number of listings and payment tctinsa, as well as our expansion into new
geographic areas, types of goods, and alternatatbads of sale. This expansion has placed, andpeceit will continue to place, a significant
strain on our management, operational, and finhnesurces. The areas that are put under straoubgrowth include the following:

» Our Websiteswe must constantly add new hardware, update sadtaad add new engineering personnel to accommtitaiacreased use
of our and our subsidiaries’ websites and the neadycts and features we regularly introduce. Thigrade process is expensive, and the
increased complexity of our websites increasesdisé of additional enhancements. Failure to upgoagiéechnology, features, transaction
processing systems, security infrastructure, ovae infrastructure to accommodate increased traffitransaction volume could harm our
business. Adverse consequences could include eigated system disruptions, slower response tioegradation in levels of customer
support, impaired quality of users’ experienceswfservices, impaired quality of services fordhrarty application developers using our
externally accessible Application Programming Ifgee, or
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API, and delays in reporting accurate finanaifbimation. We may be unable to effectively upgradd expand our systems in a timely
manner or smoothly integrate any newly developepuochased technologies or businesses with outirgxisystems, and any failure to do
so could result in problems on our sites. For eXamip October 2004, we experienced unschedulechtime on the PayPal website related
to system upgrades. Despite our efforts to incredsescalability and reliability, our infrastrucgéucould prove unable to handle a larger
volume of customer transactions. Any failure tocammodate transaction growth could impair custoragisfaction, lead to a loss of
customers, impair our ability to add customerdnorease our costs, all of which would harm ourihesss. Further, steps to increase the
reliability and redundancy of our systems are espen reduce our margins, and may not be successfatiucing the frequency or duration
of unscheduled downtim

 Customer Account BillingOur revenues depend on prompt and accurate bpliagesses. We recently completed a significaneptdp
enhance our billing software. Problems with thevasaion to the new billing system during the secand third quarters of 2004 caused
incorrect account balance totals to be displaye@ddme users. In July 2004, a complaint seekingsdation status was filed alleging that
eBay improperly billed its users and improperly itledh some user accounts. The complaint was recantbnded to include a larger variety
of billing related problems and a longer time framéhile these problems have been corrected andelievie that no users were
overcharged, our failure to grow our transactiooepssing capabilities to accommodate the increasingber of transactions that must be
billed would harm our business and our ability édlect revenue

» Customer SupportVe are expanding our customer support operatioasdommodate the increased number of users arghtitons on oL
websites and the increased level of trust andysafetvity we provide worldwide. If we are unabtegrovide these operations in a cost-
effective manner, users of our websites may hagathe experiences, current and future revenuelsl guifer, and our operating margins
may decreast

We must continue to hire, train, and manag® employees at a rapid rate. If our new hiresgoerfpoorly, if we are unsuccessful in hiring,
training, managing, and integrating these new eygas, or if we are not successful in retainingexisting employees, our business may be
harmed. To manage the expected growth of our dpaesand personnel, we will need to improve oungesction processing, operational and
financial systems, procedures, and controls. Ehi&special challenge as we acquire new operatighglifferent systems. Our current and
planned personnel, systems, procedures, and comtiy not be adequate to support our future opastiThe additional headcount and capital
investments we are adding increase our cost bdsehwill make it more difficult for us to offseng future revenue shortfalls by expense
reductions in the short term.

Our business is adversely affected by anything tbatises our users to spend less time on their cotaps, including seasonal factors and
national events.

Anything that diverts our users from theistmmary level of usage of our websites could adrgmffect our business. We would therefore be
adversely affected by geopolitical events such as the threat of war, or terrorist activity, aretural disasters, such as hurricanes or earthqu
Similarly, our results of operations historicallsge been seasonal because many of our users rbahircactivities on our websites with the onset
of good weather during the summer months, and dreaound national holidays. We have historicallperienced our strongest quarters of online
growth in our first and fourth fiscal quarters. Payhas shown similar seasonality, especially enftlurth fiscal quarter. We expect these patterns
of seasonality to become more pronounced as ousitestgain acceptance by a broader base of mainstusers and as the size of our European
operations, which experience greater seasonalityygrelative to our other operations.

Use of our services for illegal purposes could haouar business.

The law relating to the liability of provideof online services for the activities of theietson their service is currently unsettled inlthnéted
States and internationally. We are aware that iceg@ods, such as weapons, adult material, tobpambucts, alcohol, and other goods that ma
subject to regulation, have
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been listed and traded on our service. We may bblario prevent our users from selling unlawful dgor selling goods in an unlawful manner,
and we may be subject to allegations of civil aménal liability for unlawful activities carried duby users through our service. We have been
subject to several lawsuits based upon such altegatin December 2004, an executive of Baazee.oomlndian subsidiary, was arrested in
connection with the listing of a pornographic viddip on that site. Similarly, our Korean subsigiand one of its employees was found
criminally liable for a listing on the Korean suthsiry’s website. In order to reduce our exposurthi® liability, we have prohibited the listing of
certain items and increased the number of persaemiEwing questionable items. In the future, weyrimaplement other protective measures that
could require us to spend substantial resourcéssoontinue certain service offerings. Any costalimed as a result of potential liability relatitg
the sale of unlawful goods or the unlawful salgobds could harm our business. In addition, we egeived significant and continuing media
attention relating to the listing or sale of unlalijoods using our services. This negative pullicttuld damage our reputation and diminish the
value of our brand names. It also could make usdustant to continue to use our services.

PayPal’'s payment system is also susceptibpe@tentially illegal or improper uses. These maiude illegal online gambling, fraudulent sales
of goods or services, illicit sales of prescriptioedications or controlled substances, piracy fif\@se and other intellectual property, money
laundering, bank fraud, child pornography traffiwi prohibited sales of alcoholic beverages ord¢obaroducts, and online securities fraud.
PayPal recently announced a change in its acceptsiel policy that would enable PayPal to fine usecgrtain jurisdictions up to $500 or take
legal action to recover its losses for certainatioins of that policy, including online gamblingdaitiegal sales of prescription medications. Des
measures PayPal has taken to detect and lessasktioé this kind of conduct, illegal activities mée funded using PayPal.

PayPal is subject to money laundering lawsragulations that prohibit, among other thingsjntvolvement in transferring the proceeds of
criminal activities. Although PayPal has adopteet@gram to comply with these laws and regulati@my, errors or failure to implement the
program properly could lead to lawsuits, adminisieaction, and prosecution by the governmenguly 2003, PayPal agreed with the
U.S. Attorney for the Eastern District of Missothat it would pay $10 million as a civil forfeitute settle allegations that its provision of seegic
to online gambling merchants violated provisionshef USA PATRIOT Act and further agreed to havecdmpliance program reviewed by an
independent audit firm. PayPal is also subjecetulations that require it to report suspiciousvitas involving transactions of $2,000 or more
and may be required to obtain and keep more ddte#leords on the senders and recipients in cer@msfers of $3,000 or more. The interprete
of suspicious activities in this context is uncert&uture regulations under the USA PATRIOT Actymequire PayPal to revise the procedures it
uses to verify the identity of its customers andhtanitor more closely international transactionise3e regulations could impose significant costs
on PayPal and make it more difficult for new custosnto join its network. PayPal could be requieéeairn more about its customers before
opening an account, to obtain additional verificatof international customers and to monitor itstomers’ activities more closely. These
requirements, as well as any additional restrigiomposed by Visa, MasterCard, American Express,ziacover, could raise PayPal’s costs
significantly and reduce the attractiveness opiteduct. Failure to comply with federal and statney laundering laws could result in significant
criminal and civil lawsuits, penalties, and fortei of significant assets.

We are subject to intellectual property and othéigation.

In April 2001, two of our European subsidigrieBay GmbH and eBay International AG, were $yebllontres Rolex S.A. and certain of its
affiliates in the regional court of Cologne, Germanhe suit subsequently was transferred to thonedj court in Diisseldorf, Germany. Rolex
alleged that our subsidiaries were infringing R&@drademarks as a result of users selling cougitdRolex watches through our German website.
The suit also alleged unfair competition. Rolexgitttan order enjoining the sale of Rolex-brandettiwes on the website as well as damages. In
December 2002, a trial was held in the matter Aeccourt ruled in favor of eBay on all causes dioac Rolex appealed the ruling to the Higher
Regional Court of Dusseldorf, and the appeal waschim October 2003. In February 2004, the coyected Rolex’s appeal and ruled in our
favor. Rolex has appealed the ruling to the Gerfedteral Supreme Court. In March 2004,
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the German Federal Supreme Court ruled in favétaéx in a case involving an unrelated companwrdo.de AG, but somewhat comparable
legal theories. The court issued its written decisn that case in September 2004. Although ipisyet clear what effect the reasoning of the
German Federal Supreme Court’s ricardo.de decismrid have when applied to eBay, we believe therCodecision will likely not require any
significant change in our business practices.

In September 2001, a complaint was filed byréExchange LLC against us, our Half.com subsidieny ReturnBuy, Inc. in the U.S. District
Court for the Eastern District of Virginia (No. 2:{@CV-736) alleging infringement of three patentddting to online auction technology, multiple
database searching and electronic consignmentsgstnd seeking a permanent injunction and dam@ysading treble damages for willful
infringement). In October 2002, the court granteg@art our summary judgment motion, effectivelyahdating the patent related to online auc
technology and rendering it unenforceable. Thimguleft only two patents in the case. Trial of thatter began in April 2003. In May 2003, the
jury returned a verdict finding that eBay had willy infringed one and Half.com had willfully infiged both of the patents in the suit, awarc
$35 million in compensatory damages. Both partilesl fpost-trial motions, and in August 2003, thert@ntered judgment for MercExchange in
the amount of $29.5 million, plus pre-judgment et and post-judgment interest in an amount tddtermined, while denying MercExchange’s
request for an injunction and attorneys’ fees. \peealed the verdict and judgment in favor of Mertiange, and MercExchange filed a cross-
appeal of the granting in part of our summary judgtrmotion and the denial of its request for aongjion and attorneys’ fees. Oral arguments
for the appeals were heard on October 5, 2004 UL Be Patent and Trademark Office recently grantedequest that it reexamine the three
patents at suit, and on January 26, 2005, the PatenTrademark Office issued a ruling rejectingpdMercExchange’s claims under the patent
that related to online auctions. We continue taelvel that the verdict against us in the trial wairect and intend to continue to pursue our
appeal and defend ourselves vigorously. Howevem évsuccessful, our appeal of and defense agtiissaction will continue to be costly. In
addition, as a precautionary measure, we have meddiertain functionality of our websites and bess practices in a manner which we believe
makes them not infringe the two patents that weevieand to have infringed. Nonetheless, if we aresniccessful in appealing the court’s ruling,
we might be forced to pay significant additionafréages and licensing fees or modify our businesstipess in an adverse manner.

In August 2002, Charles E. Hill & Associatts;. filed a lawsuit in the U.S. District Courtrfthe Eastern District of Texas (No. 2:02-CV-186)
alleging that we and 17 other companies, primaaitge retailers, infringed three patents owned blygénerally relating to electronic catalog
systems and methods for transmitting and updatitg dt a remote computer. The suit seeks an ingmagainst continuing infringement,
unspecified damages, including treble damages iitfulninfringement, and interest, costs, expensas] fees. In January 2003, the case was
transferred to the U.S. District Court for the Swmurh District of Indiana. After pending in Indiafaa almost a year, the case was transferred back
to the U.S. District Court for the Eastern Distio¢tTexas in December 2003. A scheduling conferevee held in November 2004, and a
preliminary trial date has been set for Februay&@ he case is currently in fact discovery anihtleonstruction discovery. We believe that we
have meritorious defenses and intend to defencebuas vigorously.

In February 2002, PayPal was sued in Califostate court (No. CV-805433) in a purported ckstton alleging that its restriction of customer
accounts and failure to promptly unrestrict legatmaccounts violates California state consumeeption laws and is an unfair business practice
and a breach of PayPal's User Agreement. This agtis re-filed with a different named plaintiffdnne 2002 (No. CV-808441), and a similar
action was also filed in the U.S. District Court fhe Northern District of California in June 20080. C-02-2777). In March 2002, PayPal was
sued in the U.S. District Court for the NortherrstBict of California (No. C-02-1227) in a purporteldss action alleging that its restrictions of
customer accounts and failure to promptly unresteigitimate accounts violates federal and statesamer protection and unfair business practice
laws. The two federal court actions were consaodidanto a single case, and the state court actamstayed pending developments in the federal
case. In June 2004, the parties announced thahtmbyeached a proposed settlement. The settlemwzived approval from the federal court on
November 2, 2004, but the cc’s approval could be appealed. In the settlemeaPRI does not acknowledge that any of the
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allegations in the case are true. Under the teffrittseosettlement, certain PayPal account holdeltso@ieligible to receive payment from a
settlement fund of $9.25 million, less administratcosts and the amount awarded to plaintiffs’ eeliby the court. That sum will be distributed
to class members who have submitted timely claimexccordance with the settlement’s plan of all@rgtivhich still must be approved by the
court. The parties expect that a plan of allocatiilhbe submitted to the court in the first quarté 2005. The amount of the settlement was fully
accrued in our consolidated statement of incoméhferyear ended December 31, 2003.

In July 2004, a purported class action latvaais filed by two eBay users in Superior Courthaf State of California, County of Santa Clara
(No. 104CVv022708) alleging that eBay engaged inrappr billing practices as the result of problenithwhe rollout of a new billing software
system in the second and third quarters of 2004.lalwsuit sought damages and injunctive reliefafmended complaint was filed in January
2005, dropping one plaintiff, changing the capaoityhe other plaintiff to that of representativaiptiff, and adding seven additional eBay users
as plaintiffs. The amended complaint expandedaisncto include numerous alleged improper billimagtices from September 2003 until the
present. In February 2005, eBay filed a motionti&es and a demurrer seeking to dismiss the compl&Ve believe that we have meritorious
defenses and intend to defend ourselves vigorously.

In February 2005, eBay was sued in SuperaurCof the State of California, County of Santar@l(No. 105CV035930) in a purported class
action alleging that certain bidding features of site constitute “shill bidding” for the purposéattificially inflating bids placed by buyers ohet
site. The complaint alleges violations of Calif@’si Auction Act, California’s Consumer Remedies ,Atd unfair competition. The complaint
seeks injunctive relief, damages, and a constredtivst. The plaintiffs have not yet served eBathulie complaint. We believe that we have
meritorious defenses and intend to defend oursefigesously.

Other third parties have from time to timaieled, and others may claim in the future, thabaee infringed their intellectual property rights.
We have been notified of several potential patégudes, and expect that we will increasingly bigiett to patent infringement claims as our
services expand in scope and complexity. In pdeicwe expect to face additional patent infringetngaims involving services we provide,
including various aspects of our Payments busindsshave in the past been forced to litigate suaims. We may also become more vulnerable
to third-party claims as laws such as the Digitéléinium Copyright Act, the Lanham Act and the Gumnications Decency Act are interpreted
by the courts and as we expand geographicallyjimtsdictions where the underlying laws with regpecthe potential liability of online
intermediaries like ourselves are either uncledess favorable. These claims, whether meritorausot, could be time consuming and costly to
resolve, cause service upgrade delays, requireneikgechanges in our methods of doing businesspuid require us to enter into costly royalty
or licensing agreements.

From time to time, we are involved in othe&pdites that arise in the ordinary course of bissin€he number and significance of these dispute:
is increasing as our business expands and our eomgraws larger. Any claims against us, whetheritoeous or not, could be time consuming,
result in costly litigation, require significant asmts of management time, and result in the digarsf significant operational resources.

Government inquiries may lead to charges or peresti

In January 1999, we received initial requéstsroduce certain records and information toféweral government relating to an investigatio
possible illegal transactions in connection with websites. We were informed that the inquiry inigls an examination of our practices with
respect to these transactions. In order to protecinvestigation, the court has ordered that mthéx public disclosures be made with respecté¢
matter. Any civil or criminal charges against usuleblikely harm our business due to negative pitlylithe cost of litigation, the diversion of
management time, and any fines or penalties askesse

A large number of transactions occur on oebsites. We believe that government regulators hesgived a substantial number of consumer
complaints about both eBay and PayPal, which, wdrilall as a percentage of our total transacticeslaage in aggregate numbers. As a resul
have from time to time been contacted by variousiém and domestic governmental regulatory agerthegshave questions about our operations
and the steps we take to protect our users froodfi@ayPal has received inquiries regarding
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its restriction and disclosure practices from tleeéral Trade Commission and the attorneys genteahomber of states. If PayPaprocesses a
found to violate federal or state law on consunmetgztion and unfair business practices, it coddbbject to an enforcement action or fines. If
PayPal becomes subject to an enforcement actioayit! be required to restructure its anti-fraudgessses in ways that would harm its business,
and to pay substantial fines. Even if PayPal is &bldefend itself successfully, an enforcemenbaatould cause damage to its reputation, could
consume substantial amounts of its management&dimd attention, and could require PayPal to ch@sgeistomer service and operations in
ways that could increase its costs and decreassfféngtiveness of its anti-fraud program. Both eBayg PayPal are likely to receive additional
inquiries from regulatory agencies in the futurdéjet may lead to action against either company.Hate responded to all inquiries from
regulatory agencies by describing our current dadned antifraud efforts, customer support procesland operating procedures. If one or more
of these agencies is not satisfied with our respéagurrent or future inquiries, we could be sabje fines or other penalties, or forced to change
our operating practices in ways that could harmbuginess.

We are subject to laws relating to the uskteansfer of personally identifiable informatiolboait our users, especially users located outside of
the U.S. Violation of these laws, which in manyesapply not only to third-party transactions Habdo transfers of information between
ourselves and our subsidiaries, and between o@sebur subsidiaries, and other parties with whiethave commercial relations, could subject
us to significant penalties and negative publieityl could adversely affect us.

The listing or sale by our users of pirated or canfeit items may harm our business.

We have received in the past, and we antieipeceiving in the future, communications allegiihgt certain items listed or sold through our
service by our users infringe third-party copyrigttademarks and trade names, or other intelleptogerty rights. Although we have sought to
work actively with the owners of intellectual praperights to eliminate listings offering infringinitems on our websites, some rights owners
expressed the view that our efforts are insuffici@ontent owners and other intellectual propedghts owners have been active in defending their
rights against online companies, including eBayeddtions of infringement of intellectual properights have resulted in litigation against us
from time to time, including litigation brought Gyffany & Co. in the U.S., Rolex S.A. in Germanyyga number of other owners of intellectual
property rights. While we have been largely sudtgs$s date in defending against such litigatiomgrerecent cases have been based, at least in
part, on different legal theories than those ofi@acases, and there is no guarantee that wecaiiltinue to be successful in our defense. In
addition, we expect that this type of litigationyriacrease as our sites gain prominence in markgtsde of the U.S., where the laws may be
unsettled or less favorable to us. Such litigat®oostly for us, could result in damage awardmoreased costs of doing business through adverse
judgment or settlement, could require us to changeiusiness practices in expensive ways, or cotlldrwise harm our business. Litigati
against other online companies could result inrpriations of the law that could also requireaushtange our business practices or otherwise
increase our costs.

We are subject to risks associated with informatidisseminated through our service.

The law relating to the liability of onlinewices companies for information carried on oséiminated through their services is currently
unsettled. Claims could be made against onlineces\companies under both U.S. and foreign lavdé&amation, libel, invasion of privacy,
negligence, copyright or trademark infringementpthrer theories based on the nature and conteheahaterials disseminated through their
services. Several private lawsuits seeking to irepiability upon us under a number of these thesohi@ve been brought against us. In addition,
domestic and foreign legislation has been proptisgidwould prohibit or impose liability for the tramission over the Internet of certain types of
information. Our service features a Feedback Fominich includes information from users regardingestusers. Although all such feedback is
generated by users and not by us, claims of defamat other injury have been made in the pastandd be made in the future against us for
content posted in the Feedback Forum. Several receint decisions have narrowed the scope of tmaunity provided to Internet service
providers like us under the Communications Decekaly This trend, if continued, may increase ourgmdial liability to third parties for

57




Table of Contents

the user-provided content on our site. Our liapiiitr such claims may be higher in jurisdictiondside the U.S. where laws governing Internet
transactions are unsettled. If we become liablénfimrmation provided by our users and carried onsgrvice in any jurisdiction in which we
operate, we could be directly harmed and we maptoed to implement new measures to reduce oursxpdo this liability. This may require
to expend substantial resources or to discontieu®in service offerings, which would negativelfeaf our financial results. In addition, the
increased attention focused upon liability issuea eesult of these lawsuits and legislative prafsosould harm our reputation or otherwise im
the growth of our business. Any costs incurred eesalt of this potential liability could harm obusiness.

Customer complaints or negative publicity about czuwstomer service could diminish use of our sengce

Customer complaints or negative publicity @haur customer service could severely diminishscomer confidence in and use of our services.
Breaches of our customers’ privacy and our secamggasures could have the same effect. Measuresmetisnes take to combat risks of fraud
and breaches of privacy and security can damagtae$ with our customers. These measures heighéeneed for prompt and accurate customer
service to resolve irregularities and disputeseéiffle customer service requires significant pemsbexpense, and this expense, if not managed
properly, could impact our profitability significtiy. Failure to manage or train our customer servapresentatives properly could compromise
our ability to handle customer complaints effediivéf we do not handle customer complaints effeelly, our reputation may suffer and we may
lose our customers’ confidence.

Because it is providing a financial serviogl @perating in a more regulated environment, Playiplike eBay, must provide telephone as well
as email customer service and must resolve cestetomer contacts within shorter time frames. As pbPayPal’s program to reduce fraud
losses, it may temporarily restrict the abilityopfstomers to withdraw their funds if those fundsher customer’s account activity are identified by
PayPal’'s anti-fraud models as suspicious. PayPairhtne past received negative publicity with extfo its customer service and account
restrictions, and is the subject of purported chg®on lawsuits and state attorney general ingsialleging, among other things, failure to resolve
account restrictions promptly. If PayPal is unabl@rovide quality customer support operations aost-effective manner, PayPal’s users may
have negative experiences, PayPal may receivei@ulinegative publicity and its ability to attraww customers may be damaged. Current and
future revenues could suffer, or its operating rmargnay decrease. In addition, negative publicitgla or experiences with PayPal’s customer
support could cause eBay’s reputation to suffeaffact consumer confidence in eBay as a whole.

Acquisitions could result in operating difficultiedilution and other harmful consequence

We have acquired a number of businessesipdkt, and have recently completed or announeeddtjuisitions of Marktplaats.nl, a classified
listing site in the Netherlands, and Rent.com,rdarhet classified site focused on the apartmetsirantal housing industry. We expect to conti
to evaluate and consider a wide array of potestiaktegic transactions, including business comluinaf acquisitions and dispositions of
businesses, technologies, services, products &ed assets, including interests in our existingsilibries and joint ventures. At any given time
we may be engaged in discussions or negotiatiotisrespect to one or more of such transactions. &rsuch transactions could be material to
our financial condition and results of operatiofisere is no assurance that any such discussiomsgatiations will result in the consummation of
any transaction. The process of integrating anyiiaed business may create unforeseen operatinguifés and expenditures and is itself risky.
The areas where we may face difficulties include:

« diversion of management time, as well as a shifoofis from operating the businesses to issuaestefiation and future produc

« declining employee morale and retention issuedtirgirom changes in compensation, reporting refehips, future prospects, or the
direction of the busines

« the need to integrate each company’s accountingagement information, human resource and otherradtrative systems to permit
effective management, and the lack of control dhsintegration is delayed or not implement
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« the need to implement controls, procedures andaipslappropriate for a larger public company at ganies that prior to acquisition had
lacked such controls, procedures and policies;

* in some cases, the need to transition operatiottstba existing eBay platforn

Foreign acquisitions involve special riskgluding those related to integration of operatiaosss different cultures and languages, currency
risks, and the particular economic, political, @aegulatory risks associated with specific countrddsereover, we may not realize the anticipated
benefits of any or all of our acquisitions. As aul of future acquisitions or mergers, we mightdhéo issue additional equity securities, spend our
cash, or incur debt, contingent liabilities, or atization expenses related to intangible assetspawhich could reduce our profitability and harm
our business.

Our stock price has been and may continue to beexitely volatile.

The trading price of our common stock hasbe®l is likely to be extremely volatile and coflicctuate in response to a variety of factors,
including the following:

« actual or anticipated variations in our quartegherating results and expected future res

« changes in, or failure to meet, financial estimétgsecurities analyst

« unscheduled system downtin

« additions or departures of key personi

» announcements of technological innovations or newises by us or our competito

« initiation of or developments in litigation affecy us;

« conditions or trends in the Internet and online owrce industries

« changes in the market valuations of other Interm@line commerce, or technology compan
* developments in regulatio

e announcements by us or our competitors of signifiegquisitions, strategic partnerships, joint vees, new products or capital
commitments

* unanticipated economic or political ever
« sales of our common stock or other securities énaghen market; ar

« other events or factors, including those describdbis “Risk Factors That May Affect Results of @gtions and Financial Condition”
section and others that may be beyond our cor

The trading prices of Internet stocks in gaheand ours in particular, have experienced ex¢rerice and volume fluctuations in recent
periods. These fluctuations often have been ur@lat disproportionate to the operating performafdbese companies. Even considering recent
changes, the valuation of our stock remains higletéan conventional valuation standards such as-poiearnings and price-to-sales ratios. The
trading price of our common stock has decreasebhfiom its level in the fourth quarter in 200zyt remains much higher than our stock price
during 2002 and early 2003. This trading price aaldiation may not be sustained. Negative chang#eeipublic’s perception of the prospects of
Internet or e-commerce or technology companies ratlee past and may in the future depress oukgtdce regardless of our results. Other
broad market and industry factors may decreasentir&et price of our common stock, regardless ofaparating performance. Market
fluctuations, as well as general political and exoit conditions, such as recession or interestaateirrency rate fluctuations, also may decrease
the market price of our common stock. Securitiasslaction litigation is often instituted followinigclines in the market price of a company’s
securities. Litigation of this type could resultsnbstantial costs and a diversion of managemattgstion and resources.
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Problems with third parties who provide servicesowr users could harm our busines

A number of parties provide services to caers that indirectly benefit us. Such servicesuidelseller tools that automate and manage listings
merchant tools that manage listings and interfaitie Wwventory management software, storefronts tiedp our users list items, and other services.
In some cases we have contractual agreementsheisie tompanies that give us a direct financiatasten their success, while in other cases we
have none. In either circumstance, financial, ragul, or other problems that prevent these congsainom providing services to our users could
reduce the number of listings on our websites drex@mpleting transactions on our websites moffecdlf, and thereby harm our business. Any
security breach at one of these companies coubtdadfsct our customers and harm our business. Afhave generally have been able to rene
extend the terms of contractual arrangements \Wikd third party service providers on acceptabiesethere can be no assurance that we will
continue to be able to do so in the future.

Other companies or governmental agencies may vienwlsehavior as anti-competitive.

Other companies have in the past and mayeriuture allege that our actions violate the amgitor competition laws of the U.S. or other
countries, or otherwise constitute unfair competitiSuch claims typically are very expensive teeddf involve negative publicity and diversion
of management time and effort, and could resutigmificant judgments against us.

We provided information to the Antitrust Dsion of the U.S. Department of Justice in connectiith an inquiry into our conduct with resp
to “auction aggregators,” including our licensinggram and a previously settled lawsuit againstBits Edge. Although the Antitrust Division
has closed this inquiry, any future antitrust irtigegtion would likely harm our business due to nagapublicity, the costs of the investigation,
possible private antitrust lawsuits, the diversidbmanagement time and effort, and penalties wéhtrgffer if we ultimately were not to prevail.

We depend on key personnel.

Our future performance depends substantialyhe continued services of our senior managemarahbther key personnel and our ability to
retain and motivate them. The loss of the servidemy of our executive officers or other key enygles could harm our business. We do not have
long-term employment agreements with any of ourperssonnel, we do not maintain any “key persor@ iifsurance policies, and our Chief
Executive Officer has fully vested the vast majodf her equity incentives. Our new businessedeend on attracting and retaining key
personnel. Our future success also will dependurability to attract, train, retain and motivaiglly skilled technical, managerial, marketing,
and customer support personnel. Competition fasehpersonnel is intense, and we may be unablectessfully attract, integrate, or retain
sufficiently qualified personnel. In making emplognt decisions, particularly in the Internet andhhigchnology industries, job candidates often
consider the value of the stock options they amedeive in connection with their employment. Fliattons in our stock price may make it more
difficult to retain and motivate employees whosektoption strike prices are substantially aboveent market prices. Similarly, decreases in the
number of unvested stock options held by existimgleyees, either because their options have vestbdcause the size of follow-on option
grants has declined, may make it more difficultetmin and motivate employees.

Our industry is intensely competitive.

We currently or potentially compete with anther of companies providing both particular categgoof goods and broader ranges of goods.
The Internet provides new, rapidly evolving anairgely competitive channels for the sale of ale/pf goods. We expect competition to
intensify in the future. The barriers to entry itlbi@se channels are relatively low, and curredingffand new competitors can easily launch online
sites at a nominal cost using commercially avadauftware or partnering with any one of a numbesuscessful e-commerce companies.

Our broad-based competitors include the regbrity of traditional department, warehouse, dist@t, and general merchandise stores,
emerging online retailers, online classified sexgicand other shopping
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channels such as offline and online home shoppétgarks. These include most prominently: Wal-M&mart, Target, Sears, Macy’s, JC
Penney, Costco, Office Depot, Staples, OfficeMam$ Club, Amazon.com, Buy.com, AOL.com, Yahoo! gpiang, MSN, QVC, and Home
Shopping Network.

A number of companies have launched a vadégervices that provide new channels for buyerfind and buy items from sellers of all sizes.
For example, sites such as Buy.com, DealTime, Go®§roogle, In-Store.com, MySimon.com, Nextag.c@mcegrabber.com, Shopping.com,
and Yahoo! Product Search offer shopping searcmesghat allow consumers to search the Interretgecified products. Similarly, sellers are
increasingly acquiring new customers by payingskarch-related advertisements on search engirgessith as Google and Yahoo!. We use
product search engines and paid search advertisicigannel users to our sites, but these serviseshave the potential to divert users to other
online shopping destinations.

We also face competition from local, regigradd national specialty retailers and exchangesah of our categories of products. Many
competitors have been successful at establishimgetpaces that cater to a particular retail catggsuch as vehicles, tickets, or sporting goods.
Examples of category-specific competitors include:

Books/ Movies/ MusidAbebooks.com, Amazon.com, Barnes & Noble, Alibisn; Blockbuster, BMG, Columbia House, Best Buy, GDN
Express.com, Emusic.com, and Tower Records;

Business & IndustrialAriba, BidFreight.com, Bid4Assets, BizBuyer.com,idpiid.com, Buyer Zone, CloseOutNow.com, Commerce,On
Concur Technologies, DoveBid, FreeMarkets, IromBlalabx.com, Oracle, PurchasePro.com, Ricardo®&ia, Sabre, SurplusBin.com, Ventro,
and VerticalNet;

Clothing & AccessoriesAbercrombie & Fitch, AE.com, Bloomingdales, Blueflgm, Coldwater-Creek.com, Delias.com, Dockers.deduie
Bauer, The Gap, J. Crew, Land’s End, The LimitddBéan, Macy’s, The Men’s Wearhouse, Nieman-Mardlardstrom, Overstock.com,
Payless, Ross, Saks Fifth Avenue, Shoes.com, Ublifitters, Victoria's Secret, Yoox.com, and Zapjgosn;

Collectibles:Bonhams & Butterfields, Bowers and Morena, Christi€ollectiblestoday.com, Collectors Universe,rikliin Mint, Go Collect,
Heritage, Just Glass, Mastronet, Pottery AucticgplRcements.com, Ruby Lane, Shop At Home, Sothebids, US Mint, US Postal Service,
antique and collectible dealers, antique and cttiexfairs, auction houses, flea markets and smapts, independent coin and stamp dealers, anc
specialty retailers;

Computers, Consumer Electronics, and Cameras & ®Hést Buy, Buy.com, Circuit City, CNET, CompUSA, Cputer Discount
Warehouse, Dell, Electronics Boutique, Fry’s Elentcs, Gamestop, Gateway, The Good Guys, Hewlekd?d, IBM, MicroWarehouse,
Overstock.com, PC Connection, PCMall.com, Radioc®hRitz Camera, Tech Depot, Tiger Direct, Tweéteme Entertainment, uBid, major
wireless carriers, and computer, consumer eleatspaind photography retailers;

Home & GardenAce Hardware, Bed, Bath & Beyond, Burpee.com, C8aRarrel, Do-It-Best Hardware, Ethan Allen, Froatg, IKEA,
HomeBase, Home Depot, Kohl's, Lowes, Linens ‘n BsinOSH, Pier One, Pottery Barn, Spiegel, TJ Marestlay Morning, True Value
Hardware, and Williams-Sonoma;

Jewelry & WatchesBluenile.com, Diamond.com, Ice.com, Macy’s, Mondeoan, HSN.com, QVC.com, Tiffany.com, and Zales;

Motors (used vehicles and part$ydvance Auto Parts, AutoByTel.com, Autonation.céxafoPartsPlace, AutoTrader.com, Autozone, Barons
Ltd., Barrett-Jackson, California Classics, Cat®¥holesale, Car-Part.com, CarMax, Cars.com, eesDcom, Collectorcartraderonline.com,
CSK Auto, Dealix, Discount Auto Parts, Dupont RéyiseClassics.com, ExpressAutoparts.com, Genends PCarquest), Genuine/ NAPA,
Hemmings, iMotors.com, JC Whitney, Kragen, Kruseinational, OpenAuto.com, PartsAmerica.com, PepsBBM Auctions, Inc., The Tire
Rack, TraderOnline, Trader Publishing, newspapassifieds, used car dealers, swap meets, car eolssehicle recyclers;
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Sports:Academy Sports, Bass Pro Shops, Big 5, Cabelatk'®Bporting Goods, GolfClubExchange.com, Golfsm@&SI Commerce,
Performance Bike, Play It Again Sports, REI, The®pAuthority, SportsLine.com, and TGW.com; and

Toys:FAO Schwarz, KB Toys, Toys R Us, and Zany Brainy.

Our international websites compete with simdnline and offline channels in each of theitticat categories in most countries. In addition,
they compete with general online e-commerce sstesh as Quelle and Otto in Germany, Yahoo-Kimoaiwhn, Daum in South Korea, TaoBao
and 1pai, a partnership between Sina.com and Yahdohina, and Amazon in the U.K. and other co@strin some of these countries, there are
online sites that have much larger customer basgg@eater brand recognition than we do, and itaseof these jurisdictions there are
competitors that may have a better understandirgcal culture and commerce than we do.

The principal competitive factors for eBaglude the following:
« ability to attract buyers and selle

« volume of transactions and price and selectionoofg;

* customer service; ar

* brand recognition

With respect to our online competition, atdial competitive factors include:
« community cohesion, interaction and si

« system reliability

« reliability of delivery and paymen

 website convenience and accessibil

* level of service fees; ar

« quality of search tools

Some current and potential competitors hangér company operating histories, larger custdmses and greater brand recognition in other
business and Internet sectors than we do. Sonfesé tcompetitors also have significantly greaterfcial, marketing, technical and other
resources. Other online trading services may baiesd|by, receive investments from, or enter irttteo commercial relationships with larger,
well-established and well-financed companies. Assalt, some of our competitors with other revesoierces may be able to devote more
resources to marketing and promotional campaigitptamore aggressive pricing policies and devobstsuntially more resources to website and
systems development than we can. Some of our ciiongebave offered services for free and others dwathis as well. We may be unable to
compete successfully against current and futurepetitors. In addition, certain offline competitongly encourage manufacturers to limit or cease
distribution of their products to dealers who $etbugh online channels such as eBay, or may atteangse existing or future government
regulation to prohibit or limit online commercedartain categories of goods or services. The adiofiity manufacturers or government authorities
of policies or regulations discouraging the salegamds or services over the Internet could fof8ayeusers to stop selling certain products on our
websites. Increased competition or anti-Internstrittiution policies or regulations may result idueed operating margins, loss of market share
and diminished value of our brand.

In order to respond to changes in the cortipetenvironment, we may, from time to time, makieipg, service or marketing decisions or
acquisitions that could harm our profitability. Feetample, we have implemented a buyer protectiognam that generally insures items up to a
value of $200, with a $25 deductible, for userqwaitnon-negative feedback rating at no cost talee. PayPal has implemented a similar buyer
protection program covering losses from selecteglyef®llers up to $1,000, with no deductible. Dep@mndn the amount and size of claims we
receive under these programs, these product offedould harm our profitability. In addition, cart@ompetitors may offer or continue to offer
free shipping or other
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transaction related services, which could be intpralcor inefficient for eBay users to match. Neghinologies may increase the competitive
pressures by enabling our competitors to offemaelocost service.

Although we have established Internet tradfimngements with several large online servicessaarch engine companies, these arrangement
may not be renewed on commercially reasonable terrttsese companies may decide to promote competgrvices. Even if these arrangem
are renewed, they may not result in increased usfger services. In addition, companies that adniser access to transactions through network
access, Internet browsers, or search engines, pooildote our competitors, channel current or péénsers to their vertically integrated
electronic commerce sites or their advertiserg'ssiattempt to restrict our access, or charge hstantial fees for inclusion.

The market for PayPal’s product is emergintgnsely competitive, and characterized by rapahhological change. PayPal competes with
existing online and off-line payment methods, idhg, among others:

« credit card merchant processors that offer theirises to online merchants, including Card Serviogsrnational, Chase, First Data,
iPayment, Paymentech, and Wells Fargo; and paygsatvays, including CyberSource, VeriSign, and Atitte.net;

* BidPay.com and Western Union MoneyZap, each opgtatesubsidiaries of First Dat
» payment services offered by Amazon.cc
» CheckFree

* processors that provide online merchants the phdibffer their customers the option of paying farchases from their bank account,
including Certegy and TeleCheck, a subsidiary otfdata, or to pay on credit, including Bill Meteafrom 14 Commerce and CIT Bar

« providers of traditional payment methods, partidylaredit cards, checks, money orders, and Autech&learing House transactions;
« issuers of stored value targeted at online paymertiaiding VisaBuxx

Some of these competitors have longer opgrdtistories, significantly greater financial, te@al, marketing, customer service and other
resources, greater name recognition, or a largex bhcustomers in affiliated businesses than HalP@gPal's competitors may respond to new or
emerging technologies and changes in customerraqants faster and more effectively than PayPayThay devote greater resources to the
development, promotion, and sale of products andcss than PayPal, and they may offer lower pri€esne of these competitors have offered,
and may continue to offer, their services for fieerder to gain market share, and PayPal may loedoto lower its prices in response. Compe
services tied to established banks and other fiahimstitutions may offer greater liquidity andgamder greater consumer confidence in the safety
and efficacy of their services than PayPal. If hesmpetitors acquired significant market sharie,¢buld result in PayPal losing market share.

Overseas, PayPal faces competition from aimgthannels and payment methods in most countnig$ram regional and national online and
offline competitors in each country including Visad’isa Direct, MasterCard’s MoneySend, ING’s Way2Bad Royal Bank of Scotland’s World
Pay in the European Community, NOCHEX, Moneybookansl Royal Bank of Scotland’s FastPay in the UG€rtaPay and HyperWallet in
Canada, Paymate in Australia, Alipay in China amdis in South Korea. In addition, in certain caieg, such as Germany and Australia,
electronic funds transfer is a leading method gfhpent for both online and offline transactions.iAshe U.S., established banks and other
financial institutions that do not currently offemline payments could quickly and easily develoghsa service.

Our business depends on the development and maamutee of the Internet infrastructure.

The success of our service will depend largel the development and maintenance of the Intémfrastructure. This includes maintenance of
a reliable network backbone with the necessarydspmista capacity, and security, as well as timelyetbpment of complementary products, for
providing reliable
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Internet access and services. The Internet hasierped, and is likely to continue to experienégnificant growth in the numbers of users and
amount of traffic. The Internet infrastructure m@yunable to support such demands. In additiome&sing numbers of users, increasing
bandwidth requirements, or problems caused by $ésy’ “worms,” and similar programs may harm thgqrenance of the Internet. The

backbone computers of the Internet have been tgettgof such programs. The Internet has experieacariety of outages and other delays as a
result of damage to portions of its infrastructumedl it could face outages and delays in the fuflinese outages and delays could reduce the leve
of Internet usage as well as the level of traffid ¢he processing transactions on our service.

We need to develop new services, features, andtfans in order to expand.

We plan to expand our operations by develppiew or complementary services, products, or &etitn formats and expanding the breadth
and depth of our pre-trade and post-trade senilesmay be unable to expand our operations in aeftective or timely manner. We are
pursuing strategic relationships with other comparno provide many of these services. As a reselthay be unable to control the quality of
these services or adequately address problemarisat Expanding our operations in this manner aifiaequire significant additional expenses
and development, operations and other resourcewidirstrain our management, financial and operadiaesources. The lack of acceptance o
new businesses or services could harm our busidassgge our reputation, and diminish the valueuofomand.

We may be unable to protect or enforce our own Ifgetual property rights adequately.

We regard the protection of our trademarkgycights, patents, domain names, trade dresstradd secrets as critical to our success. We
aggressively protect our intellectual property tighy relying on a combination of trademark, coglytj patent, trade dress and trade secret laws,
and through the domain name dispute resolutioresyséVe also rely on contractual restrictions tagebour proprietary rights in products and
services. We have entered into confidentiality envéntion assignment agreements with our emplogeedscontractors, and nondisclosure
agreements with parties with whom we conduct bssirie order to limit access to and disclosure ofpyoprietary information. These contractual
arrangements and the other steps we have takentecpour intellectual property may not prevensapipropriation of our technology or deter
independent development of similar technologiestiners. We pursue the registration of our domames trademarks, and service marks in the
U.S. and internationally. Effective trademark, caglyt, patent, trade dress, trade secret, and doraane protection is very expensive to maintain
and may require litigation. We must protect oudénaarks, patents, and domain names in an increasim@er of jurisdictions, a process that is
expensive and may not be successful in every lmeate have licensed in the past, and expectendie in the future, certain of our proprietary
rights, such as trademarks or copyrighted matedadthers. These licensees may take actions itmanidh the value of our proprietary rights or
harm our reputation.

We are subject to the risks of owning real property

We own real property including land and binigis related to our operations. We have little eigmee in managing real property. Ownershij
this property subjects us to risks, including:

« the possibility of environmental contamination dhd costs associated with fixing any environmeptablems;

« adverse changes in the value of these propertiestadinterest rate changes, changes in the neigbbds in which the properties are
located, or other factor

« the possible need for structural improvements deoto comply with zoning, seismic, disability aot,other requirements; ai

» possible disputes with tenants, neighboring owrmrsthers
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Some ant-takeover provisions may affect the price of oumsmon stock.

Our Board of Directors has the authorityssuie up to 10,000,000 shares of preferred stockcadetermine the preferences, rights and
privileges of those shares without any further \ataction by the stockholders. The rights of thilars of common stock may be harmed by
rights granted to the holders of any preferredistbat may be issued in the future. Some provisadraur certificate of incorporation and bylaws
could have the effect of making it more difficultrfa potential acquirer to acquire a majority of outstanding voting stock. These include
provisions that provide for a classified board médtors, prohibit stockholders from taking actimnwritten consent and restrict the ability of
stockholders to call special meetings. We are sildject to provisions of Delaware law that prohitsitfrom engaging in any business combine
with any interested stockholder for a period otthyears from the date the person became an itger&®ckholder, unless certain conditions are
met. This restriction could have the effect of giglg or preventing a change of control.

ITEM 7A: QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Interest Rate Risk

The primary objective of our investment aitids is to preserve principal while at the sameetimaximizing yields without significantly
increasing risk. To achieve this objective, we rteimour portfolio of cash equivalents and shortrte@nd long-term investments in a variety of
securities, including government and corporate sgesiand money market funds. These securitieg@anerally classified as available for sale
consequently are recorded on the balance sheait &afue with unrealized gains or losses repoated separate component of accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss), net of estimated tax.

Investments in both fixed-rate and floatiagerinterest-earning instruments carry varying degof interest rate risk. The fair market value of
our fixed-rate securities may be adversely impadtgeito a rise in interest rates. In general, séesiwith longer maturities are subject to greater
interest-rate risk than those with shorter maesitWhile floating rate securities generally argjsct to less interest-rate risk than fixed-rate
securities, floating-rate securities may produss lacome than expected if interest rates decr@asein part to these factors, our investment
income may fall short of expectations or we mayesubsses in principal if securities are sold thate declined in market value due to changes in
interest rates. As of December 31, 2004, our fixetme investments earned a pretax yield of appratély 1.7%, with a weighted average
maturity of six months. If interest rates werenstantaneously increase (decrease) by 100 basitsptiie fair market value of the total investment
portfolio could decrease (increase) by approxinyz$&l6.8 million.

We entered into two interest rate swaps ore 19 and July 20, 2000, with notional amountditage$95 million to reduce the impact of
changes in interest rates on a portion of theifigatate operating lease for our San Jose headusarftfice facilities. The interest rate swaps\allo
us to receive floating rate receipts based on tiredbn Interbank Offered Rate, or LIBOR, in exchafagamaking fixed rate payments which
effectively changes our interest rate exposurewroperating lease from a floating rate to a fixatt on $95 million of the total $126.4 million
notional amount of our San Jose headquarterstfalgise commitment. The balance of $31.4 milliemains at a floating rate of interest base:
the spread over 3-month LIBOR. If the 3-month LIB@fRes were to increase (decrease) by 100 bagissptiien our payments would increase
(decrease) by $78,000 per quarter. The fair valikeinterest rate swaps as of December 31, 2@®am unrealized loss of approximately
$662,000, net of tax benefit, and is recorded ouawlated other comprehensive loss on the balamst.sThe interest rate swap will mature in
March 2005, at which time the lease will expire arewill purchase our San Jose headquarters facilit

Equity Price Risk

We are exposed to equity price risk on theketable portion of equity investments we hold,i¢gfly as the result of strategic investments in
third parties that are subject to considerable etaiikk due to their volatility. We typically do nhattempt to reduce or eliminate our market
exposure in these equity investments. In accordesitbeour policy to assess whether an impairmess lon our investments has occurred due to
declines in fair value and other market conditioms,determined that declines in fair value of dartd our
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marketable and non-marketable equity investments wther than temporary. Accordingly, we recordagairment charges totaling $3.8 million
and $1.2 million during the years ended DecembePBQ2 and 2003, respectively, relating to the ethan-temporary impairment in the fair
value of certain equity investments. We did nobrdan impairment charge related to the other-teamporary impairment in the fair value of
equity investments during the year ended Decembge?@4. At December 31, 2004, the total carryiaye of our equity instruments and equity
method investment was $48.3 million, including $illion in marketable investments. At December 3103, the total carrying value of our
equity investments was $14.3 million, including Inillion in marketable investments.

Foreign Currency Risk

International net revenues result from tratisas by our foreign operations and are typicdiyominated in the local currency of each
country. These operations also incur most of tegrenses in the local currency. Accordingly, oueiign operations use the local currency, which
is primarily the Euro, and to a lesser extent,Bhiéish Pound, as their functional currency. Ouemational operations are subject to risks typical
of international operations, including, but notilied to, differing economic conditions, changegdtitical climate, differing tax structures, other
regulations and restrictions, and foreign exchamage volatility. Accordingly, our future resultswd be materially adversely impacted by changes
in these or other factors. In addition, at Decen#igr2004, we held balances in cash, cash equigaden investments outside the U.S. totaling
approximately $467 million.

Transaction Exposure

As of December 31, 2004, we had outstandimgdrd foreign exchange hedge contracts with natigalues equivalent to approximately
$316 million with maturity dates within 11 days.e'hedge contracts are used to offset changes fiticdonal currency value of assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies agsult of currency fluctuations. Transaction gaind losses on the contracts and the assets and
liabilities are recognized each period in our cdidsted statement of income.

Translation Exposure

Foreign exchange rate fluctuations may adglisnpact our consolidated financial position aslas our consolidated results of operations.
Foreign exchange rate fluctuations may adversepachour financial position as the assets andliiigsi of our foreign operations are translated
into U.S. dollars in preparing our consolidatedabak sheet. The effect of foreign exchange ratuations on our consolidated financial position
for the year ended December 31, 2004, was a neflatzon gain of approximately $140 million. Thisig is recognized as an adjustment to
stockholders’ equity through accumulated other ac@hensive income. Additionally, foreign exchangee fauctuations may adversely impact our
consolidated results of operations as exchangdltatiations on transactions denominated in cuieother than our functional currencies re
in gains and losses that are reflected in our dafeted statement of income.

We consolidate the earnings of our foreigossdiaries by converting them into U.S. dollar@atordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 52 “Foreign Currency Tiatien” (FAS 52). Such earnings will fluctuate whirere is a change in foreign currency
exchange rates. From time to time we enter intos@ations to hedge portions of our foreign curreseyominated earnings translation exposure
using both foreign currency options and forwardtcacts. The aggregate notional amount of thesedsedgtered into in 2004 was 109 million
Euro and 43 million British pounds. The loss orsthbedges for 2004 totaled approximately $2.0 anijlivhich were recorded in interest and
other income, net. All contracts that hedge traisiaexposure mature ratably over the quarter irciwkthey are executed.

Economic Exposure

We currently charge our foreign subsidiadasa monthly basis for their use of eBay’s intdllet property and technology and for corporate
services provided by eBay Inc. such as insuraageand legal. This charge is denominated in Eundstlese forecasted inter-company
transaction at eBay Inc. represent a
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foreign currency cash flow exposure. To reduceiferexchange risk relating to these forecasted-icadenpany transactions, we entered into
forward foreign exchange contacts during the yedled December 31, 2004. The objective of the fodveantracts is to ensure that the

U.S. dollar-equivalent cash flows are not adverséfigcted by changes in the U.S. dollar/ Euro ergearate. Pursuant to Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 133 “Accounting for Detiva Instruments and Hedging Activities” (FAS 13®8) expect the hedge of these
forecasted transactions to be highly effectiveffeaiting potential changes in cash flows attriluie a change in the U.S. dollar/ Euro exchange
rate. Accordingly, we record as a component of otieenprehensive income all unrealized gains ansklselated to the forward contracts that
receive hedge accounting treatment. We recordnadlalized gains and losses in interest and otlvenie, net, related to the forward contracts that
do not receive hedge accounting treatment purdodfAS 133. There were no outstanding forward @mérthat receive hedge accounting
treatment at December 31, 2004. The following tablews the notional amount of our economic hedgesred into in 2004, together with the
associated losses, net of gains, recorded in mgatidated statement of income for the year endeceBber 31, 2004, and the amounts included
in accumulated other comprehensive income at DeeefSth 2004:

Accumulated

Net Loss Recordec Other
Notional to Interest and Comprehensive
Amount Other Income, Net Income
(In thousands)
Amount receiving hedge accounting treatment undes E33 $ 140,19¢ $ (3,357 $ —
Amount not receiving hedge accounting treatmentufd\S 132 30,77 (339 —
Total $ 170,96¢ $ (3,690 $ —

No economic hedges were entered into duhieg/ear ended December 31, 2003.

ITEM 8: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Annual Financial Statements and Selected ®dwfinancial Data: The consolidated financialtstents and accompanying notes listed in
Part IV, Item 15(a)(1) of this Annual Report on fp10-K are included elsewhere in this Annual Report
ITEM 9: CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and proceduiased on the evaluation of our disclosure contiats procedures (as defined in the
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the SecuBtiehange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchang8Aeiquired by Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(b) or 15d-15(b), our Chief Executiiéo®r and our Chief Financial Officer have conadadthat as of the end of the period covered
by this report, our disclosure controls and proceguere effective.

(b) Changes in internal control§.here were no changes in our internal controls éimancial reporting that occurred during our mastent
fiscal quarter that have materially affected, @ @asonably likely to materially affect, our imtar control over financial reporting.

(c) Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finah&eporting.Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining
adequate internal control over financial reportiagsuch term is defined in Exchange Act RulesE8- Our management, including our
principal executive officer and principal financ@ficer, conducted an evaluation of the effecte®sof our internal control over financial
reporting
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based on the framework internal Control — Integrated Framewoissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatadrike Treadway
Commission. Based on its evaluation under the fraonke in Internal Control — Integrated Framewortyur management concluded that our
internal control over financial reporting was etfee as of December 31, 2004. Our management'sassmnt of the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting as of December 3104 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopétsdiindependent registered public
accounting firm, as stated in their report whiciniduded elsewhere in this Annual Report on Fof¥Kl

ITEM9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
PART Il

ITEM 10: DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Executive officers are elected annually by Board and serve at the discretion of the Boahne. fdllowing table sets forth certain information
regarding our directors and executive officersfadsebruary 18, 2005.

Name Age Position
Pierre M. Omidyar(5 37 Founder and Chairman of the Bo
Margaret C. Whitman(€ 48 President and Chief Executive Offic
Matthew J. Bannicl 40 President, eBay Internatior
William C. Cobb 48 President, eBay North Ameri
Christopher F. Corrad 45 Senior Vice President and Corporate Chief Techno@fficer
Rajiv Dutta 43 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
Michael R. Jacobso 50 Senior Vice President Legal Affairs, General Coliasel Secretar
Jeffrey D. Jordal 46 President, PayP:
Eskander E. Kazir 39 Senior Vice President, New Ventul
Lynn M. Reedy 49 Senior Vice President, Product, Development andhigcture
Scott Thompsol 47 Senior Vice President, Chief Technology OfficeryPal
Maynard G. Webb, . 49 Chief Operating Office
Fred D. Anderson(1)(4 60 Director
Philippe Bourguignon(2)(€ 57 Director
Scott D. Cook(3)(4 52 Director
Robert C. Kagle(2)(4 49 Director
Dawn G. Lepore(1)(3)(t 50 Director
Richard T. Schlosberg, 111(1)(3)(! 60 Director
Thomas J. Tierney(2)(3)( 50 Director

(1) Member of our Audit Committe

(2) Member of our Compensation Commit

(3) Member of our Corporate Governance and Nominatiognittee
(4) Director continuing in office until our 2005 Annulslleeting

(5) Director continuing in office until our 2006 Annuislleeting

(6) Director continuing in office until our 2007 Annuslleeting
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Pierre M. Omidyarfounded eBay as a sole proprietorship in Septerh®@5. He has been a director and Chairman of tleedBsince eBay’s
incorporation in May 1996 and also served as iteftExecutive Officer, Chief Financial Officer afdtesident from inception to February 1998,
November 1997 and August 1996, respectively. Radounding eBay, Mr. Omidyar was a developer smwiengineer at General Magic, a mc
communication platform company from December 1204uly 1996. Mr. Omidyar co-founded Ink Developm€ptp. (later renamed eShop) in
May 1991 and served as a software engineer thene Ktay 1991 to September 1994. Prior to co-founditkg Mr. Omidyar was a developer for
Claris, a subsidiary of Apple Computer, and forestMacintosh-oriented software development commgami. Omidyar is currently Chairman
and CEO of Omidyar Network. He also serves on Badirustees of Tufts University, The Santa Feitot#, and as a director of several private
companies. Mr. Omidyar holds a B.S. degree in CdergBicience from Tufts University.

Margaret C. Whitmarserves eBay as President and Chief Executive @ffglee has served in that capacity since Febru@®g and as a
director since March 1998. From January 1997 tataly 1998, she was General Manager of the Pres€haigion of Hasbro Inc., a toy
company. From February 1995 to December 1996, Mstridéan was employed by FTD, Inc., a floral prodwsismpany, most recently as
President, Chief Executive Officer and a direcksom October 1992 to February 1995, Ms. Whitman @raployed by The Stride Rite
Corporation, a footwear company, in various capesiincluding President, Stride Rite Children’@r and Executive Vice President, Product
Development, Marketing & Merchandising, Keds Digisi From May 1989 to October 1992, Ms. Whitman wmployed by The Walt Disney
Company, an entertainment company, most recentBeasor Vice President, Marketing, Disney ConsuRr@ducts. Before joining Disney,

Ms. Whitman was at Bain & Co., a consulting firmpshrecently as a Vice President. Ms. Whitman atswes on the board of directors of The
Procter & Gamble Company and Gap Inc. Ms. Whitmald$ian A.B. degree in Economics from Princetonvgrsity and an M.B.A. degree from
the Harvard Business School.

Matthew J. Bannickerves eBay as President, eBay International. deséved in that capacity since December 2004. Edotaber 2002 to
December 2004, Mr. Bannick served as Senior ViesiBent and General Manager, Global Online Paynard<Chief Executive Officer of
PayPal. From November 2000 to October 2002, Mr.ngdnserved as eBay’s Senior Vice President ance@diManager, eBay International.
From February 1999 to November 2000, Mr. Bannickex# in a variety of other executive positions Bag. From April 1995 to January 1999,
Mr. Bannick was an executive for Navigation Teclugdés (NavTech), a leading provider of digital niegpabases for the vehicle navigation and
internet mapping industries. Mr. Bannick was Prestdf NavTech North America for three years amsw alerved as Senior Vice President of
Marketing and Vice President of Operations. FromeJ1992 to August 1992, Mr. Bannick served as awlbent for McKinsey & Company, a
consulting firm, in Europe and from June 1993 tgiAp995 in the U.S. Mr. Bannick also served as.&.Uliplomat in Germany during the period
of German unification. Mr. Bannick holds a B.A.Eeonomics and International Studies from UniversityVashington and an M.B.A degree
from the Harvard Business School.

William C. Coblserves eBay as President, eBay North America. Heséeved in that capacity since December 2004. Beptember 2002 to
December 2004, Mr. Cobb served as Senior Vice ékeasiand General Manager, eBay International. Rdavember 2000 to September 2002,
Mr. Cobb served as eBay’s Senior Vice Presiderdb@lMarketing. From February 2000 to June 200Q,841bb served as the General Manager
of Consumer Sales for Netpliance, Inc., an Intebasted content company. From July 1997 to Febr2@®@, Mr. Cobb served as the Senior Vice
President of International Marketing for Tricon B& Restaurants, Inc. (how known as Yum! Brands,))ra restaurant operator and franchiser.
From August 1995 to July 1997, Mr. Cobb servechasSenior Vice President and Chief Marketing Offiie Pizza Hut, Inc., a division of Tricc
Global Restaurants, Inc. From May 1994 to Augu€51Mr. Cobb served as Vice President of ColagHerPepsi-Cola Company, a division of
PepsiCo., Inc. Mr. Cobb holds a B.S. degree in Bouos from the University of Pennsylvania and aBM. degree from Northwestern
University.

Christopher F. Corradserves eBay as Senior Vice President and CorpGiats Technology Officer. He has served in thatawdy since
December 2004. From April 2003 to December 2004,Barrado served as Executive Vice President & hfermation Officer of AT&T
Wireless, a leading provider of advanced
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wireless voice and data services for consumersashess. From December 2002 to April 2003, Mr.r&awo served as the head of the Security
Solutions Practice at Wipro Technologies., an Iivise provider. From March 1999 to June 2002, Morr@do served as Chief Technology
Officer, Infrastructure of Merrill Lynch & Co., Inca financial holding company. Mr. Corrado ha®dield executive level positions at Deutsche
Bank and Morgan Stanley & Co. Mr. Corrado holds.8.Blegree in Management Information Systems arsihBas Administration from State
University of New York.

Rajiv Duttaserves eBay as Senior Vice President and ChiefhEiabOfficer. He has served in that capacity sid@suary 2001. From August
1999 to January 2001, Mr. Dutta served as eBayce Wresident of Finance and Investor Relationsnkhaly 1998 to August 1999, Mr. Dutta
served as eBay’s Finance director. From Februa®g 18 July 1998, Mr. Dutta served as the World W3@é¢es Controller of KLA-Tencor, a
manufacturer of semiconductor equipment. Prior t&Krencor, Mr. Dutta spent ten years, from Januk®$8 to February 1998, at Bio-Rad
Laboratories, Inc., a manufacturer and distribofdife science and diagnostic products with ogeret in over 24 countries. Mr. Dutta held a
variety of positions with Bio-Rad, including theogip controller of the Life Science Group. Mr. Dudilao serves on the board of directors of
Jamadat Mobile Inc., a global publisher of wireleatertainment applications. Mr. Dutta holds a Bl&gree in Economics from St. Stephen’s
College, Delhi University in India and an M.B.A.gtee from Drucker School of Management.

Michael R. Jacobsogerves eBay as Senior Vice President, Legal Aff@eneral Counsel and Secretary. He has servéaircapacity or as
Vice President, Legal Affairs, General Counsel siAtigust 1998. From 1986 to August 1998, Mr. Jagohsgas a partner with the law firm of
Cooley Godward LLP, specializing in securities lamgrgers and acquisitions, and other transactdnslJacobson holds an A.B. degree in
Economics from Harvard College and a J.D. degrem f6tanford Law School.

Jeffrey D. Jordarserves eBay as President, PayPal. He has sertiealt icapacity since December 2004. From April 2@0December 2004,
Mr. Jordan served as eBay'’s Senior Vice PresiégsBdy North America. From September 1999 to Aprd@0Mr. Jordan served as eBay'’s Vice
President, Regionals and Services. From Septenf@®& tb September 1999, Mr. Jordan served as ChahEial Officer for Hollywood
Entertainment Corporation, a video rental compamg, President of their subsidiary, Reel.com. Frapt&nber 1990 to September 1998,

Mr. Jordan served in various capacities includirggtwecently Senior Vice President and Chief Firer@fficer of The Disney Store Worldwide,
a subsidiary of The Walt Disney Company. Mr. JorbHatds a B.A. degree in Political Science and Psladly from Amherst College and an
M.B.A. degree from the Stanford Graduate Scho®usiness.

Eskander E. Kazirgerves eBay as Senior Vice President, New Ventttesas served in that capacity since December.Z0@4n October
2002 to December 2004, Mr. Kazim served as PayRads President of Marketing and Business Operatiéinom March 2002 to October 2002,
Mr. Kazim served as eBay’s Vice President, eBayniRayts. From November 2000 to March 2002, Mr. Kagérved as eBay’s Vice President of
eBay’s Platform Solutions Group. From August 1998Ibvember 2000, Mr. Kazim served as eBay’s DineofdEngineering. Mr. Kazim holds a
B.S. degree in Mechanical Engineering from Ricevdrsity.

Lynn M. Reedgerves eBay as Senior Vice President, Product, IDewent and Architecture. She has served in thga@ty since June 2003.
From February 2003 to May 2003, Ms. Reedy servesBay's Vice President, Product, Development anthiecture. From March 2002 to
January 2003, Ms. Reedy served as eBay’s VicedteatsiProduct. From November 1999 to February 2062 Reedy served as eBay'’s Vice
President, Product Development. From March 1993dmber 1999, Ms. Reedy was Senior Vice PresidediCGhief Information Officer at Miller
Freeman, Inc. Ms. Reedy holds a B.S. degree frenthiversity of lllinois and an M.B.A. from Santdata University.

Scott Thompsoserves eBay as Senior Vice President, Chief TedgydDfficer, PayPal. He has served in that capagitge February 2005.
From September 2001 to February 2005, Mr. Thompgsoved as Executive Vice President of Technolodytiems at Inovant, LLC, a subsidiary
of Visa USA. From 1998 to September 2001, Mr. Theampwas Chief Information Officer and Executive &Rresident of Technology &
Support Services for Visa USA. Mr. Thompson hold 8. degree in Accounting from Stonehill College.
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Maynard G. Webb, Jserves eBay as Chief Operating Officer. He haseskitv that capacity since June 2002. From Augu8918 June 200:.
Mr. Webb served as President, eBay TechnologiesnBuly 1998 to August 1999, Mr. Webb was Seniae\Rresident and Chief Information
Officer at Gateway, Inc., a computer manufactufeom February 1995 to July 1998, Mr. Webb was \Rcesident and Chief Information Officer
at Bay Networks, Inc., a manufacturer of computtiorking products. From June 1991 to January 1885Webb was Director, IT at Quantum
Corporation. Mr. Webb also serves on the boardrettbrs of Gartner, Inc., a high technology reskand consulting firm and Peribit Networks,
a networking company. Mr. Webb holds a B.A.A. degiom Florida Atlantic University.

John Donahoevas announced as President of the eBay Busines®tliiebruary 24, 2005. Information about Mr. Domahincluding the
offer letter between Mr. Donahoe and eBay, is idetliin a current report on Form 8-K filed by eBawytlat date.

Fred D. Andersoras served as a director of eBay since July 2003Akderson has been a Managing Director of Elewaartners, a priva
equity firm focused on the media and entertainniedhistry since July 2004. From March 1996 to Jud@42 Mr. Anderson served as Executive
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Apflemputer, Inc., a manufacturer of personal compuaed related software. Prior to joining
Apple, Mr. Anderson was Corporate Vice Presidemnt @hief Financial Officer of Automatic Data Prodess Inc., an electronic transaction
processing firm, from August 1992 to March 1996. Mnderson also serves on the board of directofspple Computer, Inc. and E.piphany, Inc.
Mr. Anderson holds a B.A. degree from Whittier @gé and an M.B.A. from the University of Californiaos Angeles.

Philippe Bourguignorhas served as a director of eBay since Decembé. MO Bourguignon has been the Chairman of Aegéslld France,
a media communications and market research comginog April 2004. From September 2003 to March 200% Bourguignon was Co-Chief
Executive Officer of The World Economic Forum (TBAVOS Forum). From August 2003 to October 2003, Bwurguignon served as
Managing Director of The World Economic Forum. Fréril 1997 to January 2003, Mr. Bourguignon serasdChairman of the Board of Club
Mediterranee S.A., a resort operator. Prior toalpigointment at Club Mediterranee S.A., Mr. Bourguig was Chief Executive Officer of Euro
Disney S.A., the parent company of Disneyland Paixe 1993, and Executive Vice President of Thadt\isney Company (Europe) S.A., sir
October 1996. Mr. Bourguignon was named PresideRuoo Disney in 1992, a post he held through Ap&93. He joined The Walt Disney
Company in 1988 as head of Real Estate developmnBourguignon holds a Masters Degree in Econgraicthe University of Aix-en-
Provence and holds a post-graduate diploma fronnttéut d’Administration des Enterprises (IAE) Raris.

Scott D. Coolhas served as a director of eBay since June 1988Cdbk is the founder of Intuit Inc., a financgftware developer. Mr. Cook
has been a director of Intuit since March 1984 iarairrently Chairman of the Executive Committeehaf Board of Intuit. From March 1993 to
July 1998, Mr. Cook served as Chairman of the Baduidtuit. From March 1984 to April 1994, Mr. Coaskrved as President and Chief Exect
Officer of Intuit. Mr. Cook also serves on the taf directors of The Procter & Gamble Company. 8look holds a B.A. degree in Economics
and Mathematics from the University of Southernifoatia and an M.B.A. degree from the Harvard Bes School.

Robert C. Kagldas served as a director of eBay since June 198K&agle has been a Member of Benchmark Capital@aneral Partner of
Benchmark Capital Partners, L.P. and Benchmark &exs\Fund, L.P., since its founding in May 1995. Mr. Kkaglso has been a General Par
of Technology Venture Investors since January 1884 Kagle also serves on the board of directorE-0fOAN, Inc. and ZipRealty, Inc.

Mr. Kagle holds a B.S. degree in Electrical and Nadcal Engineering from the General Motors Ingtitirenamed Kettering University in
January 1998) and an M.B.A. degree from the StanBmaduate School of Business.

Dawn G. Leporéhas served as a director of eBay since Decembé. M8, Lepore has served as Chief Executive Officer Chairman of the
Board of drugstore.com, inc., a leading online e of health, beauty, vision, and pharmacy sohgj since October 2004. From August 20C
October 2004, Ms. Lepore served as Vice Chairmarechnology, Active Trader, Operations, Businesat8gy, and Administration for the
Charles Schwab Corporation and Charles Schwab &8r€g, a financial holding company. Prior to this
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appointment, she held various positions with thari®s Schwab Corporation including: Vice Chairméiechnology, Operations, Business
Strategy, and Administration from May 2003 to Aug2803; Vice Chairman of Technology, Operationg] Administration from March 2002 to
May 2003; Vice Chairman of Technology and Admiration from November 2001 to March 2002; and Vicai@han and Chief Information
Officer from July 1999 to November 2001. She akwvss on the board of directors of Catalyst, aaseseand advisory organization working to
expand opportunities for women in business, araltagstee of Smith College. Ms. Lepore holds a Blégree from Smith College.

Richard T. Schlosberg, IHas served as a director of eBay since March Zo@n May 1999 to January 2004, Mr. Schlosberg skage
President and Chief Executive Officer of the Da&itlucile Packard Foundation, a private family foatidn. Prior to joining the foundation,
Mr. Schlosberg was Executive Vice President of Thees Mirror Company and publisher and Chief Exaeu©fficer of the Los Angeles Times.
Prior to that, he served in the same role at thevBePost. Mr. Schlosberg serves on the boardrettirs of Edison International, and is also a
national board member of the Smithsonian Institudad the National Air and Space museum, a menflibedJSO World Board of Govenors,
and a trustee of Pomona College. Mr. Schlosbeagismduate of the United States Air Force Acadeanyg, holds an M.B.A. degree from the
Harvard Business School.

Thomas J. Tiernelgas served as a director of eBay since March 2@@3Tierney is the founder of The Bridgespan Graaumon-profit
consulting firm serving the non-profit sector, drabs been its Chairman of the Board since late 1P86r to founding Bridgespan, Mr. Tierney
served as Chief Executive Officer of Bain & Compaayonsulting firm, from June 1992 to January 2000 Tierney holds a B.A. degree in
Economics from the University of California at Daxand an M.B.A. degree with distinction from thert#ad Business School. Mr. Tierney is the
co-author of a book about organization and stratadiedAligning the Stars.

Audit Committee and Audit Committee Financial Expert

Our Board has a separately-designated stgrlidit Committee established in accordance witttiBe 3(a)(58)(A) of the Exchange Act. The
members of the Audit Committee are Fred D. AnderBawn G. Lepore, and Richard T. Schlosberg, Ilir Board has determined that Fred D.
Anderson, Chairman of the Audit Committee, is adibcommittee financial expert as defined by Ite@iéh) of Regulation S-K of the Exchange
Act and that each member of the Audit Committeéedependent within the meaning of Rule 4200(a)(8he National Association of Securities
Dealers’ listing standards.

Code of Ethics, Governance Guidelines and Committe&harters

We have adoptedGode of Business Conduct and Etttitat applies to all eBay employees. We have alspted aCode of Ethics for Senior
Financial Officersthat applies to our senior financial officers, irdihg our principal executive officer, principahéincial officer and principal
accounting officer. Th€ode of Ethics for Senior Financial Officaéssposted on our website ltp://investor.ebay.com/governance/ ethics.cfm.
We will post any amendments to or waivers from@uoele of Ethics for Senior Financial Officeasthat location.

We have also adopt@&bvernance Guidelines for the Board of Directargl a written committee charter for each of ourifG@dmmittee,
Compensation Committee, and Corporate Governamt&aminating Committee. Each of these documerasailable on our website at
http://investor.ebay.com/governance/ home.cfm.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdince

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requiresdiectors, executive officers, and holders of entbran 10% of our common stock to file reports
regarding their ownership and changes in ownermshqur securities with the SEC, and to furnish uthwopies of all Section 16(a) reports that
they file.
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We believe that during the fiscal year enBedember 31, 2004, our directors, executive officand greater than 10% stockholders complied
with all applicable Section 16(a) filing requirentgnrexcept that:

one late Form 3 was filed by Douglas Jeffries, Buncipal Accounting Officer, on August 27, 2004réport Mr. Jeffries becoming a
Section 16 reporting individual as of August 5, 208nd two late Form 4 reports were filed on Aud@ist2004 to show purchases of eBay
stock made by Mr. Jeffries on August 10, 2004 andust 12, 2004; an

one late Form 3 was filed by Eskander E. Kazim,®emior Vice President, New Ventures, on DecemBgPQ04 to report Mr. Kazim
becoming a Section 16 reporting individual as oE®waber 7, 2004 and one late Form 4 report was fileBecember 20, 2004 to report a
stock option granted to Mr. Kazim on December M4

In making this statement, we have relied upoaview of the copies of Section 16(a) reportaihed to us and the written representations of
our directors, executive officers, and greater thd% stockholders.
ITEM 11: EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Summary of Compensation

The following table shows certain compengagarned during the fiscal years ended Decembe2(®2, 2003 and 2004, by our Chief
Executive Officer and four most highly-compensatéiier executive officers (based on their total ahisalary and bonus compensation), also
referred to as the Named Executive Officers, atebewer 31, 2004.

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Long-Term and Other
Compensation

Annual Compensation Number of
Securities
Fiscal Other Annual Underlying All Other
Name and 2004 Principal Position: Year Salary(1) Bonus(2) Compensation(3) Options(4) Compensation(5)

Margaret C. Whitmal 2004 $994,05. $ 1,553,48(6) $ 357,53! 1,200,001 $ 3,16/
President an 200¢ 843,82: 1,159,13(6) 377,49¢ 2,200,00! 3,16¢
Chief Executive Office 200z 250,00¢ 329,69¢(6) 336,65 1,200,001 1,98(
Maynard G. Webb, Jr 200< 620,20: 1,880,27(7) 35,33t 650,00( 1,00¢
Chief Operating Office 200 582,00 1,266,60(7) — 1,100,00: 1,00¢
200z 531,25( 837,1547) — 600,00( 1,10¢
Jeffrey D. Jordal 200< 494,28 937,03{(8) — 440,00( 2,29(
President, PayP: 200¢ 439,34! 858,79(8) — 600,00( 79C
200z 345,10: 739,7648) — 540,00( 67z
Matthew J. Bannicl 200¢ 474,25¢ 944,95((9) — 440,00( 2,257
President 200¢ 423,08:¢ 596,2649) — 600,00( 2,257
eBay Internatione 200z 334,08t 472,54((9) 15,98 560,00( 2,17:
William C. Cobb 200¢ 419,67- 1,026,141(10) 10,79¢ 300,00t 2,17:
President 200¢ 382,51¢ 368,89410) — 500,00t 2,17:
eBay North Americ: 200z 312,18! 240,39((10) — 500,00( 2,17:

(1) Effective March 1, 2004, all eligible emplogeaf eBay, including certain of the Named Execu@fécers, received an annual salary
increase representing: (i) in the case of Ms. Waitpa salary of $995,016 per annum; (i) in theeazfsMr. Webb, a salary of $625,008 per
annum; (iii) in the case of Mr. Jordan, a salar$$500,016 per annum; (iv) in the case of Mr. Baknicsalary of $480,000 per annum; and
(v) in the case of Mr. Cobb, a salary of $415,088annum. In addition, Mr. Cobb received a salagyéase to $450,000 per annum
effective October 1, 2004. Total salary amount®rega are lower than these annual salaries bedawse salaries were in effect for portic
of 2004.
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)
®)

(4)
®)

(6)
)

®

All 2004 bonuses represent amounts paid i 20@ 2005 for services rendered in 2004, all 28f81ses represent amounts paid in 2003
and 2004 for services rendered in 2003, and al22@huses represent amounts paid in 2002 and 20G&fvices rendered in 20(

Represents: (i) in the case of Ms. Whitman2@d4, personal use of eBay’s corporate aircrafyed at the incremental cost of such use to
the company ($229,145), and an additional $128t®8tus granted by the Compensation Committee in #@6ver any income taxes
relating to such aircraft use; (ii) in the casevisf. Whitman for 2003, personal use of eBagorporate aircraft, valued at the incrementat

of such use to the company ($307,496), and aniaddit$70,000 bonus granted by the Compensationriitiee in 2004 to cover any
income taxes relating to such aircraft use; (fiijie case of Ms. Whitman for 2002, her personalafeBay’s corporate aircraft ($171,693),
valued at the incremental cost of such use to éhepany, and of a corporate aircraft from an unaféd third-party vendor, which is valued
at actual invoiced amounts ($74,961); and an amtiti$90,000 bonus granted by the Compensation Gibeenin 2003 to cover any income
taxes relating to such aircraft use; (iv) in theecaf Mr. Webb for 2004, personal use of eBay’pouaate aircraft, valued at the incremental
cost of such use to the company ($28,070), andlditianal $7,265 bonus granted by the Compensa&immmittee in 2005 to cover any
income taxes relating to such aircraft use; (Mhimcase of Mr. Bannick for 2002, costs associafiél family transportation while

Mr. Bannick worked out of our European offices dgrthe summer of 2002; and (vi) in the case of G&ibb for 2004, personal use of
eBay's corporate aircraft, valued at the incremental obsuch use to the compat

Prior to 2004, eBay calculated the cost of thes@eal use of its corporate aircraft using the &ad Industrial Fare Level (SIFL) tables
prescribed under applicable IRS regulations. Baegonim 2004, eBay calculated the value of the peabase of its corporate aircraft by
estimating the incremental cost to the companyohaise. The calculation of incremental cost ietam the weighted average cost of fuel,
maintenance expenses, parts and supplies, laneisy dround services, catering and crew expensesiated with such use. Had eBay u
the IRS’s SIFL tables to calculate the value offbesonal use of its corporate aircraft by Ms. \ilaih, Mr. Webb, and Mr. Cobb in 2004,
such use would have been valued at $154,267, $0,3s0% $7,070, respectively. Because eBay hasndieted that this incremental cost
methodology produces generally higher amounts tis&nof the SIFL calculation method, the incremettat methodology has also been
used to calculate the value of personal use ofazatp aircraft by Ms. Whitman for 2003 and 2002oPannual reports and proxy stateme
reflected the value of Ms. Whitman’s personal useooporate aircraft in 2003 and 2002 using thelLSi&lculation method, and valued such
use at $115,857 and $58,101, respecti

Amounts have been adjusted to reflect all prioclstplits, including eBe’'s twc-for-one stock split that occurred on February 16, 2

Represents, in the case of each of the Nammeduiive Officers, insurance premiums we paid wétbpect to group life insurance for their
benefit and matching contributions under our 40HRlan (subject to the maximum of $1,500 per anni

Represents amounts paid to Ms. Whitman under’s Management Incentive Ple

Represents (i) for 2004, $726,279 paid un@ayés Management Incentive Plan and $1,154,000 padter Mr. Webb's special retention
plan; (ii) for 2003, $620,501 paid under eBay’s ldgement Incentive Plan and $646,100 paid undei¥bb’s special retention plan; and
(iii) for 2002, $387,254 paid under eBay’s Managatriacentive Plan and $449,900 paid under Mr. Welsipecial retention plan. See
“Item 13: Certain Relationships and Related Transas”

Represents (i) for 2004, $462,948 for 2004l paider eBay’s Management Incentive Plan, $47202fr Mr. Jordan’s special retention
plans and an additional $2,065 bonus granted b timpensation Committee in 2005; (ii) for 2003, $3®5 for 2003 paid under eBay’s
Management Incentive Plan and $497,288 under Mdaids special retention plans; and (iii) for 208202,212 paid under eBay’s
Management Incentive Plan, $522,550 paid underdbhdan’s special retention plans and $15,000 paisiyant to our discretionary reward
program. Se“ltem 13: Certain Relationships and Related Transas”
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9) Represents (i) for 2004, $444,950 paid urdtay’s Management Incentive Plan, and $500,000 wader Mr. Bannick’s special retention
plan; (ii) for 2003, $346,264 paid under eBay’s gement Incentive Plan, and $250,000 paid undeBlsinnick’s special retention plan;
and (iii) for 2002, $207,540 paid under eBay’s Mg@ment Incentive Plan, $250,000 paid under Mr. Bads special retention plan and
$15,000 paid pursuant to our discretionary rewaogjram. SetItem 13: Certain Relationships and Related Traisas”

(10) Represents (i) for 2004, $392,211 paid urdday’s Management Incentive Plan, $350,000 paictuit. Cobbs special retention plans
performance bonus of $280,000 granted by the Coegtimm Committee in 2004, and an additional $3)8@%us granted by the
Compensation Committee in 2005; (ii) for 2003, $33® paid under eBay’s Management Incentive Plad,$70,000 paid under
Mr. Cobb’s special retention plan; and (iii) for@) $170,390 paid under eBay’s Management Inceftiza and $70,000 paid under
Mr. Cobt’s special retention plan. S“Item 13: Certain Relationships and Related Tramnsas”

The following executive officers received igisof options in 2004 under eBay’s 2001’s Equitgentive Plan, which we also refer to as the
2001 Plan.

Option Grants During 2004

Potential Realizable Value ai

Number of Percentage o Assumed Annual Rates o

Securities Total Options Stock Price Appreciation for

Underlying Granted to Exercise Option Term(4)

Options Employees Price Expiration
Name Granted(1) During 2004(2) per Share(3) Date 5% 10%

Margaret C. Whitmal 1,200,001 2.8% $ 34.6: 3/1/14  $  26,123,02 $ 66,200,87
Maynard G. Webb, Jr 650,00( 1.5 34.6: 3/1/1¢ 14,149,97 35,858,380
Jeffrey D. Jordal 440,00( 1.C 34.6: 3/1/1¢ 9,578,44. 24,273,65
Matthew J. Bannicl 440,00( 1.C 34.6: 3/1/1¢ 9,578,44. 24,273,65
William C. Cobb 300,00t 0.7 34.6: 3/1/1¢ 6,530,75! 16,550,21

(1) Options granted in 2004 were granted unde@t¥ Plan. All options granted in 2004 to the Ndraaecutive Officers were granted by our
Board, are nonqualified stock options and are suibgea four-year vesting schedule, vesting 12.5%r aix months and/ 4s per month
thereafter. Amounts have been adjusted to reflectwc-for-one stock split effective on February 16, 2C

(2) Based on options to purchase 42,964,094 sharas @oonmon stock granted to employees in 2!

(3) Options were granted at an exercise price léquhe fair market value of our common stockdetermined by the Board of Directors on the
date of grant. The exercise prices per share listélte table above are rounded to the nearest Thatexercise per share has been adjusted
to reflect the tw-for-one stock split effective on February 16, 2C

(4) Reflects the value of the stock option ondhee of grant assuming (i) for the 5% column, a&¥ual rate of appreciation in our common
stock over the ten-year term of the option andfdii)the 10% column, a 10% annual rate of apprigiah our common stock over the ten-
year term of the option, in each case without disting to net present value and before income tagesciated with the exercise. The 5%
and 10% assumed rates of appreciation are bastt oales of the SEC and do not represent our agtiwr projection of the future
common stock price. The amounts in this table nmaynecessarily be achieve
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The following table sets forth the numbesbéres acquired and the value realized upon erestistock options during 2004 and the number
of shares of our common stock subject to exeragsabtl unexercisable stock options held as of DeeeSth 2004, by each of the Named
Executive Officers. The value at fiscal year enthiasured as the difference between the exerdise gomd the fair market value at close of me
on December 31, 2004, which was $58.17.

Aggregate Option Exercises in 2004 and Values at Bember 31, 2004

Number of Securities

Underlying Value of Unexercisec
Unexercised Options In-The-Money Options
Shares
Acquired on Value Exercisable Unexercisable Exercisable Unexercisable

Name Exercise(1) Realized(2) #) #) $) $
Margaret C. Whitmal — % — 4,162,501 3,437,50! $ 179,531,11 $ 125,116,93
Maynard G. Webb, Jr 1,400,001 43,896,36 1,188,12. 1,321,871 47,708,95 44,076,74
Jeffrey D. Jordal 800,00( 22,358,98 1,268,36: 852,50( 51,442,81 28,386,06
Matthew J. Bannicl 791,66( 17,813,07 298,33 858,33¢ 10,427,62 28,640,76
William C. Cobb 466,00( 14,259,64. 633,16¢ 670,83¢ 25,564,44 23,015,85

(1) Amounts have been adjusted to reflect the-for-one stock split effective on February 16, 2C

(2) Value realized is based on the fair marketigaf our common stock on date of exercise mines#tercise price and does not necessarily
reflect proceeds actually received by the offi

(3) Calculated using the fair market value of common stock on December 31, 2004 ($58.17), astadjuo reflect the two-for-one stock split
effective February 16, 2005, less the exerciseemfche option

Employment Agreements, Change-in-Control Arrangemets, and Retention Bonus Plans

We do not have long-term employment agreesn@nthange-in-control arrangements with any ofexacutive officers, nor are any of our
executive officers covered by any pension planefexded compensation plan. We do not have any aegerpayment arrangements with any of
our executive officers, except that under his iny1999 offer letter, if Mr. Webb is terminatedhet than for cause, he is entitled to receive g:
compensation for six months, and if he remains uleyed at the end of such six-month period, hdiggtde to received additional salary
compensation for the lesser of six months or contaeent of other employment. “Item 13: Certain Relathips and Related Transactions”
contains descriptions of the special retention Bgrlans that we have entered into with certainunfexecutive officers.

Compensation of Directors

New directors who are not employees of eBayny parent, subsidiary or affiliate of eBay,a@e deferred stock units, or DSUs, with an
initial value of $150,000 under our 2003 DeferrédcR Unit Plan. DSUs represent an unfunded, unsekcright to receive shares of eBay comi
stock (or the equivalent value thereof in cashropprty), and the value of DSUs varies directlyhwhie price of eBay common stock. Each DS
award granted to a non-employee director uponieletd the Board will vest as to 25% of the DSUgoa first anniversary of the date of grant
and as td/ ssof the DSUs each month thereafter, provided thectlir continues as a director or consultant of eBe&Us are payable in stock or
cash (at eBay’s election) following the terminatimfra non-employee director’s tenure in such cdpaci

Non-employee directors are also eligibleddipipate in the 1998 Directors Stock Option Plasp referred to as the Directors Plan. Option
grants under the Directors Plan are automatic amddiscretionary, and the exercise price of théomgtmust be 100% of the fair market value of
the common stock on the date of grant. Each ebdgillector is granted an option to purchase 153b@0es, of eBay common stock at the time of
each annual meeting if he or she has served cantgtyias a member of the Board since the dateeglethe Compensation Committee of the
Board elected to maintain the annual option grawfen the Directors Plan at 15,000 shares followvifiregtwo-for-one split of eBay common stock
in February 2005. All options
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granted under the Directors Plan vest as to 258%eo$hares on the first anniversary of the datgrafit and as t&/ ssof the shares each month
thereafter, provided the optionee continues asextdir or consultant of eBay.

Non-employee directors are paid a retainé5¥,000 per year, the chairman of the Audit Correriteceives an additional $10,000 per year,
and all other committee chairs receive an additi86z2000 per year. Each non-employee director @seives meeting fees of $2,000 for each
Board meeting and $1,000 for each committee meeflngng 2004, in connection with travel to Boareetings, the company purchased
commercial airfare for the spouses of Mr. Anderand Mr. Schlosberg valued at approximately $8,800%v,300, respectively.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Parttipation

The members of the Compensation CommitteioBoard are Philippe Bourguinon, Robert C. Kaghed Thomas J. Tierney. No member of
our Board’s Compensation Committee is or was folyram officer or an employee of eBay. No interlotkirelationship exists between our Board
and its Compensation Committee and the board etttirs or compensation committee of any other campor has such interlocking
relationship existed in the past.

Mr. Kagle, a member of our Compensation Cotta®j is a member of the general partner of cexairiure capital funds that beneficially hold
greater than a 10% equity interest in Business.dne In late 2003, we entered into an advertising related services agreement with
Business.com, Inc., under which we incurred feesppiroximately $80,000 in 2004 and under which weently expect to incur a similar amount
of fees in 2005. We believe this transaction wadenan terms no less favorable to us than we ccaNeé lobtained from unaffiliated third parties.
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ITEM 12: SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS ANDMANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

The following table sets forth certain infation known to us with respect to beneficial owhgof the Common Stock as of February 18,
2005, by (i) each stockholder known to us to bebveeficial owner of more than 5% of our commorcistdii) each director and nominee for
director, (iii) each of the executive officers naiie the Summary Compensation Table set forth uHtlem 11: Executive Compensation —
Summary of Compensation” and (iv) all executivaagffs and directors as a group.

Shares Beneficially

Owned(1)
Name of Beneficial Owner Number Percent
Pierre M. Omidyar(2 215,336,56 16.(%
Jeffrey S. Skoll(3 90,578,49. 6.7
Margaret C. Whitman(4 31,072,35 2.3
Maynard G. Webb, Jr.(t 1,483,95 *
Jeffrey D. Jordan(€ 1,440,23. *
Matthew J. Bannick(7 452,81! *
William C. Cobb(8) 775,49¢ *
Fred D. Anderson(¢ 6,00( *
Philippe Bourguignon(1C 506,25( *
Scott D. Cook(11 2,199,25i *
Robert C. Kagle(12 3,718,33! *
Dawn G. Lepore(13 341,25( *
Richard T. Schlosberg, I11(1+ 3,20(
Thomas J. Tierney(1: 20,25( *
All directors and executive officers as a group g&8sons)(16 262,748,72 19.z

* Less than one percel

(1) This table is based upon information sumpbyg officers, directors and principal stockholdansl Schedules 13D and 13G filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission. Beneficial @glrip is determined in accordance with the rulethefSecurities and Exchange
Commission and generally includes voting or invesitrpower with respect to securities. Unless otisnindicated below, the persons
and entities named in the table have sole votingsafe investment power with respect to all shasseficially owned, subject to
community property laws where applicable. Sharemunfcommon stock subject to options that are otiyexercisable or exercisable
within 60 days of February 18, 2005 are deemedcetouistanding for the purpose of computing the gr@eme ownership of the person
holding those options, but are not treated as aodéng for the purpose of computing the percentageership of any other person. The
percentage of beneficial ownership is based on418846,283 shares of our common stock outstandired Bebruary 18, 2005. Amounts
have been adjusted to reflect the -for-one stock split effective on February 16, 2C

(2) Mr. Omidyar is our Founder and Chairmanhaf Board. Includes 490,000 shares held by his spasiso which he disclaims beneficial
ownership. The address for Mr. Omidyar is 2145 HamiAvenue, San Jose, California 951

(3) Mr. Skoll is a former officer and directarthe company. The address for Mr. Skoll is c/de3ef. Company, LLP, 1100 Marshall Street,
Redwood City, CA 94063, Attn: James G.B. DeMatrtiHi,

(4) Ms. Whitman is our President and Chief ExieuOfficer. Includes 7,646,842 shares held by@niffith R. Harsh, IV & Margaret C.
Whitman TTEES of Sweetwater Trust U/ A/ D 10/15/2830,046 shares held by the Griffith R. Harsh, TWEE, GRH 2003 GRAT, and
1,330,046 shares held by the Margaret C. WhitmalBH,TMCW 2003 GRAT, 4,000,000 shares held by théi@riR. Harsh, IV, TTEE,
GRH 2004 GRAT and 4,000,000 shares held by the dtatdC. Whitman TTEE
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(5)
(6)
()
(8)

(9)
(10)

11)
12)
13)

(14)
(15)

(16)

MCW 2004 GRAT and 2,000,000 shares held by thefi@riR. Harsh, IV, TTEE GRH 2005 GRAT and 2,000,G0@res held by the
Margaret C. Whitman TTEE, MCW 2005 GRAT. In additjdt includes (a) 4,792 shares held by Griffithtfrarford Harsh IV Custodian
Griffith Rutherford Harsh V UTMA California as tohich Ms. Whitman'’s spouse is custodian for thettausl as to which Ms. Whitman
disclaims beneficial ownership and (b) 4,792 shaedd by Griffith Rutherford Harsh IV Custodian \idim Whitman Harsh UTMA
California as to which Ms. Whitman'’s spouse is ods&in for the trust and as to which Ms. Whitmarcidiens beneficial ownership.
Includes 4,795,833 shares Ms. Whitman has the tightquire pursuant to outstanding options exabdéswithin 60 days. The address for
Ms. Whitman is c/o eBay Inc., 2145 Hamilton Aven8an Jose, California 9512

Mr. Webb is our Chief Operating Officer. lndes 1,383,957 shares Mr. Webb has the rightdaiee pursuant to outstanding options
exercisable within 60 days. The address for Mr. Bvslx/o eBay Inc., 2145 Hamilton Avenue, San J@sdifornia 95125

Mr. Jordan is our President, PayPal. Inctutld00,034 shares Mr. Jordan has the right toiecgursuant to outstanding options
exercisable within 60 days. The address for Mrddoris c/o eBay Inc., 2145 Hamilton Avenue, Sar JGslifornia 95125

Mr. Bannick is our President, eBay Interaaél. Includes 431,667 shares Mr. Bannick hasitig to acquire pursuant to outstanding
options exercisable within 60 days. The addres$ffiorBannick is c/o eBay Inc., 2145 Hamilton Aven@an Jose, California 9512

Mr. Cobb is our President, eBay North Amarimcludes 741,499 shares Mr. Cobb has the rigatguire pursuant to outstanding options
exercisable within 60 days. The address for Mr.I€islc/o eBay Inc., 2145 Hamilton Avenue, San JGsdifornia 95125

The address for Mr. Anderson is c/o eBay Inc., 2dd#ilton Avenue, San Jose, California 951

Includes 506,250 shares Mr. Bourguignon hagight to acquire pursuant to outstanding optexercisable within 60 days. The address
for Mr. Bourguignon is c/o eBay Inc., 2145 Hamiltdmenue, San Jose, California 951

Includes 2,036,250 shares Mr. Cook has tife tb acquire pursuant to outstanding optionsa@sable within 60 days. The address for
Mr. Cook is c/o Intuit, Inc., 2535 Garcia Avenuepbhtain View, California 9404!

Includes 346,250 shares Mr. Kagle has tha tigacquire pursuant to outstanding options ésabde within 60 days. The address for
Mr. Kagle is c/o Benchmark Capital, 2480 Sand Rilad, Suite 200, Menlo Park, California 940

Includes 301,250 shares Ms. Lepore has gt t acquire pursuant to outstanding options@sable within 60 days. The address for
Ms. Lepore is c/o drugstore.com, inc., 13920 S&stgate Way #300, Bellevue, WA 980!

The address for Mr. Schlosberg is 990-10 West, Suite 800, San Antonio, TX 782

Includes 16,250 shares Mr. Tierney has ftijiet tio acquire pursuant to outstanding options@sable within 60 days. The address for
Mr. Tierney is c/o The Bridgespan Group, 535 Baytsbtreet, 10th Floor, Boston, MA 021

Includes 16,593,900 shares subject to options esedrie within 60 days
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table gives information abouwtrghares of common stock that may be issued uppaxercise of options, warrants and rights
under all of our existing equity compensation plaa®f December 31, 2004, including our 1996 Spkon Plan, 1997 Stock Option Plan, 1998
Equity Incentive Plan, 1998 Directors Stock Optilan, 1999 Global Equity Incentive Plan, 2001 Bguicentive Plan, and 2003 Deferred Stock
Unit Plan, as well as shares of our common stoakriay be issued under individual compensatiomgements that were not approved by our
stockholders, also referred to as our Non-Plan Grédo warrants or rights are outstanding underddrtize foregoing plans.

(©)

(@) Number of Securities
Number of Securities (b) Remaining Available for
to be Issued Weighted Average Future Issuance under
upon Exercise of Exercise Price ol Equity Compensation Plans
Outstanding Options, Outstanding Options, (Excluding Securities
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights Reflected in Column(a))
Equity compensation plans
approved by securityholde 134,119,86 $ 24.0¢ 122,712,09(1)
Equity compensation plans not
approved by securityholde 1,690,001(2)(3)(4)(5)(6 0.3¢€ —
Total 135,809,86 $ 23.7¢ 122,712,09

(1) Includes 5,987,748 shares of our common sterlaining available for future issuance under @88LEmployee Stock Purchase Plan, as
amended, or the ESPP, as of December 31, 2004E8RIP contains an “evergreen” provision that autmalét increases, on each
January 1, the number of securities availablesfsuance under the ESPP by the number of shardsgseat under the ESPP in the prece
calendar year. An aggregate amount of 1,212,252 sheas purchased under the ESPP in 2004. Nongr aftioer plans has an “evergreen”
provision.

(2) Does not include 396 shares of our commorkstwith a weighted average exercise price of $@&7share, to be issued upon exercise of
outstanding options assumed by us under the Biltpbic. 1999 Stock Option Plan, or the Billpoiri&®, in connection with our acquisition
of Billpoint in 1999, as we cannot make subseqgeants or awards of our equity securities undeBitipoint Plan. Prior to our acquisition
of Billpoint, the stockholders of Billpoint approdehe Billpoint Plan. Our stockholders, howeved dot approve the Billpoint Plan in
connection with our acquisition of Billpoir

(3) Does not include 26,884 shares of our common steitk,a weighted average exercise price of $9.53hare, to be issued upon exercis
outstanding options assumed by us under the Haif.tmc. 1999 Equity Compensation Plan, or the idath Plan, in connection with our
acquisition of Half.com in 2000, as we cannot msililesequent grants or awards of our equity secsititigler the Half.com Plan. Prior to
acquisition of Half.com, the stockholders of Hatht approved the Half.com Plan. Our stockholdersidwer, did not approve the Half.com
Plan in connection with our acquisition of Half.cc

(4) Does not include 780 shares of our commorkstwith a weighted average exercise price of $@ddshare, to be issued upon exercise of
outstanding options assumed by us under the Confinic. 1999 Stock Plan, or the Confinity Plancomnection with our acquisition of
PayPal in October 2002, as we cannot make subsegueatts or awards of our equity securities underGonfinity Plan. The Confinity Plz
was assumed by PayPal in connection with its mesgtarConfinity in 2000. Prior to our acquisitiof BayPal and PayPal’'s merger with
Confinity, the stockholders of Confinity approvértConfinity Plan. Our stockholders, however, did approve the Confinity Plan in
connection with our acquisition of PayP

(5) Does notinclude 165,994 shares of our comstock, with a weighted average exercise price af&@er share, to be issued upon exercise
of outstanding options assumed by us under thenX€orporation 1999 Stock Plan, or the X.com Plartannection with our acquisition
PayPal in October 2002, as we cannot make subsegreatts or awards of our equity securities unterX.com Plan

80




Table of Contents

Prior to our acquisition of PayPal, the stockhoddefr PayPal approved the X.com Plan. Our stockhs]d®wever, did not approve the
X.com Plan in connection with our acquisition of/Pal.

(6) Does notinclude 1,234,440 shares of our comgtock, with a weighted average exercise price8d®5 per share, to be issued upon
exercise of outstanding options assumed by us uhddPayPal, Inc. 2001 Equity Incentive Plan, erBayPal Plan, in connection with our
acquisition of PayPal in October 2002, as we camakte subsequent grants or awards of our equityrisies under the PayPal Plan. Prio
our acquisition of PayPal, the stockholders of Ragpproved the PayPal Plan. Our stockholders, tiexyeid not approve the PayPal Plan
in connection with our acquisition of PayF

The only outstanding Non-Plan Grant as ofddeiger 31, 2004 relates to an individual compensaticangement that was made prior to the
initial public offering of our Common Stock in 1998t the time of this Non-Plan Grant, members af Board and their affiliates beneficially
owned in excess of 90% of our then outstandingtg@urd voting interests. This Non-Plan Grant haanbareviously disclosed in our initial public
offering Prospectus filed with the SEC on Septen#ierl998 under the headings “Management — Dire€tmnpensation” and “—
Compensation Arrangements.” Except as set foibmehe terms and conditions of this Non-Plan Giane identical to the terms of our 1997
Stock Option Plan, a copy of which was filed aahibit to our S-1 Registration Statement (No. 38%/) filed in connection with our initial
public offering.

The outstanding Non-Plan Grant involved tloail’s grant of an option to purchase 3,600,000eshaf our Common Stock at an exercise
price of $0.39 to Mr. Cook upon his joining our Bd@n June 1998 as an independent director. Thesens granted to Mr. Cook were non-
qualified options and were immediately exercisabii¢gh a term of 10 years. These options veste® 2% of the underlying shares in June 1999
and as to 2.08% of the shares each month thereedftiéthey fully vested in June 2002. Mr. Cook migsed options to purchase 480,000 shares in
2002 and exercised options to purchase an additio#a0,000 shares during 2003. As of DecembeB8@4, options to purchase 1,690,000 st
remain outstanding under the Non-Plan Grant.

ITEM 13: CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

We have entered into indemnification agreemaiith each of our directors and executive ofic@ihese agreements require us to indemnify
such individuals, to the fullest extent permittgdlelaware law, for certain liabilities to whicheth may become subject as a result of their
affiliation with eBay.

In August 2000, Mr. Webb, our Chief Operatifficer, entered into a four-year term loan withat an interest rate of 6.37% per annum, with
10%, 15%, 25% and 50% of principal on the loan dueach of the first, second, third and fourth aersary of the loas'issue date, respective
The principal amount on the loan was approxima$&lyl 69,800, which amount represented the prineipdlaccrued interest due at the end of a
one-year term loan entered into in August 1999 betwMr. Webb and us shortly after his relocatioB&n Jose as a result of his joining eBay in
1999, and was secured by Mr. Webb’s principal plfo@sidence. In January 2001, we entered infmeaial retention bonus plan with Mr. Webb,
under which Mr. Webb received bonus payments inustigf 2001, 2002, 2003, and 2004. Payment amauntler Mr. Webb'’s bonus plan are
$355,200 for 2001, $449,900 for 2002, $646,10@03 and $1,154,000 for 2004, and the terms obtimus plan allowed those amounts to be
used to pay principal and interest owed to us uttgeterms of his loan. In August 2001 and Aug@&t22 in accordance with the terms of his Ic
Mr. Webb paid down $355,200 and $449,900, respelgtiwf principal and accrued interest on the Idanlanuary 2003, Mr. Webb prepaid in full
the principal and accrued interest on his loat@éamount of approximately $1,670,800.

In May 2000, Mr. Jordan, our President, Pay&gered into two four-year term loans with usiatinterest rate of 6.40% per annum, with
principal and accrued interest payable on eachilbaqual installments on each anniversary. Thecjal amounts on the loans were $1,000,000
and $900,000, respectively, with the loan amouatsied by Mr. Jordan’s principal place of residemeévlay 2000, we entered into a special
retention bonus plan with Mr. Jordan under which Btirdan received bonus payments in May of 200022R003, and 2004. Payment amounts
under this Mr. Jordan’s bonus plan were $314,002801, $298,000 for 2002, $282,000 for 2003, a2@6$000 for 2004, and the terms of the
bonus plan allowed those amounts to pay principdliaterest owed to us under the loans describ#uisrparagraph. In
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July 2000, Mr. Jordan repaid in full the principald accrued interest on the $900,000 term loaaddition, in April 2001, Mr. Jordan entered into
a four-year term loan with us at an interest rdt4.94% per annum, with principal and accrued i¢epayable in equal installments on each
anniversary of this loan. The principal amount lois toan was $750,000, with the loan amount sechyeldr. Jordan’s principal place of
residence. In April 2001, we entered into a secpetial retention bonus plan with Mr. Jordan urvdieich Mr. Jordan received bonus payments
in April of 2002, 2003, and 2004 and remains eligito receive a bonus payment in April 2005 if fighen employed by us. Payment amounts
under this bonus plan with Mr. Jordan are $224f65@002, $215,288 for 2003, $206,025 for 2004, $h86,763 for 2005, and the terms of the
bonus plan allowed those amounts to be used tppagipal and interest owed to us under the loasdbed in this paragraph. In May 2001,
May 2002, and May 2003, Mr. Jordan paid down $310d@,$298,000 and $282,000, respectively, of prigcgmd accrued interest on his May 2
loan. In April 2002 and April 2003, Mr. Jordan paidwn $224,550 and $215,288, respectively, of jpadcand accrued interest on his April 2001
loan. In July 2003, Mr. Jordan prepaid in full ¢iincipal and accrued interest on both the May 2808 April 2001 loans in the amounts of
$252,762 and $380,380, respectively.

In March 2001, in connection with his reldoatto San Jose as a result of his joining eBayamember 2000, Mr. Cobb, our President, eBay
North America, entered into a fc-year, non-interest bearing term loan with us mamount of $840,000. The loan to Mr. Cobb was reechy
his principal place of residence. Principal payreenit$70,000 were due on the first, second and mniversary of his start date, and a balloon
payment of the remaining principal was due on theth anniversary of his start date. In Novembd®Qve entered into a special retention bc
plan with Mr. Cobb under which Mr. Cobb receivefi#®,000 bonus payment in November of 2001, 20023 2thd 2004. In April 2002, we
entered into a second special retention bonuswidmMr. Cobb under which Mr. Cobb received $28@ @®nus payment in November 2004.
terms of the bonus plans allowed these bonus patgnietve used to pay principal payments due undeQdbb’s loan. In each of November
2001, 2002 and 2003, Mr. Cobb paid down $70,00fioicipal on his loan, and in November 2004 Mr. 8@aid the remaining $630,000 in
principal on his loan. Mr. Cobb’s maximum indebteds to eBay during 2004 was $630,000.

In September 2002, we entered into a spesfahtion bonus plan with Mr. Bannick. Under therte of this bonus plan, Mr. Bannick received
a $250,000 bonus payment after the closing of oguigition of PayPal in October 2002 and upon hieptance of the new position as our Senior
Vice President and General Manager, Global Onlagients. In addition, the terms of the bonus plawided for three performandesed bont
payments of up to $250,000 related primarily toitiiegration and performance of our PayPal subsidizayable on each of the nine months,
18 months, and 24 months after the October 2002rajoof the PayPal acquisition. Mr. Bannick recdi$250,000 payments in July 2003, April
2004 and October 2004.

Mr. Omidyar, our Founder and the ChairmaonwfBoard of Directors, and Mr. Skoll, a benefiaainer of more than 5% of our common
stock, from time to time make their personal aiftcasailable to our officers for business purpoaeso cost to us. The imputed cost of the aircraft
use was not material to our consolidated finarst@lements.

Another transaction is described under thica “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insiarticipation”.
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ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

During the fiscal years ended December 3032thd December 31, 2004, fees for services prdvigelricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, or Py
were as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31
2003 2004
Audit Fees $ 1,54¢ $ 3,757
Audit-Related Fee 72C 1,617
Tax Fees 65 —
Total $ 2,33 $ 5,37

“Audit Fees” consisted of fees incurred fensces rendered for the audit of eBay’s annualrfoial statements, review of financial statements
included in eBay'’s quarterly reports on Form 104geo services normally provided in connection vgthtutory and regulatory filings and, in the
case of 2004, for attestation services relatechtb&hes-Oxley compliance. “Audit-Related Fees” iad of fees billed for due diligence
procedures in connection with acquisitions and stitieres and consultation regarding financial aotiog and reporting matters. “Tax Fees”
consisted of fees billed for tax payment planning tax preparation services. Approximately 3% of Faes for 2003 were approved by eBay’s
Audit Committee after the provision of servicesguant to the “de minimis” services safe harbor ptoa for non-audit engagements.

The Audit Committee of our Board of Directtvas determined that the rendering of non-auditices by PwC was compatible with
maintaining their independence.

Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policy

The Audit Committee of our Board of Directtwas adopted a policy requiring the pre-approvamyf non-audit engagement of PwC. In the
event that we wish to engage PwC to perform acoogntechnical, diligence or other permitted seegiciot related to the services performed by
PwC as our independent registered public accoufitimg our internal finance personnel will preparsummary of the proposed engagement,
detailing the nature of the engagement, the reasbgsPwC is the preferred provider of such servimed the estimated duration and cost of the
engagement. The report will be provided to our A@timmittee or a designated committee member, wihk@valuate whether the proposed
engagement will interfere with the independencPwt in the performance of its auditing servicegyiBeing with the first quarter of 2003, we
have disclosed all approved non-audit engagememisgla quarter in the appropriate quarterly reporEorm 10-Q or annual report on Form 10-
K.

Our Audit Committee approved the non-audgagement of PwC to provide due diligence servietsted to certain potential acquisitions
during the quarter ended December 31, 2004.
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PART IV

ITEM 15: EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) The following documents are filed as drthis report:

1. Consolidated Financial Statemen

Page

Number
Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEinm 87
Consolidated Balance She 89
Consolidated Statement of Incol 90
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Inc 91
Consolidated Statement of Stockhol¢ Equity 92
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flc 93
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statems 94

2. Financial Statement Scheduli

Page

Number
Schedule I— Valuation and Qualifying Accoun 12¢

All other schedules have been omitted bectheseformation required to be set forth therasimét applicable or is shown in the financial

statements or notes thereto.

3. Exhibits.
Incorporated by Reference
Filed with
No. Exhibit Description this 1C-K Form File No. Date Filed
3.01 Registrant’'s Amended and Restated Certificate of 10-Q 000-24821 8/4/2004
Incorporation,
3.0z Registrar’s Amended and Restated-laws. 1C-Q 00C-24821 11/13/199¢
4.01 Form of Specimen Certificate for Registrant’s S-1 333-59097 8/19/1998
Common Stock
4.0z Investor Rights Agreement, dated June 20, 1997, S-1 333-59097 7/15/1998
between the Registrant and certain stockholders
named thereir
10.01+4 Form of Indemnity Agreement entered into by S-1 333-59097 7/15/1998
Registrant with each of its directors and executive
officers.
10.024 Registrar’s 1996 Stock Option Pla S-1 333-59097 7/15/1998
10.034 Registrar’s 1997 Stock Option Pla S-1 333-59097 7/15/1998
10.04+4 Registrar’s 1998 Equity Incentive Plan, as amenc S-1 333-59097 7/15/1998
10.054 Registrar’s 2001 Equity Incentive Pla S-8 333117913 8/4/2004
10.06+ Registrar’s 1998 Directors Stock Option Ple 1C-Q 00C-24821 5/15/2003
10.074 Registrar’s 2003 Deferred Stock Unit Ple S-8 333-107832 8/11/2003
10.08+ Registrant’'s Amended and Restated 1998 Employee S-8 333-117913 8/4/2004
Stock Purchase Pla
10.094 Registrant’s 1999 Global Equity Incentive Plan, as S-8 333-117913 8/4/2004

amended
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No.

10.10+

10.11+

10.12+

10.13+

10.14+

10.15+
10.16+

10.17+

10.18+

10.19+

10.20+

10.21

10.22

10.23+

10.24+

10.25+

10.26+

10.27+

10.28+

10.29+

10.30+

Incorporated by Reference

Filed with

Exhibit Description this 1C-K Form File No. Date Filed
Employment Letter Agreement dated January 16, S-1 333-59097 8/19/1998
1998, between Margaret C. Whitman and Regist
Employment Letter Agreement dated August 20, S-1 333-59097 9/1/1998
1998, between Michael R. Jacobson and Regist
Offer Letter to Maynard G. Webb, Jr. dated July 17, S-3 333-88205 9/30/1999
1999.
Retention Bonus Plan dated January 10, 2001, 10-Q 000-24821 8/14/2001
between Registrant and Maynard G. Webb, Jr.
(Corrected)
Stock Option Agreement dated June 9, 1998 between 10-K 000-24821 3/31/2003
Registrant and Scott D. Coc
Offer Letter to Jeffrey D. Jordan dated July 3009.¢ S-3 333-88205 9/30/199¢
Retention Bonus Plan dated May 16, 2000, between 10-K 000-24821 3/28/2001
Registrant and Jeffrey D. Jord:
Retention Bonus Plan dated April 3, 2001, between 10-Q 000-24821 8/14/2001
Registrant and Jeffrey D. Jord:
Offer Letter to William C. Cobb dated November 22, 10-K 000-24821 3/25/2002
2000.
Supplemental Retention Bonus Plan dated April 14, 10-Q 000-24821 8/6/2002
2002, between Registrant and William C. Cc
Special Bonus Plan between Registrant and Matthew 10-Q 000-24821 11/14/200z
J. Bannick, dated as of September 6, 2!
Lease dated March 1, 2000, between eBay Realty 10-K 000-24821 3/30/2000
Trust and Registran
Cash Collateral Agreement between Registrant and 10-K 000-24821 3/30/2000
Chase Manhattan Bank as Agent, dated March 1,
2000.
Form of Stock Bonus Agreement under eBay Inc. 10-Q 000-24821 10/27/200¢
1998 Equity Incentive Plal
Form of Stock Option Agreement under eBay Inc. 10-Q 000-24821 10/27/200¢
1998 Equity Incentive Plai
Form of Stock Option Agreement under eBay Inc. 10-Q 000-24821 10/27/200¢
1999 Global Equity Incentive Pla
Form of Stock Option Agreement under eBay Inc. 10-Q 000-24821 10/27/200¢
2001 Equity Incentive Pla
Description of eBay Inc.’s Executive Management 10-Q 000-24821 10/27/200¢
Incentive Plan
Offer Letter to Christopher Corrado dated 8-K 000-24821 1/3/2005
November 19, 200¢
Offer Letter to Scott Thompson dated January 12, 8-K 000-24821 2/7/2005
2005.
Offer Letter to John Donahoe dated November 16, 8-K 000-24821 2/24/2005

2004.
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No.
21.01

23.01
24.01
31.01
31.02

32.01

32.02

Incorporated by Reference

Filed with
Exhibit Description this 1C-K Form File No. Date Filed

List of Subsidiaries X
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP consi X
Power of Attorney (see signature pa¢ X
Certification of the Registrant’s Chief Executive X
Officer, as required by Section 302 of the Sarbanes
Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Registrant’s Chief Financial Ofic X
as required by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxle¢y Ac
of 2002.
Certification of Registrant’s Chief Executive Ofic X
as required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxle¢y Ac
of 2002.
Certification of Registrant’s Chief Financial Ofic X

as required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxle¢y Ac
of 2002.

+ Indicates a management contract or compensatonygolarrangemer
(b) See the Exhibits listed under Item 15(a)(3) abr

(c) The financial statement schedules required byitiis are listed under Item 15(a)(2) abao
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of eBuay:

We have completed an integrated audit of eBays 2004 consolidated financial statements @inits internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2004 and audits of its 2002&0& consolidated financial statements in accorgavith the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Oumdgis, based on our audits, are presented below.

Consolidated financial statements and financial stement schedule

In our opinion, the consolidated financiatements listed in the index appearing under It(a)1(1) on page 84 present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of eBay Inc. asdsubsidiaries at December 31, 2004 and 2003theniesults of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the three years in the periodeehdecember 31, 2004 in conformity with accounfpmnigciples generally accepted in the United
States of America. In addition, in our opinion, fireancial statement schedule listed in the indexearing under Item 15(a) (2) on page 84
presents fairly, in all material respects, the infation set forth therein when read in conjunctigth the related consolidated financial statements.
These financial statements and financial statemamdule are the responsibility of the Company’sagament. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements and filmhstatement schedule based on our audits. Weuoted our audits of these statements in
accordance with the standards of the Public Comparapunting Oversight Board (United States). Thetsadards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurancetathether the financial statements are free der@ misstatement. An audit of financial
statements includes examining, on a test basideage supporting the amounts and disclosures ifirthecial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimatade by management, and evaluating the ovemathdial statement presentation. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis foopurion.

As discussed in Note 1 to the Consolidatedii¢ial Statements, effective July 1, 2003 the Gomgadopted the provisions of Financial
Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 45risolidation of Variable Interest Entities — ateipretation of ARB 51”.

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, in our opinion, management’s assessmeciided in Management’s Report on Internal Car@ver Financial Reporting appearing
under Item 9A, that the Company maintained effeciiternal control over financial reporting as afd@mber 31, 2004 based on criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framewissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Orgaitnatof the Treadway Commission
(COS0), is fairly stated, in all material respebi@sed on those criteria. Furthermore, in our apinihe Company maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financegorting as of December 31, 2004, based on erigstablished in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the COSO. The Company’s manageisiresponsible for maintaining effective introcontrol over financial reporting and
for its assessment of the effectiveness of intezoatrol over financial reporting. Our responstyilis to express opinions on management’s
assessment and on the effectiveness of the Congamginal control over financial reporting basedoor audit. We conducted our audit of
internal control over financial reporting in accamte with the standards of the Public Company Arting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perfoenadidit to obtain reasonable assurance about wheffieetive internal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe&tsaudit of internal control over financial repagiincludes obtaining an understanding of
internal control over financial reporting, evalugtimanagement’s assessment, testing and evaldbhérdesign and operating effectiveness of
internal control, and performing such other procedwas we consider necessary in the circumstaedelieve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financiaporting is a process designed to provide reaseragslurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetséor external
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purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatio principles. A company’s internal control o¥imancial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenaficecords that, in reasonable detail, accuratety/fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reastmabsurance that transactions are recorded ass@egdo permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepteauating principles, and that receipts and expenelt of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management aretttdirs of the company; and (iii) provide reasoaassurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, oras#ion of the company’s assets that could haveagernal effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, interoahtrol over financial reporting may not preventietect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgect to the risk that controls may become inadégibecause of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

/s/PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California
February 25, 2005
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eBay Inc.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

December 31 December 31
2003 2004
(In thousands, excep
par value amounts)

ASSETS

Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 1,381,51 $ 1,330,04!
Shor-term investment 340,57t 682,00:
Accounts receivable, ni 225,87 240,85t
Funds receivable from custom 79,89:¢ 123,42:
Restricted cash and investme 14,85¢ 155,40!
Other current asse 103,17¢( 379,41!
Total current asse 2,145,88. 2,911,14
Long-term investment 934,17: 1,266,28!
Restricted cash and investme 127,43 1,41¢
Property and equipment, r 601,78! 709,77:
Goodwill 1,719,31. 2,709,79.
Intangible assets, n 274,05 362,90¢
Other asset 17,49¢ 29,71¢

$ 5,820,13 $ 7,991,05.

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payabl $ 64,63: $ 37,95¢
Funds payable and amounts due to custo 106,56¢ 331,80!
Accrued expenses and other current liabili 356,49: 421,96¢
Deferred revenue and customer advar 28,87« 50,43¢
Shor-term obligations 2,84( 124,27
Income taxes payab 87,87( 118,42
Total current liabilities 647,27t 1,084,87!
Long-term obligation: 124,47t 75
Deferred tax liabilities, ne 79,23¢ 135,97:
Other liabilities 33,49¢ 37,69¢
Minority interests 39,40¢ 4,09¢
Total liabilities 923,89. 1,262,71

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 8, 9, anc
Stockholder equity:
Convertible Preferred Stock, $0.001 par value; @@ $hares authorized; no shares
issued or outstandir — —
Common Stock, $0.001 par value; 1,790,000 shard®ared; 1,298,586 and

1,338,608 shares issued and outstan 1,29¢ 1,33¢
Additional paic-in capital 3,936,511 4,855,71
Unearned stoc-based compensatic (2,00%) (4,82
Retained earning 856,24! 1,634,46!
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 104,19¢ 241,64.

Total stockholder equity 4,896,24. 6,728,34.
$ 5,820,13. $ 7,991,05.

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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eBay Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME

Year Ended December 31

2002 2003 2004
(In thousands, except per share amounts
Net revenue: $ 1,214,10 $ 2,165,09 $ 3,271,300
Cost of net revenue 213,87¢ 416,05¢ 614,41!
Gross profil 1,000,22. 1,749,03i 2,656,89

Operating expense

Sales and marketir 349,65( 567,56! 857,87

Product developmel 104,63¢ 159,31! 240,64"

General and administrati\ 171,78 302,70: 415,72!

Patent litigation expens — 29,96¢ —

Payroll tax on employee stock optic 4,01t 9,59( 17,47¢

Amortization of acquired intangible ass 15,941 50,65¢ 65,927

Total operating expens: 646,02° 1,119,79 1,597,65.

Income from operation 354,19° 629,24 1,059,24.
Interest and other income, r 49,20¢ 37,80: 77,86
Interest expens (1,492) (4,319 (8,879
Impairment of certain equity investmel (3,78)) (1,230 —
Income before cumulative effect of accounting clearigcome taxes and

minority interests 398,13¢ 661,50( 1,128,23!
Provision for income taxe (145,949 (206,73%) (343,88
Minority interests (2,296) (7,57¢) (6,127)
Income before cumulative effect of accounting che 249,89 447,18 778,22
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of — (5,419 —
Net income $ 249,89: $ 441,77 $ 778,22;
Net income per basic shal

Income before cumulative effect of accounting clee $ 0.2z $ 0.3t $ 0.5¢

Cumulative effect of accounting chan — (0.00) —

Net income per basic she $ 0.27 $ 0.3t $ 0.5¢
Net income per diluted shat

Income before cumulative effect of accounting cle $ 0.21 $ 0.3¢ $ 0.57

Cumulative effect of accounting chan — (0.00) —

Net income per diluted sha $ 0.21 $ 0.34 $ 0.57
Weighted average shar¢

Basic 1,149,98. 1,276,571 1,319,45:

Diluted 1,171,28! 1,313,31. 1,367,72

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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eBay Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year Ended December 31

2002 2003 2004
(In thousands)
Net income $ 249,89: $ 44177 $ 778,22
Other comprehensive incomr
Foreign currency translatic 48,00( 66,32¢ 139,52:
Unrealized gains (losses) on investments 774 (5,867) (8,727
Investment losses included in net inca 558 364 24
Unrealized gains (losses) on cash flow hec (2,637) 4,24¢ 5,52¢
Estimated tax benef 448 62C 1,102
Net change in other comprehensive incc 47,14: 65,69¢ 137,44°
Comprehensive incorn $ 297,03 $ 507,46¢ $ 915,67(

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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eBay Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Year Ended December 31

2002 2003 2004
(In thousands)

Convertible preferred stoc
Balance, beginning of ye: $ — $ — $ —
Balance, end of ye: — — —
Common stock

Balance, beginning of ye: 1,11( 1,24¢ 1,29¢
Common stock issue 13€ 53 40
Balance, end of ye: 1,24¢€ 1,29¢ 1,33¢
Additional paic-in-capital:
Balance, beginning of ye: 1,274,40 3,107,50: 3,936,51!
Common stock issue 1,740,38! 694,28 650,98!
Common stock repurchas (132 (79) Q)
Stocl-based compensation, net of cancellati 29¢ 4,15k 6,24(
Stock option income tax bene 92,54¢ 130,63t 261,98:
Balance, end of ye: 3,107,50: 3,936,511 4,855,71
Unearned stoc-based compensatio
Balance, beginning of ye: (2,367) (5,259 (2,009
Unearned stoc-based compensation, net of cancellati (8,839 (2,079 (4,069
Amortization of unearned sto-based compensatic 5,952 4,32¢ 1,251
Balance, end of ye: (5,257%) (2,00€) (4,825)
Retained earning:
Balance, beginning of ye: 164,63: 414,47: 856,24!
Partnership distributior (50) — —
Net income 249,89: 441,77 778,22:
Balance, end of ye: 414,47 856,24! 1,634,46!
Accumulated other comprehensive income (Ic
Balance, beginning of ye (8,645 38,49¢ 104,19¢
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments, net of 724 (3,17%) (5,392)
Unrealized gain (loss) on cash flow hedges, nédx (1,587 2,54¢ 3,31t
Foreign currency translation adjustm 48,00( 66,32’ 139,52¢
Balance, end of ye: 38,49¢ 104,19¢ 241,64.
Total stockholder’ equity $ 3,556,47 $ 4,896,24. $ 6,728,34

Number of shares
Common stock

Balance, beginning of ye. 1,109,031 1,245,10: 1,298,58!
Issuance of common stock for cash and sen 40,11: 53,47¢ 40,02
Issuance of common stock for acquisitit 95,96( — —
Balance, end of ye: 1,245,10: 1,298,58! 1,338,60:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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eBay Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended December 31

2002 2003 2004
(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activitie

Net income $ 249,89: $ 441,77: $ 778,22:
Adjustments
Cumulative effect of accounting chan — 5,41z —
Provision for doubtful accounts and authorized itse 25,45t 46,04¢ 90,94
Provision for transaction loss 7,83: 36,401 50,45¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 76,57¢ 159,00¢ 253,69(
Amortization of unearned sto-based compensatic 5,95: 5,492 5,832
Tax benefit on the exercise of employee stock ol 91,231 130,63¢ 261,98:
Impairment of certain equity investmel 3,781 1,23( —
Minority interests 1,32¢ 7,78¢ 6,122
Gain on sale of asse (21,37%) — —
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acqoisi¢iffects:
Accounts receivabl (54,587) (153,379 (105,54()
Funds receivable from custom (11,819 (38,879 (44,75))
Other current asse 10,71¢ (13,139 (312,75¢)
Other nor-current asset (1,195 (4,11 (30¢)
Deferred tax liabilities, ne 8,13¢ 69,77( 28,65
Accounts payabl 14,631 17,34¢ (33,979
Funds payable and amounts due to custo (6,027 56,17: 216,96
Accrued expenses and other liabilit 35,481 85,70« 39,61¢
Deferred revenue and customer advar 2,78C 8,86¢ 20,06!
Income taxes payab 41,11« 11,97¢ 30,09¢
Net cash provided by operating activit 479,90: 874,11¢ 1,285,31!
Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of property and equipment, (138,67() (365,389 (292,839)
Purchases of investmer (723,307 (2,035,05) (1,754,80)
Maturities and sales of investme 727,45! 1,297,26. 1,079,54
Proceeds from (purchases of) intangible and otbe-current assel 36,17¢ — (8,64¢)
Acquisitions, net of cash acquir (59,41) (216,36 (1,036,470
Net cash used in investing activiti (157,759 (1,319,547 (2,013,22)
Cash flows from financing activitie
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 252,18: 700,81° 650,63t
Principal payments on lo-term obligations (64) (11,95) (2,969)
Partnership distributior (50) — —
Net cash provided by financing activiti 252,06" 688,86¢ 647,66
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casvaénts 11,13: 28,751 28,76¢
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis. 585,34« 272,20( (51,46%)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe¢ 523,96¢ 1,109,31. 1,381,51.
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 1,109,3L $ 1,381,51 $ 1,330,04
Supplemental cash flow disclosur
Cash paid for intere: $ 1,492 $ 3,237 $ 8,23¢
Cash paid for income tax $ 2,38 $ 3,51¢ $ 13,87¢
Unearned stoc-based compensation, net of cancellati $ 8,83¢ $ 1,07¢ $ 4,06¢
Non-cash investing and financing activiti¢
Common stock issued for acquisiti $ 1,476,50 $ — $ —

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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eBay Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1— The Company and Summary of Significant Accounting Blicies:
The Compan

eBay Inc. (“eBay”) was incorporated in Calif@ in May 1996, and reincorporated in Delawar@jmil 1998. As of December 31, 2004,
through our wholly-owned and majority-owned subeidis and affiliates, we had websites directed tdwle United States, Australia, Austria,
Belgium, Canada, China, France, Germany, Hong Kbrtia, Ireland, Italy, Malaysia, the NetherlanNgw Zealand, the Philippines, Singapore,
South Korea, Spain, Sweden, Switzerland, Taiwantaad/nited Kingdom. We pioneered online tradingleyeloping an Internet-based
community in which buyers and sellers are brougbether to buy and sell almost anything. The eBdyne service permits sellers to list items
for sale, buyers to bid on items of interest, alhéBay users to browse through listed items inllyfautomated, topically-arranged service that is
available online seven days a week. Through ouPBbkservice, we enable any business or consumiraritil in 45 countries to send, and in 44
countries to receive online payments. As of Decearlie 2004, through its wholly-owned subsidiaridayPal had websites directed towards the
United States, Austria, Belgium, France, Germalng ,Netherlands, Switzerland and the United Kingdom.

On October 3, 2002, we completed our acdqaisitf PayPal, Inc. (“PayPal”) in a tax-free, stefok-stock transaction. PayPal provides an
online global payments platform and is headquadtéresan Jose, California. The PayPal financiakstents are included in our consolidated
financial statements from October 4, 2002.

”ow

When we refer to “we,” “our,” “us” or “eBayih this document, we mean the current Delawarearatipn (eBay Inc.) and its California
predecessor, as well as all of our consolidatedidigries.

Stock split

In January 2005, our Board of Directors apptba two-for-one split of our shares of commormrtktom be issued in the form of a stock
dividend. As a result of the stock split, our stiecklers received one additional share of our comstock for each share of common stock held of
record on January 31, 2005. The additional shd@rearocommon stock were distributed on February2D®5. All share and per share amounts in
these consolidated financial statements and refadgzs have been retroactively adjusted to reftéstand all prior stock splits for all periods
presented.

Use of estimate

The preparation of consolidated financiatesteents in conformity with generally accepted actimg principles requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the repartexlints of assets and liabilities and disclosurafingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the consolidated financial statements and the teg@mounts of revenues and expenses during tbetirgpperiod. On an ongoing basis, we
evaluate our estimates, including those relatgatawisions for doubtful accounts and authorizedlitse the provision for transaction losses, legal
contingencies, income taxes, advertising and atbartransaction revenues, and goodwill and intdegibsets. We base our estimates on
historical experience and on various other asswmgtihat are believed to be reasonable under th@nsstances. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Principles of consolidation and basis of presermta

The accompanying financial statements arsaaated and include the financial statementsBafyeand our majority-owned subsidiaries. All
significant intercompany balances and transacti@v& been eliminated in consolidation.
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eBay Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

The consolidated financial statements inclLid@% of the assets and liabilities of these mijarivned subsidiaries and the ownership inte
of minority investors are recorded as minority ietgs. Investments in entities where we hold mioaa &t 20% but less than a 50% ownership
interest and have the ability to significantly irghce the operations of the investee are accofmtesing the equity method of accounting and
investment balance is included in long-term invesita, while our share of the investees’ operatisirscluded in interest and other income, net.
Investments in entities where we hold less tha@i% Bwnership interest or where we do not have Hiéyto significantly influence the
operations of the investee are accounted for ubiegost method of accounting and are includedng{term investments.

Certain prior period balances have been ssiflad to conform to the current period preseatati

Fair value of financial instrumen

Cash and cash equivalents are short-terrh)yhiigiuid investments with original or remainingatarities of three months or less when
purchased. Our financial instruments, includingh¢asish equivalents, accounts receivable, fundsvagle, accounts payable, and funds payable
are carried at cost, which approximates theiralue because of the short-term maturity of thasguments.

Short and long-term investments, which inelatarketable equity securities, government andasatp bonds, are classified as available-for-
sale and reported at fair value using the speici@atification method. Unrealized gains and lossesexcluded from earnings and reported as a
component of other comprehensive income (loss)phetlated estimated tax provisions or benefitddifionally, we assess whether an other-than-
temporary impairment loss on our investments hasmed due to declines in fair value or other madamditions. Declines in fair value that are
considered other than temporary are recorded asairment of certain equity investments in thesmitdated statement of income.

Derivative instrument

We recognize all derivative instruments om Itlalance sheet at fair value. Changes in thevddire (i.e., gains or losses) of the derivatives ar
recorded each period in the consolidated statenfdntome or accumulated other comprehensive incdass). For a derivative designated as a
cash flow hedge, the gain or loss on the derivasiveitially reported as a component of accumwaither comprehensive income (loss) and
subsequently reclassified into the consolidatetéstant of income when the hedged transaction affestnings. For derivatives recognized as a
fair value hedge, the gain or loss on the deriesaitivthe period of change and the offsetting losgain of the hedged item attributed to the hedged
risk, are recognized in accumulated other comprgkierincome until the hedge matures, at which tingegain or loss is recognized as interest
and other income, net. For derivatives not recagghzs hedges, the gain or loss on the derivatitleeiperiod of changes is recognized as interest
and other income, net.

Concentrations of credit ris

Our cash, cash equivalents and accountsvaaeiare potentially subject to concentrationrefid risk. Cash and cash equivalents are placed
with financial institutions that management belieage of high credit quality. Our accounts receleave derived from revenue earned from
customers located in the U.S. and internation&lbcounts receivable balances are settled througtomer credit cards, debit cards, and PayPal
accounts, with the majority of accounts receivatke collected upon processing of credit card tretiteas. We maintain an allowance for doubtful
accounts receivable and authorized credits based opr historical experience. Historically, suckdes have been within our expectations.
However, unexpected or significant future changesdands could result in a material impact to fatstatements of income or cash flows. Due to
the relatively small dollar amount of individualcazints receivable, we generally do not requireatethl on these balances. The provision for
doubtful accounts is recorded as a charge to dpgrakpense, while the provision for authorizedlireis recognized as a reduction of net
revenues.
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eBay Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

We also entered into two interest rate sweiftstwo separate financial institutions to redwee interest rate exposure on our San Jose
corporate headquarters lease payments. If eithres® financial institutions should fail to delivender these contracts, we may be subject to
variable interest rate payments. The interest swalpsnature in March 2005.

During the years ended December 31, 20023,28d 2004, no customers accounted for more th&ndf net revenues. As of December 31,
2003 and 2004, no customers accounted for morelt@#nof net accounts receivable.

Allowances for transaction loss

Our Payments segment is exposed to transdcoisses due to fraud, as well as non-performahcastomers and others. We establish
allowances for estimated losses arising from priogscustomer transactions, such as charge-backméuthorized credit card use and merchant
related charge-backs due to non-delivery of goadservices, Automated Clearing House, or ACH, retuand debit card overdrafts. These
allowances represent an accumulation of the estiin@tounts, using an actuarial technique, necessg@npvide for transaction losses incurret
of the reporting date, including those to whichlveere not yet been notified. The allowances are taoed monthly and are updated based on
actual claims data reported by our claims procesddre allowances are based on known facts andnegtances, internal factors including our
experience with similar cases, historical trend®iving loss payment patterns and the mix of tratisa and loss types. Additions to the
allowance, in the form of provisions, are reflecésda general and administrative expense in owsdiolated statement of income. At
December 31, 2003 and 2004, the allowance for actim losses totaled $12.0 million and $11.0 wnillirespectively, and was included in
accrued expenses and other current liabilitiessinconsolidated balance sheet.

Foreign currency

Substantially all of our foreign subsidiariese the local currency of their respective coestés their functional currency. Assets and liaedi
are translated at exchange rates prevailing atdlence sheet dates. Revenues, costs and expeasemalated into United States dollars at
average exchange rates for the period. Gains aseédaesulting from translation are recorded asmponent of accumulated other comprehen
income (loss).

Realized gains and losses from foreign cusrdransactions are recognized as interest and otbeme, net.

Funds receivable and funds payable to custor

Funds receivable and payable relate to oymeats segment and arise due to the time takele&o tansactions through external payment
networks. When customers fund their account usieg bank account or credit card, or withdraw moteetheir bank account or through a debit
card transaction, there is a clearing period betfogecash is received or sent by PayPal, usuathyamthree business days for U.S. transactions,
and five to eight business days for internatioreh$actions. Hence, these funds are treated ag@able or payable until the cash is settled.

Customer account

We deposit all U.S.-based customer funds imeldlS. dollars not transferred to PayPal’'s MoMarket Fund into Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation, or FDIC, insured bank accounts. FDi§urance is available to U.S. based PayPal cussoimee (1) place pooled customer funds in
bank accounts denominated “PayPal as Agent foBémefit of its Customers” or similar caption, (2aimtain records sufficient to identify the
claim of each customer in the FDIC-insured acco{®)tcomply with applicable
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eBay Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

FDIC recordkeeping requirements, and (4) truly afeas an agent of our customers. The customes fueld in FDIC insured bank accounts are
not reflected on our consolidated balance sheditiddally, we receive a custodial credit from @arvice provider in the form of a reduction in
transaction processing fees based upon balanagsviteleach institution. This credit is recognizesia reduction in processing costs in cost of
revenues.

Effective February 13, 2004, PayPal customesilent in the European Union began to receingcas through PayPal’'s U.K. subsidiary,
which holds an electronic money issuer licensectEd@ic Money Institution, or ELMI, regulations ngice that customer balances in the U.K.
subsidiary be represented as claims on the subgigtiald as a principal rather than as an agemt)imrested only in specified types of liquid
assets. These customer balances are thereforééachn our consolidated balance sheet as otherrtiassets with an offsetting liability.

Property and equipmel

Property and equipment are stated at histbcizst less accumulated depreciation. Depreciaimhamortization are computed using the
straight-line method over the estimated usefuldisbthe assets, generally, one to three yearsoimputer equipment and software, up to 30 years
for buildings and building improvements, ten ydarsaviation equipment, the shorter of five yearshe term of the lease for leasehold
improvements, three years for furniture and fixtuaad five years for vehicles.

Goodwill and intangible asse

Goodwill represents the excess of the pueipgise over the fair value of the net tangible aahtifiable intangible assets acquired in a
business combination. Intangible assets resultimm the acquisitions of entities accounted for gshe purchase method of accounting are
estimated by management based on the fair valass#fts received. Identifiable intangible assets@amgprised of purchased customer lists and
user base, trademarks and trade names, develagetbtegies, and other intangible assets. Identdiaitangible assets are being amortized using
the straight-line method over estimated usefuldikenging from one to eight years. We adopted Sitée of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 142, or SFAS No. 14 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” on Januar002 on a prospective basis. In accordance SHAS No. 142,
goodwill is no longer subject to amortization. Rattgoodwill is subject to at least an annual assest for impairment, applying a fair-value
based test.

Lonc-lived assets and goodw

We evaluate long-lived assets for impairmeneénever events or changes in circumstances imdibat the carrying amount of an asset may
not be recoverable in accordance with SFAS No. 14dcounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Lehg/ed Assets.” An asset is considered
impaired if its carrying amount exceeds the futuee cash flow the asset is expected to generadd. disset is considered to be impaired, the
impairment to be recognized is measured by the atromuwhich the carrying amount of the asset exsétsdfair market value. We assess the
recoverability of our long-lived and intangible essby determining whether the unamortized balanaashe recovered through undiscounted
future net cash flows of the related assets. Theuatnof impairment, if any, is measured based @jepted discounted future net cash flows.

We evaluate goodwill, at a minimum, on anwalrbasis and whenever events and changes in Gtaages suggest that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. Impairment of goodwilkeistéd at the reporting unit level by comparingrégorting unit’s carrying amount, including
goodwill, to the fair value of the reporting unfihe fair values of the reporting units are estiateing a combination of the income, or discou
cash flows, approach and the market approach, whitthes comparable companies’ data. If the cagyamount of the reporting unit exceeds its
fair value, goodwill is considered impaired anceaand step is performed to measure the amountpdirment loss, if any. We conducted our
annual impairment test as
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of August 31, 2004 and determined there to be mmairment. There were no events or circumstances fhat date through December 31, 2004
that would impact this assessment.

Due to customer

Customers utilize our payment services tosfer money electronically over the Internet. Atyred value remaining from transactions in a
customer’s account represents a liability to thet@mer. Customers in the U.S. can elect to swesipdlcount balances into the PayPal Money
Market fund to earn a rate of return; otherwisestomers earn no interest on their balances. PadPas interest on the customer balances
receiving service through PayPal’'s U.K. subsidiary.

Revenue recognitic

Our net revenues result from fees associatddour transaction, advertising and other nomgeection services in our U.S. Marketplace,
International Marketplace and Payments segmenénshction revenue is derived primarily from listifeature and final value fees paid by sel
and fees from payment processing services. Revieomeadvertising is derived principally from thdesaf online banner and sponsorship
advertisements for cash and through barter arraagesmOther non-transaction net revenue is primadmposed of our end-to-end services net
revenue that is derived principally from contrattarmangements with third parties that provide $etion services to eBay users.

Listing and feature fee revenues are receghiatably over the estimated period of the auatibite revenues related to final value fees are
recognized at the time that the transaction isesgfally concluded. A transaction is consideredaasssfully concluded when at least one buye!
bid above the seller’s specified minimum priceesarve price, whichever is higher, at the end etthnsaction term. Our Payments segment
earns transaction fees from processing transacliwrtertain customers. Revenue resulting fromyarpgnt processing transaction is recognized
once the transaction is complete. Provisions fabdfol accounts, authorized credits and transadteses are made at the time of revenue
recognition based upon our historical experien¢e provision for doubtful accounts is recorded abarge to operating expense, while the
provisions for authorized credits and transactassés are recognized as reductions of net revenues.

Our advertising revenue is derived principélbm the sale of online banner and sponsorshigdidements. To date, the duration of our
banner and sponsorship advertising contracts magdafrom one week to five years, but is geneially week to one year. Advertising revenues
on both banner and sponsorship contracts are remsabas “impressions” (i.e., the number of timest #n advertisement appears in pages viewed
by users of our websites) are delivered or ratabr the term of the agreement where such agresmentide for minimum monthly or quarterly
advertising commitments or where such commitmergdiged throughout the term. Barter transactiomsvalued on amounts realized in similar
cash transactions occurring within six months pidothe date of the barter transaction. To thergxteat significant delivery obligations remain at
the end of a period or collection of the resultimgount receivable is not considered probable mee® are deferred until the obligation is satisfied
or the uncertainty is resolved. These amountsrereded in deferred revenue in our consolidatedryzd sheet. Revenue from barter arrangen
totaled $10.1 million, $10.1 million and $13.3 nah for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2002864, respectively, with the reciprocal
arrangements being recognized as an operating se&pbngeneral, the services are received in thee ggeriod in which the reciprocal services are
provided. In certain circumstances, we are requioegcord against revenue, payments to a partyis/also a customer. These payments
primarily consist of certain promotional activitiedich result in payments to our users.

Our end-to-end services revenues are depriedipally from contractual arrangements with dhirarties that provide transaction services to
eBay and PayPal users. To date, the duration oédito-end services contracts has ranged fromootigee years. End-to-end services revenues
are recognized as the contracted services areedetivto end users. To the extent that significhligations remain at the end of a period or
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collection of the resulting receivable is not calesed probable, revenues are deferred until thigatimn is satisfied or the uncertainty is resolved

Product development cos

We expense costs related to the planningoastlimplementation phases of our website developeforts. Direct costs incurred in the
development phase are capitalized and amortizedtbeeroduct’s estimated useful life of one teethyears as charges to cost of net revenues.

Advertising expens

We expense the costs of producing advertigésret the time production occurs, and expensedheof communicating advertising in the
period during which the advertising space or aietismused. Internet advertising expenses are rézadjbased on the terms of the individual
agreements, which is generally over the greaténefatio of the number of impressions deliveredrafie total number of contracted impressions,
or on a straight-line basis over the term of thetact. Advertising expenses totaled $181.8 milli821.4 million and $459.5 million during the
years ended December 31, 2002, 2003, and 2004 atbsgly.

Stockbased compensatic

We account for stock-based employee compemsissued under compensatory plans using thengitrivalue method, which calculates
compensation expense based on the differencey ifoamthe date of the grant, between the fair valueur stock and the option exercise price.
Generally accepted accounting principles requiraganies who choose to account for stock optiontgrasing the intrinsic value method to also
determine the fair value of option grants usingption pricing model, such as the Black-Scholes ehaghd to disclose the impact of fair value
accounting in a note to the financial statemem$®écember 2002, the FASB issued Statement of EiabAccounting Standards No. 148,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation Transitima Disclosure, an Amendment of FASB Statementli28.” We did not elect to
voluntarily change to the fair value based methbacgounting for stock based employee compensatiohrecord such amounts as charges to
operating expense. We amortize the stbaked compensation charge in accordance with FA&Bplretation No. 28 over the vesting period ol
related options, which is generally four years. thpact of recognizing the fair value of option gisand stock grants under our employee stock
purchase plan as an expense under FASB Statemed#iavould have substantially reduced our netrimegoas follows (in thousands, except per
share amounts):

Year Ended December 31

2002 2003 2004
Net income, as reporte $ 249,89: $ 441,77 $ 778,22:
Add: Amortization of stock-based compensation exgetetermined under the
intrinsic value methor 5,95 5,49: 1,71¢
Deduct: Total stock-based compensation expensendieid under fair value based
method, net of ta (192,907 (201,779 (190,939
Pro forma net incom $ 62,94: $ 245,48¢ $ 589,00
Earnings per shar
Basic— Reportec $ 0.2z $ 0.3t $ 0.5¢
Pro forma $ 0.0t $ 0.1¢ $ 0.4t
Diluted — Reportec $ 0.21 $ 0.3¢ $ 0.57
Pro forma $ 0.0t $ 0.1¢ $ 0.4z
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The weighted average fair value of optioren¢gd in the years ended December 31, 2002, 2G03G04, were $5.60, $8.15 and $12.12,
respectively.

We calculated the fair value of each optiaram on the date of grant using the Black-Schopgmp pricing model. The following weighted
average assumptions were used for each respeetiiaelp

Year Ended December 31

2002 2003 2004
Risk-free interest rate 3.0% 1.9% 2.5%
Expected live: 3 year 3 year 3 year
Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Expected volatility 68% 64% 49%

We account for stock-based arrangementsdssuson-employees using the fair value based ndetlhich calculates compensation expense
based on the fair value of the stock option grantg#dg the Black-Scholes option pricing model &t dlate of grant, or over the period of
performance, as appropriate.

Income taxe:

We account for income taxes using an assktiability approach, which requires the recognitiof taxes payable or refundable for the current
year and deferred tax liabilities and assets ferftiture tax consequences of events that havereeegnized in our financial statements or tax
returns. The measurement of current and defersedssets and liabilities is based on provisionsnafcted tax laws; the effects of future changes
in tax laws or rates are not anticipated. If neagsthe measurement of deferred tax assets iseeday the amount of any tax benefits that are
expected to be realized based on available evidence

Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Princi

In accordance with the provisions of FIN ZBpnsolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” wave included our San Jose corporate
headquarters lease arrangement in our consolifiagattial statements effective July 1, 2003. Urttiés accounting standard, our balance sheet at
December 31, 2003 and 2004 reflects additionsafiod and buildings totaling $126.4 million, leasdigdtions of $122.5 million and non-
controlling minority interests of $3.9 million. Oapbnsolidated statement of income for the year eédecember 31, 2003, reflects the
reclassification of lease payments on our San doqmrate headquarters from operating expensddoest expense, beginning with quarters
following our adoption of FIN 46 on July 1, 2003%%.4 million after-tax charge for cumulative depation for periods from lease inception
through June 30, 2003, and incremental depreciatpense of approximately $400,000, net of taxqouarter for periods after June 30, 2003.
have adopted the provisions of FIN 46 prospectifredyn July 1, 2003, and as a result, have not tedtarior periods. The cumulative effect of the
change in accounting principle arising from theg@dm of FIN 46 has been reflected in net incom2003.

Comprehensive incon

Comprehensive income includes all changesjiity (net assets) during a period from non-ovaoerrces. The change in accumulated other
comprehensive income for all periods presentedtezbfrom, net of tax foreign currency translatigeins and losses, unrealized and realized ¢
and losses on investments, and unrealized gainkaseés on cash flow hedges.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncemen
ShareBased Paymen

In December 2004, the FASB issued Statemieffitn@ncial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revis@4), “Share-Based
Payment” (FAS 123R), that addresses the accoufdimghare-based payment transactions in which gergiise receives employee services in
exchange for either equity instruments of the gmitee or liabilities that are based on the faiueabf the enterprise’s equity instruments or that
may be settled by the issuance of such equityunstnts. The statement eliminates the ability tmantfor shardsased compensation transacti
using the intrinsic value method as prescribed bgohnting Principles Board, or APB, Opinion No. 2&¢ccounting for Stock Issued to
Employees,” and generally requires that such tr@itsss be accounted for using a fair-value-basethateand recognized as expenses in our
consolidated statement of income. The statemeninegicompanies to assess the most appropriatel toockculate the value of the options. We
currently use the Black-Scholes option pricing mMadevalue options and are currently assessing hwhiodel we may use in the future under the
new statement and may deem an alternative modbed tbe most appropriate. The use of a differentghtzdvalue options may result in a differ
fair value than the use of the Black-Scholes opfiocing model. In addition, there are a numbeothier requirements under the new standard that
will result in differing accounting treatment thearrently required. These differences include,dretnot limited to, the accounting for the tax
benefit on employee stock options and for stockd@dsunder our employee stock purchase plan. Irtiaddd the appropriate fair value model to
be used for valuing share-based payments, we lsdlze required to determine the transition metiodoe used at date of adoption. The allowed
transition methods include prospective and retivacdoption options. Under the retroactive optigm#r periods may be restated either as of the
beginning of the year of adoption or for all pesqatesented. The prospective method requires timapensation expense be recorded for all
unvested stock options and restricted stock abéggnning of the first quarter of adoption of FAZ3R, while the retroactive methods would
record compensation expense for all unvested siptikns and restricted stock beginning with thetfpreriod restated. The effective date of the
new standard for our consolidated financial statgmes our third fiscal quarter in 2005.

Upon adoption, this statement will have angigant impact on our consolidated financial sta¢gamts as we will be required to expense the fair
value of our stock option grants and stock purchaseler our employee stock purchase plan rathardisalose the impact on our consolidated
net income within our footnotes (see above), aarscurrent practice. The amounts disclosed withinfootnotes are not necessarily indicative of
the amounts that will be expensed upon adoptidrAS 123R. Compensation expense calculated underl288 may differ from amounts
currently disclosed within our footnotes based banges in the fair value of our common stock, ckarig the number of options granted or the
terms of such options, the treatment of tax besefitd changes in interest rates or other factoraddlition, upon adoption of FAS 123R we may
choose to use a different valuation model to véiheecompensation expense associated with empldégele aptions.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS N8, 1bxchanges of Nonmonetary Assets — An AmendneéitPB Opinion No. 29,
Accounting for Nonmonetary Transactions” (SFAS 158 AS 153 eliminates the exception from fair valueasurement for nonmonetary
exchanges of similar productive assets in paraggdjph) of APB Opinion No. 29, “Accounting for Nonmetary Transactions,” and replaces it
with an exception for exchanges that do not havenaercial substance. SFAS 153 specifies that a noertaoy exchange has commercial
substance if the future cash flows of the entity expected to change significantly as a resubhefetxchange. This standard is effective for fiscal
periods beginning after June 15, 2005. We are otlyrevaluating the effect that the adoption of =263 will have on our consolidated staten
of income and financial condition.
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Note 2— Net Income Per Share:

Basic net income per share is computed biglidig the net income for the period by the weighawdrage number of common shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted net incoree ghare is computed by dividing the net incomeHerperiod by the weighted average number
of shares of common stock and potentially dilubeenmon stock outstanding during the period. Poadintdilutive common stock, composed of
unvested restricted common stock and incrementahoon shares issuable upon the exercise of stoédngpand warrants, are included in diluted
net income per share using the treasury stock rddththe extent such shares are dilutive. The fiolig table sets forth the computation of basic
and diluted net income per share for the periodgated (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Year Ended December 31

2002 2003 2004
Numerator:
Income before cumulative effect of accounting clee $ 249,89 $ 447,18 $ 778,22:
Cumulative effect of accounting, net of 1 — (5,41%) —
Net income $ 249,89: $ 441,77: $ 778,22:
Denominator
Weighted average common sha 1,150,721 1,276,67 1,319,54
Weighted average unvested common stock subjeeptarchas: (73€) (98) (90)
Denominator for basic calculatic 1,149,98. 1,276,571 1,319,45!
Weighted average effect of dilutive securiti
Weighted average unvested common stock subjeeptarchast 73€ 98 90
Employee stock optior 20,56( 36,64( 48,17:
Denominator for diluted calculatic 1,171,28| 1,313,31 1,367,72
Net income per shar
Income before cumulative effect of accounting clee $ 0.2z $ 0.3t $ 0.5¢

Cumulative effect of accounting chan — (0.00 —

Net income per basic she $ 0.22 $ 0.3¢ $ 0.5¢
Net income per diluted shat
Income before cumulative effect of accounting cle $ 0.21 $ 0.3¢ $ 0.57
Cumulative effect of accounting chan — (0.00) —
Net income per diluted sha $ 0.21 $ 0.3¢ $ 0.57

The calculation of diluted net income perrehexcludes all anti-dilutive shares. For the yesmmded December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, the
number of anti-dilutive shares, as calculated basethe weighted average closing price of our comstock for the period, amounted to
approximately 53.2 million, 7.0 million and 3.4 fioh shares, respectively.
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Note 3— Business Combinations, Goodwill and Intangible Asge:

Through both domestic and international asitjons, we have continued to expand eBay’s globéihe marketplace. The following table
summarizes our purchase acquisitions in 2003 afd a6th aggregate purchase prices in excess oh@lion (in thousands):

Post Identifiable Deferred Aggregate
Year Acquisition Net Tangible Intangible Tax Minority Purchase
Company Name Acquired Ownership Assets/Liabilities Assets Liabilities Interest Goodwill Price

EachNel 200z 10(% $ 12,34¢ $ 11,21 $ (3599 ¢ — $124,93. $ 144,89(
Internet Auctior 200z 62% N/A 14,981 (4,449 12,14 71,225 93,90:
mobile.de 2007 10C% 11,18: 30,50( (13,119 — 123,88 152,45;
Baazee.con 2007 10C% 2,747 2,35(C (905) — 46,12°¢ 50,31
Marketplaats 2007 10C% (1,902) 38,50( (21,779 —  266,57( 291,39(
Internet Auctior 2004 99.% N/A 60,14: (17,869 43,83: 438,68 524,79¢

Tangible net assets were valued at theire@se carrying amounts as we believe that thesauats approximated their current fair values at
the respective acquisition dates. The valuatioideftifiable intangible assets acquired reflectmagement’s estimates based on, among other
factors, use of established valuation methods. &8shts consist of customer lists and user baskertrarks and trade names, developed
technologies and other acquired intangible assetading contractual agreements. Identifiable igtbale assets are amortized using the straight-
line method over the estimated useful lives of tneight years. We believe the straidjhe method of amortization best represents theidigion
of the economic value of the identifiable intangiblssets. Goodwill represents the excess of thehase price over the fair value of the net
tangible and identifiable intangible assets acglineeach business combination. The purchase pfioar acquisitions in 2003 and 2004 excee
the estimated fair value of the related identiféaisitangible and tangible assets because we beliege acquisitions will assist with our stratef
establishing and expanding our global online maulkee. The following table summarizes our acquirgangible assets by type related to the
above purchase acquisitions (in thousands):

Year Customer List/ Trade Name/ Developed Other Intangible Total Acquired
Company Name Acquired User Base Trademarks Technology Assets Intangible Assets
EachNet 200: $ 91¢ $ 5381 $ 52t % 4,387 $ 11,21
Internet Auctior 200z 11,08( 3,462 43¢ — 14,98!
mobile.de 2004 20,40( 4,60( 5,50( — 30,50(
Baazee.con 2004 60C 15C 10C 1,50(C 2,35(
Marketplaats 2004 — 37,00( 1,50(C — 38,50(
Internet Auctior 2004 46,51( 12,23¢ 1,39¢ — 60,14:

The results of operations for periods pr@otir acquisition for each acquisition during 2@®@l 2004, both individually and in the aggregate,
were not material to our consolidated statemeimadme and, accordingly, pro forma results of ofjens have not been presented.

EachNet, Inc. Acquisitio

On March 17, 2002, we acquired an approxir388s interest in the outstanding common stock ahiiket, Inc. (“EachNet”), which was an
approximate 33% interest on a fully diluted basisg purchase acquisition for $30.0 million in caBachNet provided an online marketplace for
the trading of goods and services for both indigldand business customers in the People’s Repoblihina. We accounted for our investment
using the equity method of accounting and the fatastment, including identifiable intangible assaleferred tax liabilities and goodwill, was
classified on our balance sheet as a long-ternstnvent.
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In July 2003, we completed the acquisitiomlbbf the remaining outstanding capital stockEathNet, increasing our ownership interest from
approximately 38% to 100%. The total purchase gocehis transaction was $144.9 million and coresioof approximately $143.3 million in cg
and $1.6 million in acquisition-related expensesder the terms of the transaction, $104.9 millibthe cash amount was paid at closing and the
remaining $38.4 million was paid on March 1, 2004 have accounted for the acquisition of the remginutstanding capital stock as a purct
and, accordingly, the purchase price has beenaé#iddo the tangible and intangible assets acqainediabilities assumed on the basis of their
respective fair values on the acquisition date.

Internet Auction Co., Ltc

On December 17, 2003, we increased our ntgjimtierest of Internet Auction Co., Ltd., (“IACrdInternet Auction”), from approximately
51% to approximately 62% by the settlement of eader offer for approximately 1.6 million sharebeTotal cash consideration for these
additional shares was approximately $93.9 milliwhich includes approximately $2.2 million in estime acquisition-related expenses. Internet
Auction introduced online trading in South Koreaenmlit launched in April 1998. Shares of Internetian were listed on the KOSDAQ. Prior to
the fourth quarter of 2003, we consolidated ougiogl investment in IAC’s common shares and recttie minority investor’'s percentage share
of income or losses in minority interests in ounsolidated statement of income.

During September 2004, we purchased additgimares resulting in an aggregate increase obauership interest to approximately 97%. We
purchased approximately 4.5 million shares for KRA®,000 per share for a total cash amount of appratély KRW557 billion. The total cash
consideration for these additional shares was appadely $484.8 million, which includes approximigt&1.7 million in estimated acquisition-
related expenses.

On October 5, 2004 we closed our tender affgrurchase additional shares of IAC, resultingrinncrease of our ownership interest to
approximately 99.7%. We purchased approximately@shares for KRW125,000 per share. The totdl cassideration for these additional
shares was approximately $37.8 million, which ides approximately $400,000 in estimated acquisitgdated expenses.

On December 6, 2004, the delisting of IAC coom shares from the KOSDAQ was approved. Under &osecurities regulations, a seven
business day period is required prior to the daljstlate for on-the-market trade of shares. Dutivag seven day period, from November 25, 2004
through December 3, 2004, we purchased approxiyna#®000 additional shares for KRW125,000 per shtarencrease our ownership interest to
approximately 99.9%. The total cash consideratiosrifese additional shares was approximately $2IBm which includes approximately
$200,000 of estimated acquisition-related expenses.

Through these purchases, we have continuegand our presence in South Korea, one of tigesaionline markets in Asia. This is consis
with our strategy of establishing and expandingglabal online marketplace in countries that repnéshe majority of the world’s e-commerce
revenue. The estimated useful economic lives ofdéatifiable intangible assets acquired in theéase in ownership of IAC are eight years for
the user base, five years for the trade name,aog¢ars for the developed technology. The ideatilf intangible assets are being amortized
using the straight-line method over their usefdremmic lives.

mobile.de Acquisitio

On April 1, 2004, we acquired a 100% intereshobile.de for a cash purchase price of appraxéty 121 million Euros. mobile.de is a
classified advertising website for vehicles in Gany. The total purchase price recorded was appiein $152 million, including approximately
$3 million in estimated acquisition-related expend&e accounted for the acquisition as a purchrasedction and, accordingly, the purchase
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price has been allocated to the tangible and initdegssets acquired and liabilities assumed odisés of their respective estimated fair value
the acquisition date.

The estimated useful economic lives of thentdiable intangible assets acquired in the motddeacquisition are eight years for the user base,
two years for the developed technology and twoyé&arthe trade name. The identifiable intangitdseets are being amortized using the straight-
line method over their useful economic lives.

During the six months ended December 31, 2@@4recorded additional acquisition-related ligieis primarily in relation to a provision to
terminate a lease for redundant facilities. At Deber 31, 2004, the balance related to these atiquiselated liabilities was approximately
$3.6 million. The final purchase price allocatioill epend primarily upon our final determinatiohtbe provision to terminate the lease for
redundant facilities.

Baazee.com Acquisitic

On August 2, 2004, we acquired a 100% intereBaazee.com for a cash purchase price of appairly $50 million. Baazee.com is an
online marketplace in India. Through this acquisitiwe have established eBay in India and will openglobal online marketplace to
Baazee.com’s strong and growing community. Thd fmtechase price recorded was approximately $50amjlincluding $1 million in estimated
acquisition-related expenses. We accounted foatheisition as a purchase transaction and, acagiydithe purchase price has been allocated to
the tangible and intangible assets acquired abditias assumed on the basis of their respectstenated fair values on the acquisition date.

The estimated useful economic lives of thentdiable intangible assets acquired in the Baazee acquisition are three years for the
noncompete agreement, three years for the user dmaseear for the trade name, and one year fodékeloped technology. The identifiable
intangible assets are being amortized using tlaégéirline method over their useful economic lives.

Marktplaats.nl Acquisitiol

On November 10, 2004, we acquired a 100%dstén Marktplaats.nl (“Marktplaats”) for a cashrphase price of approximately 226 million
Euros. The total purchase price recorded was appetgly $291 million. Marktplaats.nl is an onlinkassified website in the Netherlands. The
acquisition allows us to expand our e-commercetjposin the Netherlands while adding to our growkmpwledge of classifieds-style trading.
The total purchase price recorded was approxim&2hi.4 million, including approximately $2.0 mili in estimated acquisition-related
expenses. We accounted for the acquisition as@hpse transaction and, accordingly, the purchase pas been allocated to the tangible and
intangible assets acquired and liabilities assuarethe basis of their respective estimated faineslon the acquisition date.

The estimated useful economic lives of thentdiable intangible assets acquired in the Mdedfs.nl acquisition are five years for the trade
name and eighteen months for the developed techyolte identifiable intangible assets are beingriaed using the straight-line method over
their useful economic lives.

PayPal Acquisitio-Related Liabilities

During the year ended December 31, 2003,imadiZed our formal plan to exit certain activitiasd integrate certain facilities of PayPal. This
plan included provisions to terminate leases fdurelant facilities, dispose of redundant fixed tssaad leasehold improvements, resolve certain
pre-acquisition legal contingencies, provide vasiemployee-related benefits and exit certain cotted obligations.
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The components of the acquisition relatebiliizes are as follows (in thousands):

Balance at Balance at
December 31 Cash Non-Cash December 31
2003 Payments Amount Used Adjustments 2004
Excess facilities and fixed ass: $ 32,95: $ (5,75¢ % (2,99¢) % (452) $ 23,74¢
Other liabilities and contingenci 3,94¢ (662) — — 3,28i
Total liability $ 36,90: $ (6419 $ (2,999 $ (452) $ 27,03

Excess facilities and fixed assets liab#ite®nsist primarily of accruals for PayPal’s renragriease obligations, net of estimated sublease
income, and the write-off of certain leasehold ioy@ments and other property and equipment at rexhiridcilities which we exited in February
2004. A substantial portion of the excess facsitad fixed assets liabilities recorded as of Ddmam31, 2004 are expected to settle in cash during
future periods. The non-cash amount used for the geded December 31, 2004 primarily representstitization of accruals related to certain
leasehold improvements and other property and ewgrip at redundant facilities. The adjustmentstierytear ended December 31, 2004 are due
primarily to the final determination of the requirerite-off of certain leasehold improvements atfteo property and equipment at redundant
facilities.

As of December 31, 2004, other liabilitiesl@ontingencies consist primarily of accruals fonttact termination costs, which are based on
estimated costs associated with the acquisiticatedlterminations of certain PayPal employees.
Goodwill

Goodwill information for each segment is akdws (in thousands):

December 31 Goodwill Goodwill December 31
2003 Acquired Disposal: Adjustments 2004
Segments
U.S. Marketplact $ 121,03¢ $ 2736 $ — $ 304 $ 148,70
International Marketplac 524,91 874,89( — 116,25: 1,516,05!
Payments 1,073,35! — — (962) 1,072,339
$ 1,719,31. $ 90225 $ — % 115,59¢ $ 2,737,15

The increase in goodwill acquired during year ended December 31, 2004, resulted primaoiynfour acquisition of the outstanding shares
of Marktplaats, mobile.de, Baazee.com, and our iaitgqun of an additional ownership interest in Imtet Auction as well as certain insignificant
acquisitions. Adjustments to goodwill during theayended December 31, 2004, resulted primarily ffomign currency translation adjustments
relating to goodwill associated with our currentigmior period acquisitions.

Investments accounted for under the equitthotof accounting are classified on our balan@zshs long-term investments. Such
investments include identifiable intangible assdtderred tax liabilities and goodwill. As of Decken 31, 2004, the goodwill related to our equity
investment totaled approximately $27.4 million.
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Intangible Asset
The components of acquired identifiable igible assets are as follows (in thousands):

December 31, 2003 December 31, 2004
Gross Net Weighted Gross Net Weighted
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Average Usefu Carrying Accumulated Carrying Average Usefu
Amount Amortization Amount Economic Life Amount Amortization Amount Economic Life
(Years) (Years)
Intangible asset:
Customer lists and user
base $223,15¢ $ (42,097 $181,06! 7 $300,92¢ $ (80,097 $220,83: 7
Trademarks and trade
names 75,26¢ (13,997) 61,277 7 139,23t (30,817) 108,42 6
Developed technologie 30,39¢ (16,147 14,24¢ 3 40,68¢ (28,489 12,19¢ 3
All other 19,60¢ (2,139 17,46¢ 5 33,89t (7,539 26,36! 4
$348,42¢ $ (74,37)  $274,05° $514,74¢  $ (146,93)  $367,81¢

All of our acquired identifiable intangiblesets are subject to amortization. Acquired idexttié intangible assets are comprised of customer
lists and user base, trademarks and trade nameslpded technologies, and other acquired intangibtets including patents and contractual
agreements. No significant residual value is edtihfor the intangible assets. The increase imgitde assets during the year ended
December 31, 2004 resulted primarily from an insesia our ownership in Internet Auction totalingpegximately $60.1 million, certain
intangible assets acquired as part of our acquiisiif the outstanding shares of Marktplaats andileole totaling approximately $38.5 million ¢
$30.5 million, respectively, as well as our acdiosi of an equity investment, as noted in “Note Srvestments” of these consolidated financial
statements. As of December 31, 2004, the net caynount of intangible assets related to our gguaitestment totaled approximately
$4.9 million. Aggregate amortization expense fdangible assets totaled $16.3 million, $53.2 milland $70.2 million for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively.

As of December 31, 2004, expected futurenigitale asset amortization is as follows (in thowsgn

Fiscal Years
2005 $ 86,65(
2006 73,025
2007 67,173
2008 64,98¢
2009 49,307
Thereaftel 26,67

367,81¢

Note 4— Segments:

Reporting segments are based upon our idterganization structure, the manner in which operations are managed, the criteria used b
chief operating decision-maker to evaluate segrperformance, the availability of separate finanaiédrmation, and overall materiality
considerations.

The U.S. Marketplace segment includes U.8nemarketplace trading platforms other than cayfal and Billpoint subsidiaries. The
International Marketplace segment includes ourirgtonal online market-
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place trading platforms other than our PayPal aiiddint subsidiaries. The Payments segment indunle global payments platform consisting
of our PayPal and Billpoint subsidiaries. The Pagte@mounts reflect Billpoint’s historical operatioand PayPal’s operations for the post-
acquisition period from October 4, 2002 througlt@€maber 31, 2004. We completed our planned wind-dafBillpoint in the first half of 2003.

Direct contribution consists of revenues lgigsct costs. Direct costs include specific cadtset revenues, sales and marketing expenses, anc
general and administrative expenses over which sagmanagers have direct discretionary controh siscadvertising and marketing programs,
customer support expenses, bank charges, provifodsubtful accounts, authorized credits anddeation losses. Expenses over which segi
managers do not currently have discretionary crgth as site operations costs, product develapmgenses, and certain general and
administrative costs, are monitored by managenteotugh shared cost centers and are not evaluatbd imeasurement of segment performance.

The following table summarizes the finangatformance of our reporting segments (in thousands
Year Ended December 31, 200

u.s. International
Marketplace Marketplace Payments Consolidated
Net revenues from external custom $ 816,59¢ % 302,13t $ 95,36¢ $ 1,214,10
Direct costs 300,65¢ 123,78 68,107 492,55(
Direct contributior 515,93 178,35: 27,26 721,55(
Operating expenses and indirect costs of net res 367,35:
Income from operation 354,19°
Interest and other income, r 49,20¢
Interest expens (1,497
Impairment of certain equity investmel (3,787
Income before income cumulative effect of accoumtihange,
taxes and minority interes $ 398,13:
Year Ended December 31, 200
U.S. International
Marketplace Marketplace Payments Consolidated
Net revenues from external custom $ 1,062,83. $ 664,64( $ 437,62. $ 2,165,009
Direct costs 389,37¢ 257,88t 243,17¢ 890,44:
Direct contributior 673,45t 406,75: 194,44: 1,274,65.
Operating expenses and indirect costs of net res 645,41.
Income from operation 629,24
Interest and other income, r 37,80:
Interest expens (4,319
Impairment of certain equity investmel (1,230)
Income before income cumulative effect of accoumtihange,
taxes and minority interes $ 661,50(
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Year Ended December 31, 200

U.S. International

Marketplace Marketplace
Net revenues from external custom $ 1,399,84 $ 1,173,75!
Direct costs 465,83 473,23
Direct contributior 934,01 700,52(

Operating expenses and indirect costs of net res
Income from operation

Interest and other income, r

Interest expens

Impairment of certain equity investmel

Income before income cumulative effect of accoumtihange,
taxes and minority interes

Payments

Consolidated

$ 697,70:
371,62:

$ 3,271,30
1,310,69.

326,08:

1,960,61!
901,37:
1,059,24:
77,86
(8,879

$ 112823

The following tables summarize the allocatidmet revenues and the long-lived assets basggography (in thousands):

United States net revenu
International net revenu

Net revenue

United States lor-lived asset:
International lon-lived asset:

Total lon¢-lived asset:

Net revenues are allocated between U.S. mtednlational geographies based upon the countmhioh the seller, payment recipient, advertiser
or end-to-end service provider is located. Longdi\assets are allocated between U.S. and Intenahtieographies based upon the country in

which the long-lived asset is located or owned.
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December 31

2002 2003 2004
897,70: 1,406,51. $ 1,889,93
316,39¢ 758,58 1,381,37.

1,214,10! 2,165,091 $ 3,271,30

December 31 December 31
2003 2004
$ 1,997,141 $ 2,040,60:
598,01 1,741,87!
$ 2,595,15: $ 3,782,471
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Note 5— Investments:

At December 31, 2003 and 2004, short and-tenm investments were classified as availablestie securities, except for restricted cash and
investments, and are reported at fair value asvall(in thousands):

December 31, 200

Gross Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Shor-term:
Restricted cash and investme $ 14,85¢ $ — $ — $ 14,85¢
Municipal bonds and note 8,06t — — 8,06t
Corporate debt securiti 223,40( 2 (43) 223,35¢
Government and agency securil 60,41¢ 25¢ — 60,67¢
Time deposits and oth 48,47¢ — — 48,47¢
$ 355,21 $ 261 $ (43) $ 355,43!
Long-term:
Restricted cash and investme $ 127,54« $ 32¢ $ (440 $ 127,43.
Corporate debt securiti 458,99 36E (497 458,87:
Government and agency securil 462,87¢ 23€ (2,067) 461,04¢
Equity instrument: 14,25: — — 14,252

$ 1,063,67. $ 92¢ $ (2,999 $ 1,061,60:

December 31, 200.

Gross Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Shor-term investments
Restricted cash and investme $ 156,13( $ 25 $ (750) $ 155,40!
Corporate debt securitis 581,05¢ 33 (2,90¢) 578,18
Government and agency securil 80,27¢ — (432) 79,84:
Time deposits and oth 23,97¢ — — 23,97¢
841,44: 58 (4,090 837,40¢
Long-term investments
Restricted cash and investme $ 1,397 $ 21 $ — $ 1,41¢
Corporate debt securitis 827,50! 107 (2,137) 825,47!
Government and agency securil 397,21: — (4,737) 392,47¢
Equity instruments and equity method investm: 48,33¢ — — 48,33¢

$  1,274,44 $ 12¢€ $ (6,870 $  1,267,70
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The following table summarizes the fair vatuel gross unrealized losses of our short-term@rgtterm investments, aggregated by type of
investment instrument and length of time that ifdlial securities have been in a continuous unredliass position, at December 31, 2004 (in
thousands):

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater Total
Gross Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized

Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
Restricted cash and investme  $ 54,69: $ (559 $ 13,11¢ $ (191 $ 67,81( $ (750)
Corporate debt securitit 1,129,45! (3,52)) 223,91! (1,529 $ 1,353,37. $ (5,045
Government and agency securi 226,36t (1,410 270,93 (3,759 $ 497,30: $ (5,16%)
$ 1,410,51 $ (5,490 $ 507,96 $ (5470 $ 1,918,48! $ (10,960

Our investment portfolio consists of bothpmmate and government securities that have a mawimaturity of three years. The longer the
duration of these securities, the more susceptilelg are to changes in market interest rates and pields. As yields increase, those securities
purchased with a lower yield-at-cost show a markatrket unrealized loss. All unrealized lossesdare to changes in interest rates and bond
yields. We expect to realize the full value ofthkse investments upon maturity or sale. The lossdkese securities have an average duration of
approximately ten months.

The estimated fair value of short and longatévestments classified by date of contractuaiunity at December 31, 2004 are as follows (in
thousands):

December 31

2004

One year or les $ 682,00
One year through two yea 853,66"
Two years through three yes 364,28t
Restricted cash and investments expiring in leas tine yea 155,40¢
Restricted cash and investments expiring in one tgefive years 1,15¢€
Restricted cash and investments expiring in moaa five years 262
Equity instruments and equity method investm: 48,33¢

$ 2,105,111

During 2002 and 2003, we recorded impairnodiarges totaling $3.8 million, $1.2 million, respeely, as a result of the deterioration of the
financial condition of certain of our private andqgtic equity investees that were considered totheradhan temporary. We did not record any
impairment charges during 2004.

Equity method investmer

On August 13, 2004, we acquired a minoritynevship interest in craigslist, inc. of approxiniat25%. craigslist is an online community
featuring classifieds and forums.

We account for the investment in craigslsing the equity method of accounting and the totaéstment, including identifiable intangible
assets, deferred tax liabilities and goodwill (8¢ete 3 — Business Combinations, Goodwill and Ifilate Assets’of these consolidated financ
statements), is classified on our balance sheai@sg-term investment. Subsequent to the acquiisitur consolidated
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financial results include approximately 25% of tied income or loss of craigslist together with atization expense relating to acquired intang
assets.

Note 6— Derivative Instruments:

We entered into two interest rate swaps ore 19 and July 20, 2000, with notional amountditage$95 million to reduce the impact of
changes in interest rates on a portion of theifigatate operating lease for our primary officeilfdes. The interest rate swaps allow us to reeeiv
floating rate receipts based on the London Intdtlfafiered Rate, or LIBOR, in exchange for makingefi rate payments of approximately 7% of
the notional amount, which effectively changesiaterest rate exposure on our operating lease &dimating rate to a fixed rate on $95.0 million
of the total $126.4 million notional amount of aarporate headquarters facility lease commitmehné Balance of $31.4 million remains at a
floating rate of interest based on the spread 8waonth LIBOR. The fair value of the interest rateaps as of December 31, 2004 was an
unrealized loss of $662,000, net of tax benefit @rrecorded in accumulated other comprehensiveniie on the balance sheet. The interest swap
will mature in March 2005, at which time the leas@ires and we will purchase the San Jose headysdacility.

Transaction Exposure

As of December 31, 2004, we had outstandimgdrd foreign exchange hedge contracts with natigalues equivalent to approximately
$316 million with maturity dates within 11 days.é'hedge contracts are used to offset changes iUSotollar denominated functional currency
value of assets and liabilities as a result ofifprexchange rate fluctuations. Transaction gamslasses on the contracts and the assets and
liabilities are recognized each period in intessd other income, net.

Translation Exposure

Foreign exchange rate fluctuations may adgiisnpact our financial position and our result®perations. Foreign exchange rate fluctuat
may adversely impact our financial position asabsets and liabilities of our foreign operatiorestaanslated into U.S. dollars in preparing our
consolidated balance sheet. The effect of foreigiange rate fluctuations on our consolidated frerposition for the year ended December 31,
2004, was a net translation gain of approximaté|0million. This gain is recognized as an adjustite stockholders’ equity through
accumulated other comprehensive income. Additign&direign exchange rate fluctuations may adversepact our results of operations as
exchange rate fluctuations on transactions dendsdna currencies other than our functional curiemcesult in gains and losses that are refle
in our consolidated statement of income. In addjtet December 31, 2004, we held balances in cash, equivalents and investments outside the
U.S. totaling approximately $467 million.

We consolidate the earnings of our foreigosadiaries by converting them into U.S. dollarsagtordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 52 “Foreign Currency Tiatien” (FAS 52). Such earnings will fluctuate whirere is a change in foreign currency
exchange rates. From time to time we enter intes@ations to hedge portions of our foreign curresieyominated earnings translation exposure
using both foreign currency options and forwardtcacts. The aggregate notional amount of thesedsedgtered into in 2004 was 109 million
Euros and 43 million British pounds. The loss ossthhedges for 2004 totaled approximately $2.0amjlwhich were recorded in interest and
other income, net. All contracts that hedge traimsiaexposure mature ratably over the quarter irciwkthey are executed.
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Economic Exposure

We currently charge our foreign subsidiadasa monthly basis for their use of eBay’s intdllet property and technology and for corporate
services provided by eBay Inc. such as insuraaseand legal. This charge is denominated in Eunadsthese forecasted inter-company
transactions at eBay Inc. represent a foreign ogyreash flow exposure. To reduce foreign exchaisferelating to these forecasted inter-
company transactions, we entered into forward fpreixchange contacts during the year ended Dece3db@004. The objective of the forward
contracts is to ensure that the U.S. dollar-eqeiviatash flows are not adversely affected by chairgéhe U.S. dollar/ Euro exchange rate.
Pursuant to Statement of Financial Accounting Stathel No. 133 “Accounting for Derivative Instrumeatsd Hedging Activities” (FAS 133), we
expect the hedge of these forecasted transactidnes highly effective in offsetting potential chasgn cash flows attributed to a change in the
U.S. dollar/ Euro exchange rate. Accordingly, weord as a component of other comprehensive incdinoa@alized gains and losses related to
the forward contracts that receive hedge accourtesgment. We record all unrealized gains andeleés interest and other income, net, related to
the forward contracts that do no receive hedgelataay treatment pursuant to FAS 133. There wereutstanding forward contracts that receive
hedge accounting treatment at December 31, 20G2fdllowing table shows the notional amount of eaonomic hedges entered into in 2004,
together with the associated losses, net of gedesyrded in our consolidated statement of incoméhfe year ended December 31, 2004, and the
amounts recorded to accumulated other comprehemsivene at December 31, 2004:

Accumulated

Net Loss Recordec Other
Notional to Interest and Comprehensive
Amount Other Income, Net Income
(In thousands)
Amount receiving hedge accounting treatment undes E33 $ 140,19¢ $ (3,357 $ —
Amount not receiving hedge accounting treatmeneu®d\S 13z 30,77: (333) —
Total $ 170,96¢ $ (3,690 $ —

No economic hedges were entered into duhieg/ear ended December 31, 2003.

Note 7— Balance Sheet Components

December 31
2003 2004
(In thousands)

Accounts receivable, net

Accounts receivabl $ 273,94 $ 319,48¢
Allowance for doubtful accoun (43,199 (67,857)
Allowance for authorized credi (4,87%) (10,780

$  225,87: $ 240,85¢
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December 31
2003 2004
(In thousands)

Other current assets:

Customer accoun $ 29,99( $ 270,91¢
Prepaid expense 33,10: 54,15¢
Deferred tax asset, n 24,13¢ 10,427
Other 15,94¢ 43,91

$ 103,17( $ 379,41!

In February 2004, PayPal obtained a liceasmperate as an ELMI from the United Kingdom'’s Ficial Services Authority. As a result of
regulatory requirements associated with this ELiRBhse, PayPal transferred the accounts and furitssEBuropean Union users from its
U.S. parent to its U.K. subsidiary. Customer fuimdthe U.S. are held in deposit accounts insurethbyFederal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or
FDIC, and are held by PayPal as an agent for theflief its customers. These funds are not rediéctn our balance sheet. ELMI regulations
require that customer balances in the U.K. subsidia represented as claims on the subsidiaryraresied only in specified types of liquid ass
These customer balances are therefore includediobadance sheet as current assets with an offgdiibility. At December 31, 2004, the
amount recorded within customer funds on our cadatdd balance sheet related to the funds in tKe &libsidiary was $206.4 million.

December 31
2003 2004
(In thousands)

Property and equipment, net:

Computer equipment and softw: $ 462,97 $ 683,71t
Land and buildings, including building improveme 293,23 278,70¢
Aviation equipmen 30,47: 30,39¢
Leasehold improvemen 49,64t 99,62
Furniture and fixture 35,02¢ 43,68¢
Vehicles and othe 80 211

$ 871,43: $ 1,136,34
Accumulated depreciatic (269,649 (426,579

$ 601,78! $ 709,77

During the years ended December 31, 20023 20@ 2004, we capitalized $15.5 million, $38.5lio1il and $41.3 million of software
development costs, respectively, the majority ofchihrelates to major site and other product develkoqt efforts. Total depreciation expense on
our property and equipment was $60.7 million in200105.8 million in 2003 and $183.5 million in 200

From time to time and in the ordinary cour§&usiness, we elect to sell real estate promeptieviously held for lease, or purchase properties
or property interests for future rental. No redhés properties were sold
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during 2003. During 2004, we sold the remainingpeity related to our former Butterfields subsidifoyapproximately $12.7 million in cash and
recognized a loss of approximately $800,000.

December 31
2003 2004
(In thousands)

Accrued expenses:

Acquisition related accrued expen: $ 78,527 $ 17,67¢
Compensation and related bene 61,42¢ 110,14¢
Advertising 45,49¢ 65,49¢
Contractors and consultar 11,63¢ 21,46¢
Professional fee 49,33( 51,02¢
Transaction loss reser 12,00¢ 10,98¢
Other current liabilitie: 98,06: 145,16¢

$  356,49: $ 421,96¢

Note 8— Long-Term Obligations:
The following table summarizes our long-tesbligations, including the current portion:

December 31

2003 2004
(In thousands)
Consolidated facilities lea $ 122,49t $ 122,49¢
Capital lease 4,81¢ 1,84¢
Subtotal 127,31¢ 124,34°
Less: Current portio (2,840 (124,27))
Long-term portion $  124.47¢ $ 75

As of December 31, 2004, we had $126.4 mmilliecluded within current restricted cash and itwesnts relating to our San Jose headquarters
lease facilities. In February 2004, we electedtaaxercise certain rights to extend the leaseogeand, as a result, will purchase the leased
facilities on March 1, 2005. Accordingly, we haeelassified the restricted cash and the liabikating to this lease as short-term in nature. At
December 31, 2004, we were in compliance with marfcial covenants under the lease.

Capital leases consist of various computdrather office leases that totaled $4.8 million id million at December 31, 2003 and 2004,
respectively.

Minimum annual repayments on our consolidéedities lease and capital leases at Decembg2@14, are as follows (in thousands):

Year Ending December 31 Total
2005 $ 124,27:
2006 75
Thereaftel —
$ 124,34’
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Approximately $122.5 million of the 2005 afdition payable represents the payment to the leatich excludes the $3.9 million in relatior
the non-controlling minority interest, for the corpte headquarters in San Jose, California. Theduéase payments through March 2005 under
this lease arrangement are included within ourgealtions under operating leases. See “Note 9 — Gipgraease Arrangements” of these
consolidated financial statements.

Lease payments related to our corporate heatiys in San Jose, California are estimated basedarket interest rates (LIBOR) at
December 31, 2004, adjusted to reflect our twor@sterate swaps and certain collateral assumptitiesentered into two interest rate swaps on
June 19, 2000 and July 20, 2000 to reduce thedhgdfahanges in interest rates on a portion ofltheging rate operating lease for this facility.
The interest swap will mature in March 2005. Seet®!\N6 — Derivative Instruments” of these consokdifinancial statements.

Note 9 — Operating Lease Arrangements:

We also have lease obligations under cedtiar non-cancelable operating leases. Future mimimental payments under our non-cancelable
operating leases, at December 31, 2004, are asv®[lin thousands):

Operating

Year Ending December 31 Leases
2005 $ 19,987
2006 15,52:
2007 11,23¢
2008 9,371
2009 7,43¢
Thereaftel 26,63¢
Total minimum lease paymer $ 90,18

Rent expense in the years ended Decemb@0B2, 2003 and 2004, totaled $3.6 million, $8.4iarl and $7.7 million, excluding payments
under our consolidated facilities lease, respelstive

Note 10— Commitments and Contingencies
Litigation and Other Legal Matter:

In April 2001, two of our European subsidigrieBay GmbH and eBay International AG, were $yebllontres Rolex S.A. and certain of its
affiliates in the regional court of Cologne, Germafhe suit subsequently was transferred to thned court in Disseldorf, Germany. Rolex
alleged that our subsidiaries were infringing R&drademarks as a result of users selling cougitdRolex watches through our German website.
The suit also alleged unfair competition. Rolexgitiian order enjoining the sale of Rolex-brandetthes on the website as well as damages. In
December 2002, a trial was held in the matter Aeccourt ruled in favor of eBay on all causes dioac Rolex appealed the ruling to the Higher
Regional Court of Dusseldorf, and the appeal waschimn October 2003. In February 2004, the coyected Rolex’s appeal and ruled in our
favor. Rolex has appealed the ruling to the GerFedteral Supreme Court. In March 2004, the Germalefaé Supreme Court ruled in favor of
Rolex in a case involving an unrelated companwrdo.de AG, but somewhat comparable legal theoFies.court issued its written decision in
that case in September 2004. Although it is notcledr what effect the reasoning of the German FE@@&upreme Court’s ricardo.de decision
would have when applied to eBay, we believe ther€odecision will likely not require any signifiahchange in our business practices.
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In September 2001, a complaint was filed réfExchange LLC against us, our Half.com subsidieny ReturnBuy, Inc. in the U.S. District
Court for the Eastern District of Virginia (No. 2:@CV-736) alleging infringement of three patentddting to online auction technology, multiple
database searching and electronic consignmentsgstnd seeking a permanent injunction and dam@yseding treble damages for willful
infringement). In October 2002, the court granteg@art our summary judgment motion, effectivelyahdating the patent related to online auc
technology and rendering it unenforceable. Thimguleft only two patents in the case. Trial of thatter began in April 2003. In May 2003, the
jury returned a verdict finding that eBay had willy infringed one and Half.com had willfully infiged both of the patents in the suit, awarc
$35.0 million in compensatory damages. Both paftied post-trial motions, and in August 2003, treurt entered judgment for MercExchange in
the amount of $29.5 million, plus pre-judgment et and post-judgment interest in an amount tddtermined, while denying MercExchange'’s
request for an injunction and attorneys’ fees. \pMgealed the verdict and judgment in favor of Merdiange and MercExchange filed a cross-
appeal of the granting in part of our summary judgtrmotion and the denial of its request for aongjion and attorneys’ fees. Oral arguments
for the appeals were heard on October 5, 2004 UlBePatent and Trademark Office recently grantedequest that it reexamine the three
patents at suit, and on January 26, 2005, the PatenTrademark Office issued a ruling rejectingpdMercExchange’s claims under the patent
that related to online auctions. We continue taelvel that the verdict against us in the trial wairect and intend to continue to pursue our
appeal and defend ourselves vigorously. Howevem évsuccessful, our appeal of and defense agtiissaction will continue to be costly. In
addition, as a precautionary measure, we have meddiertain functionality of our websites and bess practices in a manner which we believe
makes them not infringe the two patents that weevi@und to have infringed. Nonetheless, if we aesuiccessful in appealing the court’s ruling,
we might be forced to pay significant additionairdages and licensing fees or modify our businesstipess in an adverse manner. We recorde
operating charge in the amount of $30.0 milliofilecing the $29.5 million judgment, together withr estimate for pre-judgment interest of
$0.5 million. The charge and the related estimgagdenefit of $12.1 million were reflected in aansolidated statement of income as patent
litigation expense in the year ended December 8232

In August 2002, Charles E. Hill & Associatey;. filed a lawsuit in the U.S. District Courtrfthe Eastern District of Texas (No. 2:02-CV-186)
alleging that we and 17 other companies, primdaitge retailers, infringed three patents owned Blydgénerally relating to electronic catalog
systems and methods for transmitting and updatitig dt a remote computer. The suit seeks an ingmagainst continuing infringement,
unspecified damages, including treble damages itfulinfringement, and interest, costs, expensag] fees. In January 2003, the case was
transferred to the U.S. District Court for the Swaurh District of Indiana. After pending in Indiafa almost a year, the case was transferred back
to the U.S. District Court for the Eastern DistiaétTexas in December 2003. A scheduling conferavere held in November 2004 and a
preliminary trial date has been set for Februai@&@ he case is currently in fact discovery andhtleonstruction discovery. We believe that we
have meritorious defenses and intend to defencetuas vigorously.

In February 2002, PayPal was sued in Caliéostate court (No. CV-805433) in a purported ckst#on alleging that its restriction of customer
accounts and failure to promptly unrestrict legatmaccounts violates California state consumeeption laws and is an unfair business practice
and a breach of PayPal’'s User Agreement. This metis re-filed with a different named plaintiffdnne 2002 (No. CV-808441), and a similar
action was also filed in the U.S. District Court the Northern District of California in June 200%0. C-02-2777). In March 2002, PayPal was
sued in the U.S. District Court for the Northerrstiict of California (No. C-02-1227) in a purporteldss action alleging that its restrictions of
customer accounts and failure to promptly unresteigitimate accounts violates federal and statesamer protection and unfair business practice
laws. The two federal court actions were consodidanto a single case, and the state court actamstayed pending developments in the federal
case. In June 2004, the parties announced thahtmby
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reached a proposed settlement. The settlement/eztapproval from the federal court on Novembe24, but the court’s approval could be
appealed. In the settlement, PayPal does not adkdge that any of the allegations in the caserar tUnder the terms of the settlement, certain
PayPal account holders will be eligible to recgyagment from a settlement fund of $9.25 milliorssl@dministrative costs and the amount
awarded to plaintiffs’ counsel by the court. Thatnswill be distributed to class members who havastied timely claims in accordance with the
settlement’s plan of allocation, which still must &pproved by the court. The parties expect tipddra of allocation will be submitted to the court
in the first quarter of 2005. The amount of thaleatent was fully accrued in our consolidated steget of income for the year ended

December 31, 2003.

In July 2004, a purported class action latwsais filed by two eBay users in Superior Courthaf State of California, County of Santa Clara
(No. 104CVv022708) alleging that eBay engaged inroppr billing practices as the result of problenithwhe rollout of a new billing software
system in the second and third quarters of 2004.1aWsuit sought damages and injunctive reliefafmended complaint was filed in January
2005, dropping one plaintiff, changing the capaoityhe other plaintiff to that of representativaiptiff, and adding seven additional eBay users
as plaintiffs. The amended complaint expandedadisncto include numerous alleged improper billimagtices from September 2003 until the
present. In February 2005, eBay filed a motiontti&kes and a demurrer seeking to dismiss the compl&Ve believe that we have meritorious
defenses and intend to defend ourselves vigorously.

In February 2005, eBay was sued in Superaurtof the State of California, County of Santar@l(No. 105CV035930) in a purported class
action alleging that certain bidding features of site constitute “shill bidding” for the purposéattificially inflating bids placed by buyers ohet
site. The complaint alleges violations of Calif@’si Auction Act, California’s Consumer Remedies ,Aatd unfair competition. The complaint
seeks injunctive relief, damages, and a constredtivst. The plaintiffs have not yet served eBathulie complaint. We believe that we have
meritorious defenses and intend to defend oursefigesously.

Other third parties have from time to timaieled, and others may claim in the future, thataee infringed their intellectual property rights.
We have been notified of several potential pat&pwdes, and expect that we will increasingly bigjett to patent infringement claims as our
services expand in scope and complexity. In pdeicwe expect to face additional patent infringetngaims involving services we provide,
including various aspects of our Payments busindsshave in the past been forced to litigate sl&ims. We may also become more vulnerable
to third-party claims as laws such as the Digitédlévinium Copyright Act, the Lanham Act and the Gumnications Decency Act are interpreted
by the courts and as we expand geographicallyjimtsdictions where the underlying laws with respecthe potential liability of online
intermediaries like ourselves are either uncledess favorable. These claims, whether meritorausot, could be time consuming and costly to
resolve, cause service upgrade delays, requireneiygechanges in our methods of doing businesspud require us to enter into costly royalty
or licensing agreements.

From time to time, we are involved in oth&pdites that arise in the ordinary course of bissin€he number and significance of these dispute:
is increasing as our business expands and our econgraws larger. Any claims against us, whetheritogous or not, could be time consuming,
result in costly litigation, require significant asmts of management time, and result in the digarsf significant operational resources.

While we currently believe that the ultimagsolution of these unresolved matters will nothavmaterial adverse impact on our financial
position, results of operations or cash flows, lifigation and other claims noted specifically @ngrally above are subject to inherent uncertas
and our view of these matters may change in thedutWere an unfavorable final outcome to occletetexists the possibility of a material
adverse impact on our financial position, resuftegerations or cash flows for the period in whibh effect becomes reasonably estimable. We
are unable to determine what potential losses weinzaur if these matters were to have an unfaverabtcome.
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Indemnification Provisions

In the ordinary course of business, we hactded limited indemnification provisions in ceéntaf our agreements with parties with whom
have commercial relations, including our standaadketing, promotions and application-programminigiiface license agreements. Under these
contracts, we generally indemnify, hold harmlessl agree to reimburse the indemnified party foséasssuffered or incurred by the indemnified
party in connection with claims by any third pawtith respect to our domain names, trademarks, lagdsother branding elements to the extent
that such marks are applicable to our performamcieiuthe subject agreement. In a limited numbemgoéements, including agreements under
which we have developed technology for certain cemuial parties, we have provided an indemnity fibveo types of third-party claims,
substantially all of which are indemnities relatedur copyrights, trademarks, and patents. To, datsignificant costs have been incurred, either
individually or collectively, in connection with oindemnification provisions.

Note 11— Related Party Transactions:

We have entered into indemnification agreemeiith each of our directors, executive officensl @ertain other officers. These agreements
require us to indemnify such individuals, to théefst extent permitted by Delaware law, for certi#ailities to which they may become subjec
a result of their affiliation with us.

Commercial agreemen

A member of our Board of Directors is a gah@artner of certain venture capital funds thatdieially hold in the aggregate a greater than
10% equity interest in several public and privaiepanies. We engaged in the following transactieitls such companies:

In April 2000, we entered into an advertisargl promotions agreement with a privately held gany that provides a marketplace for live
advice. Under this agreement, we recognized reweafiapproximately $200,000 in 2002 and none in32@@d 2004. In 1999, we invested
$2.0 million in capital stock of such company ardeived a warrant to purchase additional shareishwhexercised, would bring our total
ownership to less than 5% of its capital stock.

In 2000, we invested $3.0 million in capiébck of a privately held company that providesa estate solution to home buyers and seller:
received a warrant to purchase additional sharkshaf exercised, would bring our total ownerstodess than 5% of its capital stock. The
member of our Board of Directors referred to abisvalso a member of such company’s Board of DirsctBuch company effected an initial
public offering of its common stock in 2004.

Separately, a member of our Board of Direxisra director and Chairman of the Executive Cottemiof the Board of Directors of a company
with whom PayPal, in September 2000, prior to eBagquisition of PayPal, entered into a strategicketing agreement. The agreement was
terminated in December 2002, and PayPal paid thpaay an early termination fee of $1,348,000 iruday 2003 in accordance with the term
the agreement. In addition, in July 2003, the camggaurchased an entity with which eBay had a piistieng data licensing agreement. In June
2004, this contract was amended to extend the ¢étime agreement and to update the fees. Undeethes of eBay’s agreement, as amended,
with the purchased entity, eBay recognized $156(#5&venue in 2003, and $323,184 of revenue iM208e revenues expected to be recogr
by us is approximately $35,500 per month for theamder of the term, which is through May 2006.

All contracts with related parties are aesadind terms that we believe are comparable withetentered into with independent third parties.
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Notes receivable from eBay executive offit

At December 31, 2003 we held notes receivabla certain executive officers totaling $630,00Qwring 2003, all but one of such outstanding
notes were pre-paid in full. The remaining outstagdote was paid in full during 2004.

Note 12— Preferred Stock:

We are authorized, subject to limitationsspribed by Delaware law: to issue Preferred Staaknie or more series; to establish the number of
shares included within each series; to fix thetsghreferences and privileges of the shares df edwlly unissued series and any related
gualifications, limitations or restrictions; andit@wrease or decrease the number of shares ofegigg gbut not below the number of shares of a
series then outstanding) without any further vataaiion by the stockholders. At December 31, 2803 2004, there were 10 million shares of
Preferred Stock authorized for issuance, and neeshasued or outstanding.

Note 13— Common Stock:

Our Certificate of Incorporation, as amendrahorizes us to issue 1,790 million shares ofmomstock. A portion of the shares outstanding
are subject to repurchase over a four-year perm the earlier of the issuance date or employeedite, as applicable. At December 31, 2003
and 2004 there were 34,000 and 140,000 sharescstibjeepurchase rights, respectively.

At December 31, 2004, we had reserved 25@lmshares of common stock available for futiseuance under our stock option plans,
including 137.2 million shares related to outstagdstock options. In addition, we had reserved @aprately 4.0 million shares of common stock
available for future issuance under our deferredkstinit plan, and approximately 6.0 million shasésommon stock available for future issua
under our employee stock purchase plan.

Note 14— Employee Benefit Plans
Employee Stock Purchase PI

We have an employee stock purchase planifeligible employees. Under the plan, shares afammmon stock may be purchased over an
offering period with a maximum duration of two yeat 85% of the lower of the fair market value loa first day of the applicable offering period
or on the last day of the six-month purchase peifimdployees may purchase shares having a valuexaetding 10% of their gross compensation
during an offering period. During the years endedt&mber 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, employees puthggpeoximately 704,000, 1.2 million
and 1.2 million shares at average prices of $1132,79 and $20.66 per share, respectively. At Bee 31, 2004, approximately 6.0 million
shares of common stock were reserved for fututeaisse. Our employee stock purchase plan contaihsvangreen” provision that automatically
increases, on each January 1, the number of stemes/ed for issuance under the employee stockhpsecplan by the number of shares purct
under this plan in the preceding calendar year.

401(k) Savings Pla

We have a savings plan, which qualifies urgkation 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. Eipetting employees may contribute up to 25%
of their annual salary, but not more than statutionjts. We contribute one dollar for each dollgparticipant contributes, with a maximum
contribution of $1,500 per employee. Our matchiagtdbutions were $2.3 million in 2002, $3.9 milign 2003 and $5.6 million in 2004.
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Stock Unit Plar

We have a deferred stock unit plan under vdieferred stock units have been granted to newenguioyee directors elected to our Board of
Directors after December 31, 2002. Under this ptath new director receives a one-time grant adrdedl stock units equal to the result of
dividing $150,000 by the fair market value of oomamon stock on the date of grant. Each deferrezksinit constitutes an unfunded and
unsecured promise by us to deliver one share of@mmon stock (or the equivalent value thereofashcor property at our election). These
deferred stock units vest 25% one year from the dagrant, and at a rate of 2.08% per month tliemedf the services of the director are
terminated at any time, all rights to the unvestefitrred stock units shall also terminate. Defestedk units are payable following the termina
of a director’s tenure as a director. All eBay offis, directors and employees are eligible to vecawards under the plan, although, to date,
awards have been made only to new non-employeetdigse As of December 31, 2004, 15,586 units haentawarded under this plan.

Equity Incentive Plan

We have equity incentive plans for directafficers and employees. Stock options granted wtidse plans generally vest 25% one year |
the date of grant (or 12.5% six months from theddtgrant for grants to existing employees) amdréfmainder vest at a rate of 2.08% per month
thereafter, and generally expire 10 years frondtte of grant. Stock options issued prior to Ju@81were exercisable immediately, subject to
repurchase rights held by us, which lapse ovewésting period. Restricted stock issued under th&ses are subject to repurchase by us at such
times as determined by the Board of Directors,dsity five years. At our Annual Meeting of StockHets held on June 24, 2004, our stockhol
approved amendments to certain of our equity ineemlans to increase the number of shares of camstack that may be issued under the plans
by a total of 48 million shares. At December 31020112.8 million shares were available for futgrant.

The following table summarizes activity under equity incentive plans for the years endeddbder 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004 (shares in
thousands):

Year Ended December 31

2002 2003 2004

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Exercise Exercise Exercise

Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

Outstanding at beginning of peri 140,41¢ % 11.5¢€ 148,71: % 13.4% 138,41 % 16.9:
Granted 67,46¢ 13.3¢ 53,38¢ 22.6: 43,62¢ 38.2%
Exercisec (39,076) 6.54 (52,289 12.9¢ (38,71%) 16.17
Cancellec (20,099 13.5C (11,409 16.1¢ (6,117) 23.7:
Outstanding at end of peri 148,71« 13.4: 138,41( 16.9: 137,20t 23.6:
Options exercisable at end of per 52,49¢ % 13.1¢ 45,01 $ 13.9: 49,34¢  $ 16.77
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The following table summarizes informatioroabfixed stock options outstanding at December2BD4 (shares in thousands):

Options Outstanding at December 31, 200

Options Exercisable at
December 31, 200.

Weighted Weighted Weighted
Number of Average Average Number of Average
Shares Remaining Exercise Shares Exercise

Range of Exercise Price Outstanding Contractual Life Price Exercisable Price
$0.08— $13.24 15,99( 5.7 year $ 8.21 12,51« $ 757
$13.25— $14.51 21,33: 7.3 14.17 9,63 14.21
$14.51— $18.10 15,25¢ 6.8 16.0¢ 8,42¢ 16.0¢
$18.24— $18.85 2,83¢ 6.8 18.7(C 1,77C 18.7:
$18.85— $19.39 15,84. 8.0 19.3¢ 5,25¢ 19.3¢
$19.39— $27.38 20,59( 8.1 24.61 7,05¢ 241z
$27.43— $33.40 5,624 8.8 29.1¢ 1,15C 28.8(
$33.46— $34.62 24,41: 9.2 34.5¢ 3,49¢ 34.61
$34.63— $57.21 14,24¢ 9.6 43.91] 48 39.2(
$57.37— $58.21 1,08 10.C 58.0¢ — —
137,20t 7.9 $ 23.6: 49,34¢ $ 16.7i

Exercisable Unexercisable Total

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Exercise Exercise Exercise

Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

In-the-money 49,34¢ $ 16.71 87,75¢ $ 27.4¢ 137,10: $ 23.6(
Out-of-the-money — — 10€ 58.21 10€ 58.21
Total options outstandin 49,34¢ $ 16.7% 87,86 $ 27.4¢ 137,20t $ 23.6:

In-the-money options are options with an eiser price lower than the $58.17 closing price wf @mmon stock on December 31, 2004. Out-
of-the-money options are options with an exerciseepgreater than the $58.17 closing price of mmmon stock on December 31, 2004.

In connection with the change in status faamemployee to a noemployee, we were required, in accordance with FA8&pretation No. 4
“Accounting for Certain Transactions Involving Sko€ompensation — an interpretation of APB Opiniom 85" and EITF 00-23 “Issues Related
to the Accounting for Stock Compensation under ABRBnion No. 25 and FASB Interpretation No. 44" réaneasure the portion of the
individual’s options that were unvested at the ddtihe change in status. The remeasurement isregbio be at fair value and will continue to be
revalued over the period of performance. The rdlateck-based compensation amortization recogridreidg the year ended December 31, 2004
totaled approximately $3.7 million. The fair valakthese unvested options have been estimated tigrBlackScholes option pricing model wi
the following weighted average assumptions: rigefinterest rate, 2.9%; effective contractual3ife years; dividend yield, 0%; and expected
volatility, 36.0%.
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The following table summarizes additionalk&toption information related to grants made to @mployees and grants made specifically to
named officers, which include our chief executifiécer and the other four most highly compensatfiters during the year (in thousands, except
percentages):

Year Ended December 31

2002 2003 2004

Total outstanding shares of common stock (at pezitd) 1,245,10: 1,298,58! 1,338,60:
As a percentage of total outstanding shares of comstock:
Grants during the peric 5% 4% 3%
Total outstandin(“in-the-money’ grants 10% 11% 10%
Total outstanding gran 12% 11% 10%
Grants to named officers during the per * * *
Total outstanding grants to named offic 1% 1% 1%
Total stock option grants during the per 67,46¢ 53,38¢ 43,62¢
Grants to named officers during the period as agygrof total grants during the peri 5% 9% 7%
Total outstanding stock option grants (at period)¢ 148,71: 138,41( 137,20¢
Total outstanding grants to named officers as agugrof total stock option grants

outstanding 9% 11% 11%

* Less than half of a percentage point

Non-stockholder approved stock option grants

Prior to our initial public offering in 1998ur Board of Directors approved three stock opticants outside of formally approved stockholder
plans to two independent directors upon their jggndur Board of Directors and to an executive effiapon his hiring. All of such option grants
vested over 25% one year from the date of granh thie remainder vesting at a rate of 2.08% pertmthereafter and expire 10 years from the
date of grant. The options granted to the indepeindieectors were immediately exercisable, subdj@cepurchase rights held by us, which lapse
over the vesting period. The terms and conditidrsioh grants are otherwise identical to nonquedifoption grants made under the stock option
plan in effect at that time. At the time of suclugps, members of our Board of Directors (and th#iliates) beneficially owned in excess of 90%
of our then outstanding voting interests. We hawewipusly disclosed such option grants in our Pectis filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on September 25, 1998 in connection aithinitial public offering under the headings “Megement — Director Compensatiaanic
“Management — Compensation Arrangemenisidr to 2004, one director and the executive effitad exercised all available options under 1
respective grants. At December 31, 2004, one gean&ined outstanding to one independent directith, ¥690,000 shares to be issued upon
exercise of the outstanding options at an averageeise price of $0.39. There were no shares rentpawvailable under these non-stockholder
approved plans for future grants as of Decembe304.
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Note 15— Income Taxes:

The components of pretax income excludingamiiy interest in consolidated companies for thargeended December 31, 2002, 2003 and
2004 are as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31

2002 2003 2004
United State! $ 266,15: $ 449,07¢ $ 820,89:
Internationa 131,98: 212,42: 307,33¢

$ 398,13 $ 661,50( $ 1,128,23

The provision for income taxes is composetheffollowing (in thousands):
Year Ended December 31

2002 2003 2004
Current:

Federal $ 103,60t $ 124,07 $ 246,79
State and loce 18,99: 36,64¢ 57,09¢
Foreign 10,06: 10,37¢ 23,54¢
132,66( 171,09¢ 327,44(

Deferred:
Federal 8,091 40,61¢ 27,83¢
State and loce 5,19t (1,047 (3,56%)
Foreign — (3,939 (7,826
13,28¢ 35,63¢ 16,44¢
$ 145,94¢ $ 206,73t $ 343,88!

The following is a reconciliation of the difence between the actual provision for incomestaxel the provision computed by applying the
federal statutory rate of 35% for 2002, 2003, ad@d42to income before income taxes (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31

2002 2003 2004
Provision at statutory ra $ 138,54 $ 228,87 $ 394,88:
Permanent difference
Foreign income taxed at different ra (5,406 (45,190 (84,099
Change in valuation allowan: — 5,75¢ 2,00¢
Subsidiary loss not benefit 1,052 — —
Tax-exempt interest incorr (2,37%) (1,272) —
State taxes, net of federal ben 15,72: 23,297 35,00¢
Tax credits (2,027 (7,949 (6,975
Other 434 3,217 3,06¢
$ 145,94¢ $ 206,73t $ 343,88!
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recay for the future tax consequences of differeriiween the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities and their respective tax bases usingcted tax rates in effect for the year in whichdfféerences are expected to reverse. Significant
deferred tax assets and liabilities consist offthlewing (in thousands):

December 31

2003 2004
Deferred tax asset
Net operating loss and cred $ 186,14. $ 165,67:
Accruals and allowance 38,34« 57,64¢
Net unrealized (gains)loss 9,46¢ (6,59¢€)
Net deferred tax asse 233,95! 216,72¢
Valuation allowanct (165,83) (158,607
68,124 58,12¢
Deferred tax liabilities
Acquisitior-related intangible (107,069 (129,310
Depreciation and amortizatic (16,169 (54,35))

(123,229 (183,66
$ (55,109 $ (125,549

As of December 31, 2004, our federal ancestat operating loss carryforwards for income tasppses were approximately $605.8 million
and $138.6 million, respectively. If not utilizethe federal net operating loss carryforwards welljim to expire in 2019, and the state net operating
loss carryforwards will begin to expire in 2006.r@ederal and state research tax credit carryfaiw&or income tax purposes are approximately
$35.9 million and $35.3 million, respectively. Ibtnutilized, the federal tax carryforwards will iego expire in 2021. We receive tax deductions
from the gains realized by employees on the exe@i€ertain non-qualified stock options for whitle benefit is recognized as a component of
stockholders’ equity. We have evaluated the dedeta® assets relating to these stock option deslustlong with our other deferred tax assets
and concluded that a valuation allowance is reguioe that portion of the total deferred tax assk#t are not considered more likely than not to
be realized in future periods. To the extent thatdeferred tax assets with a valuation allowaro®ine realizable in future periods, we will have
the ability, subject to carryforward limitations, benefit from these amounts. When realized, théémefit of tax deductions related to stock
options are accounted for as a credit to additipaa-in capital rather than a reduction of theome tax provision.

We have not provided for U.S. federal incaane foreign withholding taxes on $669.2 millionmafn-U.S. subsidiaries’ undistributed earnings
as of December 31, 2004, because such earningstaneed to be indefinitely reinvested in the ofieres and potential acquisitions of our
International Marketplace segment. Upon distributdd those earnings in the form of dividends oreottise, we would be subject to U.S. income
taxes (subject to an adjustment for foreign taxlitsg. It is not practicable to determine the ineotax liability that might be incurred if these
earnings were to be distributed.

Note 16— Subsequent Events

On February 23, 2005, we acquired all outitemsecurities of Rent.com for approximately $4dilion plus our acquisition costs, net of
Rent.com’s cash on hand. Rent.com is a leadingrietdisting website in the apartment and rentaidirng industry.
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In January 2005, our Board of Directors apptba two-for-one split of our shares of commortlstm be issued in the form of a stock
dividend. As a result of the stock split, our stiecklers received one additional share of our comsatock for each share of common stock held of
record on January 31, 2005. The additional shafresir common stock were distributed on February2D®5. All share and per share amounts in
these consolidated financial statements and refadggs have been adjusted to reflect the stockfsplall periods presented.

Supplementary Data — Quarterly Financial Data-Unaudted:

The following tables present certain unawtlitensolidated quarterly financial information &zach of the 12 quarters ended December 31,
2004. This quarterly information has been preparethe same basis as the Consolidated Financiedrs¢ats and includes all adjustments
necessary to state fairly the information for tleeigpds presented. The results of operations forgarayter are not necessarily indicative of results
for the full year or for any future period. All slgaand per share amounts included in the folloveimigsolidated financial data have been adjusted
to reflect all previous stock splits, including duo-for-one stock split, effective February 16080

Quarterly Financial Data
(Unaudited, in thousands, except per share amounts)

Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 3C December 31

2002
Net revenue: $ 245,10t $ 266,28 $ 288,77¢ $ 413,92¢
Gross profil $ 203,82! $ 221,72 $ 243,40! $ 331,26
Net income $ 47,58¢ $ 54,30¢ $ 61,00: $ 86,99¢
Net income per sha-basic $ 0.04 $ 0.0t $ 0.0t $ 0.07
Net income per sha-diluted $ 0.04 $ 0.0t $ 0.0t $ 0.07
Weightec-average share

Basic 1,113,32i 1,122,82 1,129,06: 1,234,571

Diluted 1,139,56 1,141,66 1,146,36. 1,257,58!
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2003
Net revenue:

Gross profil

Income before cumulative effect of accounting clee
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of

Net income
Net income per sha-basic
Net income per sha-diluted

Weightec-average share
Basic
Diluted

2004
Net revenue:

Gross profit

Net income

Net income per shs-basic
Net income per sha-diluted

Weightec-average share
Basic
Diluted

eBay Inc.
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Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 3C December 31
$ 476,49. $  509,26¢ $ 530,94 $ 648,39:
$ 384,39 $ 410,11¢ $ 421,58¢ $ 532,93¢
$ 104,19: $ 91,86¢ $ 108,66: $ 142,46
— — 3 (5,419 —
$ 104,19: $ 91,86¢ $ 103,25( $ 142,46
$ 0.0¢ $ 0.07 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.11
$ 0.0¢ $ 0.07 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.11
1,254,63. 1,273,36! 1,285,45i 1,293,63:
1,285,031 1,312,29. 1,324,46. 1,332,33l

Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 3C December 31
$ 756,23 $ 773,41. $ 805,87t $ 935,78
$ 621,88 $ 626,88 $ 648,75! $ 759,37
$ 200,10( $ 190,39 $ 182,34¢ $ 205,37¢
$ 0.1t $ 0.14 $ 0.14 $ 0.1t
$ 0.1t $ 0.14 $ 0.1% $ 0.1t
1,305,00: 1,316,133 1,323,14. 1,333,48!
1,347,591 1,364,84. 1,369,95. 1,385,69-
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The Financial Statement Schedule I — VALU®N AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS is filed as part of thisnnual Report on Form 10-K.

Charged/
Balance at Credited to Charged to Charges Balance at
Beginning of Net Other Utilized/ End of
Period Income Account Write -Offs Period
(In thousands)
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and
Authorized Credits
Year ended December 31, 2C $ 29,02« $ 25,45¢ $ — $ (23,779 $  30,70:
Year ended December 31, 2C 30,70z 46,04¢ — (28,687) 48,06¢
Year ended December 31, 2C 48,06¢ 90,94 — (60,37¢) 78,63
Allowance for Transaction Losses
Year ended December 31, 2C — 7,832 8,84¢ (6,577) 10,10%
Year ended December 31, 2C 10,101 36,401 — (34,500 12,00¢
Year ended December 31, 2C 12,00¢ 50,45¢ — (51,48)) 10,98¢
Tax Valuation Allowance
Year ended December 31, 2C 129,21: 15,97( — — 145,18:
Year ended December 31, 2C 145,18: 20,64¢ — — 165,83
Year ended December 31, 2C 165,83: (7,229 — — 158,60:

*  Assumed liability in connection with PayPal acqtidgi on October 3, 200:.
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 1B5¢d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,rasrded, the Registrant has duly caused this

report to be signed on its behalf by the undersgtteereunto duly authorized, in the City of Sase]®tate of California, on the 25th day of
February, 2005.

eBay Inc.

By: /s/ MARGARET C. WHITMAN

Margaret C. Whitmau
President, Chief Executive Offic
and Directol

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that epehson whose signature appears below constitagegagpoints Margaret C.
Whitman, Rajiv Dutta and Michael R. Jacobson, amtheor any one of them, each with the power of twitisn, his or her attorney-in-fact, to
sign any amendments to this report, with exhilhitséto and other documents in connection therewith, the Securities and Exchange
Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming allttleach of said attorneys-in-fact, or his substiturtsubstitutes, may do or cause to be done by
virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Secarifiechange Act of 1934, as amended, this reporb&as signed below by the following persons
on behalf of the registrant and in the capacitied @n the dates indicated.

Principal Executive Officer: Principal Financial Officer:
By: /s/ MARGARET C. WHITMAN By: /s/RAJIV DUTTA
Margaret C. Whitma Rajiv Dutta
President, Chief Executive Officer and Direc Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi

Principal Accounting Officer:

By: /s/DOUGLAS JEFFRIES
Douglas Jeffrie
Vice President, Chief Accounting Offic
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By: /s/ PIERRE M. OMIDYAR

Additional Directors

By: /s/FReD D. ANDERSON

Pierre M. Omidya

Founder, Chairman of the Board and Direc

By: /s/ PHILIPPE BOURGUIGNON

Fred D. Anderso
Director

By: /s/ ScoTT D. CooK

Philippe Bourguigno
Director

By: /s/ROBERT C. KAGLE

Scott D. Cool
Director

By: /s/DAWN G. LEPORE

Robert C. Kagl
Director

By: /s/ RICHARD T. SCHLOSBERG |lI

Dawn G. Lepor
Director

By:/s/ THOMAS J. TIERNEY

Richard T. Schlosberg, |
Director

Date: February 25, 2005

Thomas J. Tierne
Director

130




Table of Contents

No.
3.01
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4.02

10.014
10.024
10.034
10.044
10.054
10.064
10.074

10.084

10.094

10.104

10.114

10.124

10.134

10.144

10.154

10.164

10.174

10.184

10.194

10.204

EXHIBIT INDEX

Filed with
Exhibit Description this 1C-K

Incorporated by Reference

Registrant’'s Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation,

Registrar's Amended and Restated-laws.

Form of Specimen Certificate for Registrant’s Conmmo
Stock.

Investor Rights Agreement, dated June 20, 199Wdmat the
Registrant and certain stockholders named the

Form of Indemnity Agreement entered into by Registr
with each of its directors and executive office
Registrar’s 1996 Stock Option Pla

Registrar's 1997 Stock Option Pla

Registrar’'s 1998 Equity Incentive Plan, as amenc
Registrar’s 2001 Equity Incentive Pla

Registrar’s 1998 Directors Stock Option Ple
Registrar’s 2003 Deferred Stock Unit Ple

Registrant’'s Amended and Restated 1998 Employesk Sto
Purchase Plat

Registrar's 1999 Global Equity Incentive Plan, as amen

Employment Letter Agreement dated January 16,1998
between Margaret C. Whitman and Registr

Employment Letter Agreement dated August 20, 1998,
between Michael R. Jacobson and Registi

Offer Letter to Maynard G. Webb, Jr. dated July 1999.

Retention Bonus Plan dated January 10, 2001, batwee
Registrant and Maynard G. Webb, Jr. (Correct

Stock Option Agreement dated June 9, 1998 between
Registrant and Scott D. Coc

Offer Letter to Jeffrey D. Jordan dated July 3009.¢

Retention Bonus Plan dated May 16, 2000, between
Registrant and Jeffrey D. Jord:

Retention Bonus Plan dated April 3, 2001, between
Registrant and Jeffrey D. Jord:

Offer Letter to William C. Cobb dated November 2200.

Supplemental Retention Bonus Plan dated April 8022
between Registrant and William C. Col

Special Bonus Plan between Registrant and Matthew J
Bannick, dated as of September 6, 2(

Form File No. Date Filed
10-Q 000-24821 8/4/2004
10-Q 00C-24821 11/13/199¢
S-1 333-59097 8/19/1998
S-1 333-59097 7/15/1998
S-1 333-59097 7/15/1998
S1 33359097 7/15/1998
S1 33359097 7/15/1998
S1 33359097 7/15/1998
S-8 333117913 8/4/2004
16-Q 00C-24821 5/15/2003
S-8 333-107832 8/11/2003
S-8 333-117913 8/4/2004
S-8 333117913 8/4/2004
S-1 333-59097 8/19/1998
S-1 333-59097 9/1/1998
S-3 333-88205 9/30/199¢
10-Q 000-24821 8/14/2001
10-K 000-24821 3/31/2003
S-3 333-88205 9/30/199¢
10-K 000-24821 3/28/2001
10-Q 000-24821 8/14/2001
10-K 00C-24821 3/25/2002
10-Q 000-24821 8/6/2002
10-Q 000-24821 11/14/2002
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10.234
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10.304
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23.01
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31.01
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32.01
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Exhibit Description

Filed with
this 1C-K

Incorporated by Reference

Lease dated March 1, 2000, between eBay Realtyt angs
Registrant

Cash Collateral Agreement between Registrant arab€h
Manhattan Bank as Agent, dated March 1, 2!

Form of Stock Bonus Agreement under eBay Inc. 1998
Equity Incentive Plar

Form of Stock Option Agreement under eBay Inc. 1998
Equity Incentive Plar

Form of Stock Option Agreement under eBay Inc. 1999
Global Equity Incentive Plai

Form of Stock Option Agreement under eBay Inc. 2001
Equity Incentive Plar

Description of eBay Inc.’s Executive Managemenglmtive
Plan.

Offer Letter to Christopher Corrado dated Novenitgr
2004.

Offer Letter to Scott Thompson dated January 1252
Offer Letter to John Donahoe dated November 1642
List of Subsidiaries

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP consi

Power of Attorney (see signature pa¢

Certification of the Registrant’s Chief ExecutivéfiCer, as
required by Section 302 of the SarbeOxley Act of 2002

Certification of Registrant’s Chief Financial Offic as
required by Section 302 of the SarbeOxley Act of 2002

Certification of Registrant’s Chief Executive Ofic as
required by Section 906 of the SarbeOxley Act of 2002

Certification of Registrant’s Chief Financial Oféic as
required by Section 906 of the SarbeOxley Act of 2002

+

Indicates a management contract or compensatomygplarrangemer

X X X X

Form File No. Date Filed
10-K 000-24821 3/30/2000
10-K 000-24821 3/30/2000
10-Q 000-24821 10/27/2004
10-Q 000-24821 10/27/2004
10-Q 000-24821 10/27/2004
10-Q 000-24821 10/27/2004
10-Q 000-24821 10/27/2004
8-K 000-24821 1/3/2005
8-K 00C-24821 2/7/2005
8-K 00C-24821 2/24/2005






LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2004

DOMESTIC SUBSIDIARIES

EXHIBIT 21.01

1. Baazee.com, Inc., a Delaware corpora

2. Blackthorne Software, Inc., a Delaware corpora

3. CARad Inc., a Delaware corporati

4. Confinity, Inc., a California corporatic

5. EachNet, Inc., a Delaware corporat

6. eBay Domestic Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corpora

7. eBay International Inc., a Delaware corporai

8. eBay Real Estate Inc., a Delaware corpora

9. eBay Real Estate No. 1, Inc., a Delaware corpan:
10. eBay Real Estate No. 2, Inc., a Delaware corpan:
11. Half.com, Inc., a Pennsylvania corporat
12. HBJ Partners, LLC, a California limited liabilipmpany
13. Jump Incorporated, an Ohio corporation d/b/a Upd
14. Marketplace Insurance Inc., a Hawaii corpora
15. PayPal Asset Management, Inc., a Delaware corpor
16. PayPal Global Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corpora
17. PayPal, Inc., a Delaware corporat
18. PayPal Insurance Services, Inc., a Delaware catipar
19. ProStores, Inc., a Delaware corporat
20. Sundance Acquisition Sub Inc., a Delaware corpon
21. The Commercial Exchange Co., Inc., a Delaware catjm
22. 111 Potrero Partners, LLC, a California limitecblldy company
23. 6700 Cherry Ave. Partners, a California generatngaship

INTERNATIONAL SUBSIDIARIES
Jurisdiction of Percent Ownership

Name Incorporation If Less Than 100%
1. Al MarktB.V. The Netherland
2. Baazee.com India Pvt. Lt India
3. Baazee.com Private Limite Mauritius
4. EachNet.com (Hong Kong) Limite Hong Kong
5. EachNet.com Limites Cayman Island
6. EachNet.com Network Information Services (ShangBai), Ltd. Peoplfs Republic of Chini
7. eBay Australia and New Zealand Pty Limil Australia
8. eBay Australia Pty Lt Australia
9. eBay Austria Gmb}t Austria
10. eBay Belgium Holdings S./ Belgium
11. eBay Belgium SPRI Belgium
12. eBay Canada Limite Canade
13. eBay CS Vancouver In Canade
14 eBay France S, France 99.9(%
15. eBay Global Holdings B.V The Netherland
16. eBay Gmblt Germany
17. eBay EachNet.com Network Information Services ($fhaif) Co., Ltd. Peoplfs Republic of Chini
18. eBay «Commerce Technology Operations (Shanghai) Co., Peoplfs Republic of Chini




Jurisdiction of Percent Ownership

Name Incorporation If Less Than 100%
19. eBay Engineering & Research Center (Shanghai)lGd. Peopl¢s Republic of Chini

20. eBay International AC Switzerland

21. eBay International Hong Kong Lt Hong Kong

22. eBay Internet Support (Shanghai) Co., | Peopl¢s Republic of Chini

23. eBay ltalia S.r.l Italy

24,
25,
26.
27.
28.
. eBay Sverige AE

. eBay Taiwan Company Lt

. eBay UK Limited

. High Options Sdn Bh

. Hortensia B.V.

. iBazar Pro NL BV

. Inter Bazaul

. Intoko GmbH

. Intoko Inc.

. Intoko Limited

. Intoko S.a.r.|

. Intoko SL

. Internet Auction Co., Lt

. Marktplaats B.V.

. mobile.de GmbF

. NeoCom Technology Co., Lt

. PayPal Australia Pty Limite

. PayPal Canada Limite

. PayPal Deutschland Gmt

. PayPal (Europe) Ltc

. PayPal France SA

. PayPal Information Technologies (Shanghai) Co.,
. PayPal International Limite

. PayPal Italia s.r.|

. Pyxis Sp. Z 0.(

eBay KTA (UK) Limited

eBay Netherlands B.\

eBay Promotions (UK) Ltc

eBay Singapore Services Private Limi
eBay Spain International, S.

United Kingdom
The Netherland
United Kingdom
Singapore
Spain

Sweder

Taiwan

United Kingdom
Malaysia

The Netherland
The Netherland
Portugal
Germany
Canade

United Kingdom
France

Spain

Korea 99.8t%
The Netherland
Germany
Taiwan
Australia
Canade
Germany
United Kingdom
France

Peoplfs Republic of Chini
Ireland

Italy

Poland






EXHIBIT 23.01
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémt¢lee Registration Statements on Form S-4 (N88-37727 and 333-117914) and Form S-8
(Nos. 333-64179, 333-87593, 333-41944, 333-58038,%729, 333-100426, 333-107832 and 333-117918Baf Inc. of our report dated
February 25, 2005 relating to the consolidatedrfiia statements and financial statement schechdeagement’s assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting aneteffectiveness of internal control over financgorting, which appear in this Form 10-K.

/s PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

San Jose, CA
February 25, 2005






EXHIBIT 31.01

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER,
AS REQUIRED BY SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Margaret C. Whitman, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-keBhy Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doesantain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact necessary to make

the statements made, in light of the circumstanceer which such statements were made, not misigawdih respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statetsy and other financial information includedhistreport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aagh flows of the registrant as of, and for, theoaks presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officérénd | are responsible for establishing and maiirtg disclosure controls and procedures (as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}3(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and plioes, or caused such disclosure controls and guoes to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the petiin which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over finahogporting, or caused such internal control direncial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggttae reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygedeaccounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the regissalisclosure controls and procedures and preddntthis report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proces] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change inrtggstrant’s internal control over financial repogtthat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth dilsguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comiweer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officéréad | have disclosed, based on our most rece@ion of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theittemmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct(ms persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and materi@aknesses in the design or operation of internakabover financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, thabiwes management or other employees who havendisant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: February 25, 2005

By: /s/ M ARGARET C. W HITMAN
Margaret C. Whitmar
President and Chief Executive Officer (Princi
Executive Officer







EXHIBIT 31.02

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER,
AS REQUIRED BY SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Rajiv Dutta, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-keBhy Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doesantain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact necessary to make

the statements made, in light of the circumstanceer which such statements were made, not misigawdih respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statetsy and other financial information includedhistreport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aagh flows of the registrant as of, and for, theoaks presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officérénd | are responsible for establishing and maiirtg disclosure controls and procedures (as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}3(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and plioes, or caused such disclosure controls and guoes to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the petiin which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over finahogporting, or caused such internal control direncial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggttae reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygedeaccounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the regissalisclosure controls and procedures and preddntthis report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proces] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change inrtggstrant’s internal control over financial repogtthat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth dilsguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comiweer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officéréad | have disclosed, based on our most rece@ion of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theittemmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct(ms persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and materi@aknesses in the design or operation of internakabover financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, thabiwes management or other employees who havendisant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: February 25, 2005

By: /s/ Rajyv D uTTA
Rajiv Dutta
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)







EXHIBIT 32.01

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER,
AS REQUIRED BY SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Margaret C. Whitman, hereby certify pursien18 U.S.C. Section 1350 adopted pursuant ttic8e806 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
that:

(i)  The accompanying annual report on Form 1®Ktfie fiscal year ended December 31, 2004 fullpgiges with the requirements of Section
13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934, as amended; a

(i)  The information contained in such report fairly ggsts, in all material respects, the financial éor and results of operations of eBay |
Date: February 25, 2005

By: /s/ M ARGARET C. W HITMAN
Margaret C. Whitmar

President and Chief Executive Officer (Princi
Executive Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished $pleursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 and is notdéiled as part of this report.






EXHIBIT 32.02

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER,
AS REQUIRED BY SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Rajiv Dutta, hereby certify pursuant to 18 U.SSg&ction 1350 adopted pursuant to Section 90BeoBarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that:

(i)  The accompanying annual report on Form 1®Ktfie fiscal year ended December 31, 2004 fullpgiges with the requirements of Section
13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchangedoh 1934, as amended; a

(i)  The information contained in such report fairly ggets, in all material respects, the financial dbom and results of operations of eBay |
Date: February 25, 2005

By: /s/ RAJlv D uTTA
Rajiv Dutta
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

The foregoing certification is being furnished $pleursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 and is notdéiled as part of this report.



